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of yours, fo as to have no Senfe of our own,
and to be impos’d upon fo weakly as this. Here
is the Thing, fays the Letter, Jtwould not bave
you come too foon io London, nor appear o0 miuch
in publick, for fear of difecvering a Defign, which
requives Secvecy 1 ils own Nature. What, was
that your Defign, of choofing a Procurator £
Tell me but one Thing that can bear the Name
of a Defign, which muft have that Secrecy 1n
it, that People muft not appear much about
Town, and that in its own Nature requires {uch
a Thing. o o

Whitehread. My Y.ord, the Thing itlelf 1s evi-
dent, what was the Delign. | |

L. C.¥. Come, Mr. W hitchread, you will do
it better.

Ihitebsead. It is evident it was a Delign to
choofe an Officer.

L. C.}. Why, good Mr. /Vhitebread, do any
write after that manner 7 Were you to write to
any one, or ask the Jury, if they were to choofe
fome Collector for the Receipt of fome charua-
ble Money that fhould be employed for the Re-
lief of Proteffants in Frauce : Do you think any
Man would fay, Do not appear mtch 1z London
before-band, oy come too feon, for fear of d{/é'ofa:fr-
ing the Defign, which in ils cwn Nalure requires
Secrecy : Wil this endure the Name of a De-
fign ¢ |

Whitehread. Firft, it is a very hard Thing to
bring fo many Mens Lives in Danger, meerly up-
on the Interpretation of a Word, which may as
properly fignify one thing as another. Is 1t not

E -* -
proper for me to fay, I have a Defign to Dine with

{ich 2 Man to-morrow, or the like?

L. C. # *Tis true now, but hearken

Whitebread. But that was the Thing deligned,
to have a Congregation for the choofing of an
Officer, and it was, 1 think, very properly faid,
and that it fhould be kept fecret, was as pruden-
tial a Thing as poffibly could be. Was it not
proper here, becaule our P'rofeﬂion was not pub-
lickly permitted in this Kingdom ; and therefore
that was the Reafon why Secrecy was 1mmjoin’d ?
And this, upon my Salvation, was all that cver
was intended or thovght. _

L. C. ¥. North. This now 1s the Interpretation
you put upon the Letter, but we underftand by
the Witnefles what was done at that Mecting,

L. C. F. Look you, Mr. Whitebread, this Let-
ter, without Queftion, hath been well ftudied by
youall; and it requires it mighuly.

IWhitebread. It needs none,

L.C. ¥. This is not the natural Expofition of
the Words of the Letter, that you give, but a
forced oney for firft, there is a Difference be-
tween faying, [ do defign to Dine to-day, tho’
it be a ufual matter, but it is another thing,
when I call a Thing by the Name of a Defign,
accompanicd with a requiring of Secrecy in its
own Nature, and when I give Advice, that they
muft not appear in Town too foon, nor too
much about the Town, for fear of difcovering
the Defign, which in its own Nature requires Se-

crecy : Muft all this amount but to the choofing
of ‘an Officer ? You'll never make one Papift of
all this Company, if you make no better Work

of it.

Whitebread. My Lord, T humbly defire your.
Lordthip would not ftrain a Word which may be
well enough faid, whether it be properly faid or

ne.

L.C. F. ’Tis not one Word alone, but *tis the
whole Senfe.

Whitehread, *Tis evident, there was juft Caufe
of Secrecy, becaufe of our Profeflion.

L. C.F. Mr. Whitchread, *Tis not one Word
that is relied upon, for the Bufinefs is purfued,
*T'is not faid, Pray meet at fuch a Time, but, B:
sareful you do not difcover the Defign 5 if it had
been only faid fo, it would have been a Strain,
to have made this Conftruction of a fingle Word,
to make this that Defign 3 but as it 1s here, we
make no fuch Conftruftion ; it had been hard in-
deed to pur that Meaning upon 1t as you do,
even then, for ’tis feldom fo ufed, for no Map
writes after that manner; but when 1t follows
in a continued Senfe of fo many Lines, be fure yor
meet on the 242h of April, the Day after St. George’s
Day, but come not too foon 1o Towir, nor appear
to0 much about the Tosun, for fear of difecvering the
Defien, which you kinow in its own Nature does re-
guire Secrecy : Can we make any fuch Interpre.
tatton of 1?2 If you have no better Arguments
than thefe, you mult have People lofe their Un-
derftandings, or have a very blind Obedience
to yours, or 1t will never down, Ay; Come,
Mr. Gavan, how do you fay 1s the Meaning of
this ?

Gavaa, For my part, I’l] affure your Lordfhip,
I was not there; but this is known to all the
Chriftian World, that there is fuch a Meeting in
Spain, France, Germany, &c. that wherever the
Jeluits are, once in three Years they have a NMeet-
ing among themfelves, for the feithing of their
Aftairs. Indeed the Words have given your Lord-
fhip an Occafion to raife a Difficulty, what the
Word Defignr thould mean? Which 1 do give this
Anfwerto: Your Lord(hip’s Difficulty 13, That
the Word Defign, here, fhould not be made ufe
of to fend one poor Jefuit to Rome. My Lord,
do but mark the End of the Congregation, and
you will fay to us, that we might well ufe that
Word, becaufe the Word may import fome great
Bufinefs of Concernment; now what Bufinefs of
greater Concernment for poor religious Men to
meet together about, than thofe Things that may
promote their better State in another World, and
the Regulation of what is amifs n their Order.
My Lord, upon my Confcience and Salvation,
this was the End of the Congregation, to meet,
and {ee what i1s amifs in their Order, who do their
Duties, and who not, who are irregular in their
Offices, and whole Office 15 vacant, and to be
fupplied.

L. C. 7. But muft no Body come to Town, nor
appear too much about the Town, for this?

Gawan. Therefore, my Lord, as to the Word
Dzfizn, it concerning the whole {piritual Good of
the whole Body of the Euglifh Jefuits, it might
well be ufed for the Confultation of that Body,
about all therr Good, Temporal and Spiritual,
whick: was all concerned 1n 1.

L. C.%. Thefe are a many Words, but to no
Purpofe.

Gavgn, Now, my Lord, for the Second Thing
that you object, your Lordfhip remembers very
well, that the Continuation of the Senfe in fo
many Lines, made the Thing the more fufpicious,
that more was intended by it than fo: Now to
this T fhall be able to anfwer, if there can be gi-
ven a particular Reafon why we fhould add that
Word of Secrecy, to the other of Defion; having
anfwered to the one Party we now give an An-

fwer,
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fwer to the other, and fo to the Whole. Now,
my Lord, becaufe of the Time, the Parliament
was then fitting, and that we might not offend
the King and all Civil Magiftrates (whom we ho-
nour from our Hearts and Souls) that Word was
ufed that it might be kept fecret.

L. C. ¥. It was notoutof Love to the Par-
liament, it was the Nature of the Thing required if,
nor was it out of Fear you had of them. I did
never find, tho’you areas good at it as ever any
I met with {for I never met with a Prieft thac
had much more Underftanding) but really youdo
not anfwer me. Youare fo far from Scholars,
anJ arguing like fuch, that you do not maintain
the Matter with common and rational Underltand-
ing, but only heap up fo many vain Words, (like
a Rope of Sand put together) which hath no na-
aural Coherence s for you cannot poflibly make
this reafonable, that People fhould have fo much
Caution, that they fhould not come too long to
‘I'own before-hand.

Guvair. Not to be taken notice of.

L. C.#. Not to appear 1n Town when they
come.

Gavan. Not to be taken notice of.

L. C.}. 1 fay fo, you cannot tell why all thefe
Causions fhould be ufed, merely for choofing an
Officer,

Gawvan. My Lord, our Lives depended upon
it, 1If we were taken, being {uch Men as we are,

L. C. %, You can make nothing of 1, and you
vill ind it an hard Task to anfwer ity for if
half the Evidence that hath been given, were not
civen, yet this Letter of your own, which can-
not be denied, 1s an unanfwerable Proof. It does
monfiroufly confirmy Mr. Oales’s Teltimony to be
undeniable, as to the meeting at the Confult s
for he, four or Aive Days before-hand, comes and
tells the Council, the very Day which, five or
fix Days after, this Letter makes good, which
is found in Harconst’s Cultody. Then there was
a Confultation upon the Day, the very Day that
Mz, Qates fays, and what he calls 2 Confultation,
your own Letter fays is a Defign.

Gavan. It was a Delign of a2 Congregation.

L. C.¥. What Senfe is there 1o that? Wil
any Man in England, or did any Man in Exng-
land ever fay, Take heed of difcovering our De-
fign of going to Church, or choofing a Col-
leCtor ?

Gavan, There 1s Reafon for the one, and Rea-
fon for the other too.

L. C. ¥. I would appeal to your felves,and all
here prefent, what the natural Impoert of fuch a
Letter 15, whether it does not carry a Matter more
than ordinary, whether its natural Intendment
doth not look at that? And the next thing is
this; Doesany Man write plainer than this, when
they write of a thing that is of fuch a Nature ?
Is not the Danger too great to hazard that Fadt,
which they call the Nature of the Thing, to in-
trafticin a Letter ? Is ic not vainto put that ina
Letter, in Words ar length, which they, to whom
it s writ, know what the Thing means? And if
it fhould be further kncwn than they would have
it, the Thing could never be done: And if you
confider the Perfon that writes, a Jefuit, or a
Prielt 3 Are Priefts ever plain? And will you
expect Plainnels here, when, in "Things of ten
thoufand times lefs Moment, they don’t write
plainer ? Is it not known, you have not a Profe-

lyte, that you do not keep under Obligations as
Vor. II.

clofe as your Confeffions are ? Have you not ta-

ken here, as it is fivorn, a Sacrament of Secrecy ?
Is there 2 Woman that you convert, bur in the

dark ? Ora Papift made, out of a Prieft's Hole 2
Are not all your Deeds under-ground ? and do
you work with any Light, bur that of a Dark-
Lanthorn ? Thisis plain, unlefs you give a bet-
ter Anfwer to this Letter, the Letter will hane
about your Necks. 7

L. C. ¥. North. Mr. Qates wil] tell you what
the Defian was,

My, Tuff, Ellis, He cantell ycu what it was.

L. C. J. The Leter fpeaks itfelf,

Qates. Mr. Gavan, and they, now, tell your
Lordfhip what this Confult was for, but they de-
nied this Confult at firft, when there was but one
Man to juftify it. 1 juftified it before Mr, Fey-
wicky who denied it at the Council- Beard, tho’
now they pawn their Salvation upon the Julifi-
catton «f It.

Fenwick. T never denied that there.

L. C 7. Come, have they any thing to fay
for themfelves?

Bedlow. My Lord, Whereas, as Mr. Gavan
fays, that n obedience to the King and Parlia-
ment they would have their Confulcations fecret,
and that they always defired to conceal them-
felves then 3 the Time of Seflions of Parliament
was the only time that I and others have been
employed to fetch over more Jefuits than at any
other particular time,

(ates, And there are more of them then in the
Court of Requefts, and in the Lobbies, bare-faced,
and threatning the Proteftants, than at any other
Time.

Bedlow, We ufed to fetch them againft the
Parliament always ; they were inlefs danger then,
than at other Times.

L.C.¥. You could give a very good Inter-
pretation of the Letter, I fuppofe, that Mr, Dup-
dale fpeaks of, that came frem /7bitehicad, Thar
lie fhould be fure to entertain fuch as were hardy,
ftour Fellows : I fuppofe you can make all this
to fignify nothing more thana Defign for 2 Game
at Cudgels.

Sir Cr, Levinz. If your Lordfhip pleafz, we
mult defire that one Letter more may be read.
Your Lordfhip hath beentold of Commiffions for
raifing an Army, here is a T'ouch of them men-
tioned in this Letter, found amongft Mr. Har-
cotrt’s Letters too,

L. C. ¥ Look you, Mr. Harconrt, you had
beft attend ; here is another Letter found amongft
your Papers, concerning fome Comanuflions. You
look ill to your Letters 3 you are to blame, in-
deed, Mr, Harcourt,

Sir Cr. Levinz. Pray, Sit Thomas Deleman,
look upon that Paper, and tell us how you came
by it. |

Sir Tho, Doleman. 'This Letter in my Hand I
found amongft Mr. Harcourt’s Papers, about fome
two Days after I found that other thar was read
before.  Having heard Mr. Oates give in his In-
formation to the Council, That there were feve-
ral Commiflions given out to {everal Perfons, and
finding fome doubtful Claufes and Expreffions in
the Letter, I did prefent this Letter to the Coun-
cil, and made a Mark upon it, Enguire what is
meaitt by the Word Yatents,

L. C. F. Pray let it be read, becante we fhall
defire a litcle more of their Interpretation.

5 Q Cl. ﬂf the Cry
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CL of the Cr. It is figned Chriftopher dAnderion,
Hilton, February the 5th 1677,

Oates, Hilton, that 1s Kome.

L.C. ¥. Mr. Harcesrt, you underftand, that
by Hilton, 1s meant Rome ¢
~ Harconrt. Yes, my Lord, I do.

L. C.¥. Well, then go on, and read 1.

Cl of the Cr. Worthy Sir, 1 know not from
whence it proceeds, but I perceive that both your
Letters and mine have bad Fortune by the way, for
my Correfpondents <with you complaing they bear ot
from me y whereas Iwrite conflaitly intirePacquets s
anid fince the Bills I reccived from your felf, for Sir
'William Goring, and for Mr. lveland, from M.,
Shelly, I bave wot bad one Letter, but what I ve-
ceived this IVeek, swbich, i part, made vecompence
for the former, for it brought me three of yours, and
one of Mr. Ireland’s, for awhich I render you many
bumnble Thauks, and ackwewledge the Fifteen Poniids
from my Lord Caftlemain, the’ Mr. lreland made
no meiition of it in bis, Ve ave all bere very glad of
the Promotion of M. Thomas Harcourt.  When
Ixevit that the Patents wvere fent, althe® I guefs for
whom they were, yeb 1 kneww not for certain, becanfe
our Patvoins do net ufe to difcover things or refolu-
tiois till they knozy they have effect.  And therefore
in thefe kind of matiers Idare not be too bafly, left
fome might fay, A Fool’s Bolt is foon fhot.

L. C. ¥. \What isthe meaning of thefe Patents?

Fenawick, This Gentleman wilt tell you, my
Lord.

Whitebread, My Lord, they were the Patent
for my being Provincial.

L. C.¥. How many Patents had you ?

IWhitebread, But one, my Lord.

L. C. F. Is that Patents ?

Whitebread. Litere Pateintes.

L. C. 7. Isit Patent or Patents?

Cl. of Cr. Patents.

L. C. 7. Read thofe Words again.

Cl. of Cr. We are all beve wery glad at the pro-
motion of Mr. Thomas Harcourt, When I writ
that the Patents were fenty althe’ I guefs for whom
they were, yet I knew not for certain, becanfe our
Patrons do wot ufe to difcover things or refolutions,
till they kuozo they have effcél.

L. C. 7. Now you have not interpreted well
this neither.

Sir Cr. Levinz, It is faid, I kuew not for cer-
3ain who (they)were for 5 but to make it clear, I
would delire Mr. //7bitchread to aniwer me one
Queftion, How long is it, Sir, fince you were
made Provincial ?

Whitehread. The 14th of Fannary was Twelve-

month.
Sir Cr. Levinz. And this was dated the 5th of

February, which was after your Commuffion.

JWbitebread. That may be, and they not Xnow
till then.

L. C. 7. And fo you expound thofe latter
Words of the Letter, That the Refolutton of
making you Provincial was notdilcovered till the
Effe&t was known.

W hitebread. Becaule it 1s not known, whether
the Perfon that is nominated might not be excep-
ted apainft : and it is Lifere Patentes.

L. C. F. But here 1s but one Perfon to anfwer
the Word Patents, and there fhould be more than
one Man,

IWhitebread. Every Patent is called Litere Pa-
tentes, tho’ it be but for one Perfon.

Mr. Recorder. They were in great doubt that
you would refufe the Place, I warrant.

Outes. He is bound on pain of Damnation not
to difabey his Superiors 5 it they clioofe him to 2
Place, he muft take it upon him.

W bitebread. 1t is not the firft, fecond, or hyn-
dredth time that one hath been appointed by the
Superior to a Place, and hath refufed it and if [
had known the hundredth pare of what I do now,
of the Trouble of the Place, 1 would never have
accepted It.

Mr. Recorder. Ay, if you had known thedif.
ficulty of this Defign, you would never have en-
gaged In 1t, efpecially if you had known what
Is come to pals.

JVhitebread. No, Sir, 1 never had a hand in
any fuch thing in all my Lite : this is coram Deo
that I now fpeak, and as I am to appear before
the great Tribunal at the Day of Judgment, 1
know nothing of all this Mateer.

Oates. My Lord, thefe Patents, of which this
Letter makes mention, 2 great many of them
came down in the Months of 4pril and May be-
fore. ~

L. C. 7. Methinks he interprets them plainer
than you do.

L. C. Baron. Now what have you to fay every
one of you for yourfelves? Make your Defence.

L.C. F. Mr. W hitebread, do you begin.

Oates. W hile the Prifoner’s Evidence iscalling
i, 1 defire thar my Witneffes may be {worn.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton, Mr. Oates, be quiet, there
1s no need of 1t yet, ull they have made their De-
fence. |

L. C: . But fend for them, that they may be
ready.

Whitehread. My Lord, that which I have to
fay for myfelf is this: I thank God, my Lord, I
am not afraid of Death; but 1 fhould be very
loth to dic unjuftly, and I hope your Lordfhip
will confider, that every Man’s Bloed is dear to
him, and is concerned for his own Life to pre-
ferve 1t, he ought to be allowed Liberty and
Freedom to preferve himfelf as much as he can,
Life is a thing not to be thrown away, but cha-
rily to be lookt after, and that there is fuch a
thing as taking away Mens Lives by Perjury, as
well as by a Knife or Piftol, 1s without contra-
dition. Now whoever comes againft a Man for
his Life, 1 fuppofe he i3 to be look’d upon not
only by the Vrifoner, but alfo by the Jury and
the Court, that he ought to be Probus Teftis, and
a Man fit to be admitted tobea Witnefs. Now
I have fomething to offer, That Mr. Oates 1s
not any fuch Perfon. Your Lordfhip was plea-
fed to fay, That he was the Perfon who proved
the Delign mentioned in the Letter that was
read. Now | hope your Lordihip will give me
leave (and I hope I may do it without offence to
}his Court) to fay that lieis perjured in what he
ays.

L. C.°7. You mean that his Evidence is falfe,
youmay do it if you can.

F bitebread, e fays he came over hither, and
was here prefent the 24th of 4pril with me, and
that I did appoint him to do fuch and fuch things,
and difcovered the whole Bufinefs to him. Now
I defire your Lordfhip would be pleafed to con-
(ider whether this were probable, and whether I
had not been a very much miftaken Man all this
while, to truft a Man with fuch a Bufinefs, and
whether 1 ought not rather to be fent to Bedlawm
than Newgate, lor trufting fuch a Man as he,
whom by his own Confeflion I never faw il

that
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that time. ’Tis not rational that a Man would
rralt him 3 and then, my Lord, that this Bufi-
nels fhould be difcovered to him, a Man that de-
pended wholly upon us to live, and had no Live-
lihood but what he had from us, who maintained

him at St. Omers long, as well as the beft Man
in the Houfe,

L. C. ¥. Did you do 1t?

Whitebread. Yes, my Lord, I did.

L. C. . You fhould conflider how in that you
anfwer your felf.

Whitebread, I, that 13, when I came to the
Office, and I and my Predeceffors. When I
was Superior | found him not a2 Man fit for that
Purpofe and Defign he pretended to. He was
very zealous to be entertained amongft us, and
therefore 1 defired him to abfent himfelf,

L. C. ¥. Why was he not fit to be employed
among you?

IWhitebread, For feveral Reafons of our own:
Firft of all it was doubtful, whether he was a
oood Catholick : for he had oftentimes maintain-
ed feveral Propofitions that were not foundly Ca-
tholick : and then, fecondly, he led a very 1dle
Life, and he was not found a Man we were obli-
ged to accept of, and therefore we defired him
to retire, And to that purpofe we furnifhed
him, gave him a good Suit of Clothes, and a
Periwig, and four Pounds in his Purle, and he
promifed me to pay me again when he had fold
his Library, which he faid he had a very good
one in London; but he never did. But that |
fhould be fo ftrangely overfeen and mad, as at
the firft fight of fuch a Man as this, to trult him
with fuch a great Intrigue as this was, and to
write in fuch a plain ftrange manner, and fend
by Poft to Mr. Dugdale, as your Lordfhip did
and juftly might wonder at, had been a Madnefs.
It was much that any Man would write {o plain
of fuch a Thing. But then, my Lord, the chief
thing is this, That I hope your Lordfhip will

oive us leave to produce our Witnefles to prove,
that he was not from St. Omers from the 1oth

of December till the 23d of Fune following, and
never lay out of the Houfe but one Night from
December tll Fuie.

L. C. ¥. Name your Witnefles,

Whitebread, 1 defire firt Mr. Hilfley may be
called.

L.C. % Call him; but I'll tell you what is
ftrange, You fay it is wonderful that you fhould
truft a Man you had fo little Opinion of his Abi-
lities or Fidelity 5 but I wonder that you fhould
maintain him after that,

Whitebread, No, my Lord, we did not.

L. C. . You fay you did,

Whitebread. No, my Lord, he pretends he was
here in England fent over by us, but we will
prove hie was not. ‘

L. C. ¥. But you maintained him abroad?

Hhitebread. That was before.

L.C % Is it fo great a wonder that you
fhould take into your Confidence and Confulta-
tion that Man, whom for a confiderable time
before you had maintained abroad ¢

{Vhitebread. But, my Lord, I fuppofe there is
fome difference between charitable Acts toa Man
in Want and a Scholar, and trufting him with
fuch an Intrigue as this.

Fenwick. Pray my Lord, be pleafed to take
notice, ,that this Man’s Evidence all along is,
that he faw fuch and fuch Letters from fuch and

You ll

fuch Perfons. They have no Evidence .butjuft
that they faw fuch and fuch Letters, and how is
it poffible that a2 Man who was turned away
from St, Qmers for his Mifdemeanors, that I
thould fhew him all my Lerters? Now, my
Lord, I have hada Thoufand Letters taken from
me, not any of thefe Letters had any thing- of
Treafon in them, or folliciting of Perfons to
come into England; let the Letters be produced,
and then your Lordfhip will fee what is in them.
All the Evidence that is given, comes but to
this; there is but faying and fwearing, 1 defy
them all to give one probable Reafon to fatisfy
any reafonable uninterefted Man’s Judgment how
this could be. ,

L. C. Baron. There can be no Reafon given
why you fhould fign an Inftrument to kill the
King,

L. C. . You fay there is nothing but faying
and fwearing, but you do not confider what you
fay in that Matter.  All the Evidence and all the

Teftimony in all Trialsis by fivearine. A Man
comes and {wears that he faw fuch a Bond fealed,

or heard fuch Words fpoken, this is faying and
fwearing, but it is that Proof that we go by, and
by which all Mens Lives and Fortunes are to be
determined. But then fay you, ’tis wonderful,
that fince they fay they faw fuch and fuch Let-
ters, they fhould not produce them; why ? they
did not belong to them: Ay, but then fay you,
tis {trange they fhould not find one Letter in all
thofe numerous Papers that were taken that con-
tains any Traiterous Matter; but, I fay, ’ts for-
ty times more a wonder that one fhould be taken,
than for all the reft to be undifcovered. I fup-
pofe Mr. Harconrt, amongft thofe Papers that he
let be furprifed, did not think that Letter that
hath been read to have been of fuch Confequence,
nor the Senfe of it tobe fo bad.

Fenwck, Idreamt no more of my Apprehen-
fion, when I was taken, than the Day of my
Death, 1t was {o unexpeéted ; nor what T thould
be accufed of: I had no fear of it, no thought
of it, fo that I took nothing out of the way.
They took five or fix thoufand Pound Bonds and
Bills, befides Letters; methinks fomething of the
Effeéts of thofe Letters might be produced, and
fome of the Delign appear. For God's fake,
where are the Commiffions figned, and Moneys

aid ?

d L. C.F. They talk of a Patent. Mr. White-
bread conftrues it, that it is his Commiffion 5 if
fo, does 1t lie in Oates or Bedlow’s Power to fhew
that Commiffion? (this is juft like that of the

Bill of Exchange) neither-does it in any of the
Letters.

Fenwick. Here is Mr. Hilfley, my Lord.

Whitebread. My Lord, we pray we may have
the favour that they may be Sworn.

L. C.J. North, By Law they cannot.

L.C. 7. In no Capital Cafe againft the King
can the Witnefles for the Prifoncr be Sworn:
but I will fay this to the Jury, That they are
not Sworn, 1s, becaufe they cannot, but the Jury
is to take great heed of what they fay, and to be
governed by it according to the Credibility of the
Perfon and of the Matter,

Gavan. My Lord, if you pleafe to give me
leave, my Lord Coke in his Inftitutes faysexprefly,
That there 1s no pofitive Law againft it, his
Words are, there 1s not fo much as Seimsilla Yuris

againft I,
5Q.2 LC. 7.
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L.C.¥. North. We know that the conftant
Ufage and Practice is {o, and you cannot produce
any Man, that in any Capital Cafe had his Wit-
nefles fworn againt the King. ‘

L.C. 7. My Lord Coke fays otherwife, That
the Evidence fhould be fo plain that nothing could
be anfwered to it; and therefore no Evidence
fhould be fworn againft the King.

Gavan. My Lord, thofe are the Words of my
Lord Goe.

L.C. 5. You argue againft the known Prac-
tice of all Ages. '

L.C. §. North. There was never any Man, in
a Capital Caufe, fworn againft the King. The
Common Law is the Cultom of the Kingdom,
and we are bound to know it, and muft be all
governed by it. ‘

Whitebread. 1In Mr. Ireland's Trial, pag. 35, 36,
he fays, he came over with Sir Jfobu W arncr, Fa-
cher WWilliains, and Mr. Hilflzy, from St. Omers.

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. Nay, you muft not refort
to the Printed Trials for Evidence.

Fenwwick. If we can prove him Perjured at any
time, I hope we may. |

L.C. 7. Suppofe upon the taking of thofe
printed Trials they miftake, fhall Mr. Oates
therefore be thought Guilty of Perjury? It you
have any thing to ask of your Witnefles which
you can apply to the Evidence given now, you
may.

f)'ifﬁfa;;irr’c. Mr, Oates, did not you your flf own
then you came over with Mr., Hilfley¢

Oales, Ask me any Queftion about what I have
given to-day, and if the Bench think it realonable,
1 will anfwer It

Feawick. My Lord, he did then affirm, that

he came over with thefe Perfons, in which he is
forfworn.

L. C. 7. He is not convi€ted of Perjury, and
therefore that muft not be urged.

Fenwick. My Lord, we will prove by Wit-
nefies that were at the Trial, that he did affirm
fo: And I (o defire now to know of you,
Mr. Qales, whether ever you came over with
Mr. Hilfley ¢

Oates. That which I faid then, and that which
I fay now, is, (becaufe you fhould not puzzle

your felves) that one Mr. Hilfley did come over
with us when we did.

Hilfley. My Lord, 1 did not.

L.C. ¥. How can you tell?

Hilfley, 1 left him at St. Oumers.

L.C. ¥. What fay you, Mr. Oales ¢

Qates. *Tis true, Mr. Hilflzy did leave me at
St. Omers, becaule he went out a Swnday Morn-
ing, and I came out of the Monday Morning, but
I overtook him at Galais.

Hilfloy. My Lord, that 1s falfe, and I have a
oreat many here that can prove it.

L. C. 7. What Religion are you of ?

Hilfley. 1 am only to ferve His Majefty.

L. C. . Are you not to ferve God too?

Hilfley. I am firlt to ferve God, and then His
Majefty.

Mr. Jult. Pemberton. Are you a Catholic?

L.G. 7. Are you a Roman Catholic?

Hilfley, Yes, my Lord, Iam,

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. Be not athamed of your
Religion, do not deny that;” your Provincial here
can give.you a Difpenfation for what you fay.

Hilfley. 1 hope a Roman Catholic may be a law-
ful Witnefs?

L.C. 7. Yes, I deny it not. This isthat you
fay, you left him at St. Omers; you muft call
more Witnefles to back him: Mafter Oates fays
s true, you left him at St. Omers, but he
overtook you at Calais.

QOates. This Gentleman loft his Money at Calais,
and Father Zilliams did relieve him by my
means.

L.C.%. What fay you tothat ?

Hilfley. Why, my Lord, yes, it 1s true, I did
lofe my Money there, but it 1s nothing to ths
purpofe, for I will afirm, I was never in the Ship
with him in my Life.

Oates. 1 delire he may be asked, whether he
be 1n the Degree of a Prieft, or not?

L.C. 7. That would be a hard Queftion to
put to him, to make him accufe hunfelf. It
would bring him into danger of Treafon.

Mr. Juft, Pemberion, He 1s a Boy very fit to
make a Jeluit of.

L.C. 7. How could he then come to kaow
this ? -

Hilfloy, 1 confefs *us true, that Mr. Outes did
never come over with me. And I have Wit
nefles to prove, that they faw him there next
Day at St. Omers, andtwo or three fevera] Weelks
after.

Sir Cr. Levinz. Mr. Qates hath another Cit-
cumftance to prove it by.

Oates. Fle went from us by the way, and did
not come up with us to Londox,

Hilfley. 1know how he underftood this: There
was a Gentleman that the Witneffes will prove he
was very familiar with, the fecond of Aday, thac
told him.

L.C.7. Is that Gentleman here?

Hilfley. Here is one here to prove it.

L. C. % And did he tell them how you loft
your Money?

Hilfley. Yes, my Lord, I{uppofe fo.

L. C. 7. I fpeak ferioufly, 1 do not underftand
how he could come by thefe Things.

Payry. My Lord, I can teftify, if ic were Jaw-
ful for us to fwear, and prove that he was at
St. Omers that Day, when he fays he came over.

L.C. 7. What is your Name?

Parry. My Name is Filliam Parry,

L. C.¥. What Countryman are you?

Parry. 1 ama Flintfhire Man,

L.C. 7. When was he at St. Omers?

Parry. He was there that 25th Day, that Day
he fays hecams over.,

L. C. 7. Was he there all Day?

Parry, He did not ftir thence all the Day.

L. C. . How can you tell that?

Parry. 1 din’d with him 3 that Day he went
into the Infirmary, he did not go out of the
College, hewas fick.

Fenwick, Mr. Parry, How long did Mr. Qut:s
ftay there at St. Omers ¢

Parry. He ftaid dll after the 20th of Fune, 1
am fure; for on the 20th of Frne I know he was
prefent, by a very good Circumftance, he was at
an Action of ours, a Latin Play.

Oates. My Lord, as to this going into the In-
firmary at that time, I deny it. My Lord, (i
your Lordfhip pleafe) I will fhew that this Gen-
tleman 1s not onlya Vorary of the Jefuits, but
hath been one of the Sodality feveral Years. And
they have Difpenfations, and are bound by an im-

plicit Obedienceto fay what the Jefuits bid them,
who are their Superiors.

L. C 7.
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L.C. 7. What fay you to the 2oth of Fuze,
the time he fays you were there at the feeing of
the Play ?

Qates. My Lord, as to that twentieth of Fuue,
1 was there, and there was an Action at that
time, for I was then returned thither from Lon-
doir,

Parry. 1 deny all that, for he never ftirr’d out
of the College.

L.C. 7. Young Man, in what Quality were
you there?

Parry, I wasa Swdent there, a Poet.

L.C.¥. How can you lay he did not fur
thence all the while?

Parry. 1 know by a particular thing; I din’d
and fupp’d with him there, but when he was in
the Infirmary 3 but the particular paflage was this,
He did there fall out with a Gentleman that was
in the Infirmary too.

L. C. ¥. When was that?

>ary. It was at the time that he fays he came
away,

L.C.¥. When went he in?

Pazry. The 25th of April, Old Stile, and [taid
a matter of three or four Days.

Oztes. Will you be pleafed to take notice of
this? he fays that Hilfley lett me at St. Omers
when he came away, and that the next Day he
dined with me, and that I went into the Infir-
mary, which, he fays, was the 25th of April,
Old Siile. Now we will run to argue ad bomi-
aen s 1F this were the 25th of Aprily Old Stile,
how did Mr, #illiams meet with Mr, Hilfley at
Calais, and reftore him his Money, when the
24th Old Stile Mr. Williams was at the Con-
{ult in Lesdon ¢

L.C. ¥. When was itthatyou fay Mr. Hilfley
was at St. Qaiers £

Feinick, Anfwer my Lord’s Queftion.

Paivy. He went away the 24th of dpril, as 1

remember.
L.C.¥. What, Old Stile?

Parry. Yes, Old Stile according to the reckon-
ing there,

Oates. Bur, my Lord, upon the Qath that I
have taken ; if he mean New Stile, all that this
Gentleman hath faid about this is falfe, except that
I was there the 20th of Fune.

L.C.¥. Was it New Stile or OId Stile that
you fay Mr, Hilfley went away ¢

Mr. Recorder. He does not know New Stile
from OId Stile.

Parry. He went the 24th, that is the Old Sule
beyond Sea.

IVkitehread. 1 do defire he may anfwer, whe-
ther he does know that Mr. QOafes was cver out
of the Houle fromf the time he came In Decemoer
till Fzue, but one INight. |

Parry. No, he never was out but one Night
at [V atlon.

L. C. ¥. From what time to what time?

Parry. It was but two Days and one Night.

I.. C.¥. What time was it that he was there
firfl?

Pariy. He came thither in December.

I.C.%. And did he flay there all the while?

Perry. Hedid not ftir from the College il the
end of Fane and never went out but a Day or
two, as I know of.

L. C.%. Not as you know of; but might not
he go, and you not know of it:

Parry. I am fure of it.

L. C. ¥. How can you tell ?

Parry. Not a Scholar goes from thence to
Lngland, but the whole College rings of it?

Gavan. And then, my Lord, when they go
out they go in fecular Clothes, that none muft
know when any Perfon leaves the College,
~ Qates. My Lord, in fuch cafes, tho ’ris true .
in a general Senfe, yerit is bur a general Rule,
and every general Rule admits of its Exceptions,
and my Cafe was a particular Exception, I put
on the Habit of the Houfe as foon as I did return
from Londou, and did not appear as 1t I had gone
out of the Houfe, nor did I know that 1t was
known that I had been out; for I did never ap-
pear in the College in a fecular Habit.

Whitebread, What his Clothes were, does not
change the Place he fac in; he being Ancienter
than the Boys, had a privilege to {it ina parti-
cular Place, which muft be known to all the
Houfe at Dinner and Supper. He was vifible
every Day there.

L. C.}. 1 do believe it; and therefore he fays,
not only that he was reported to be there, butthat
he faw lim there almolt every Day.

Thein ancther Witnefs for the Prifoner food np.

L.C.F. What fay you, Young Lad?

Doddiugten. 1 fay, my Lord

L. C. . What is your Name?

Doddingten. Doddington.

Oates. Pray, my Lord, ask him if he went by
that Name at St. Owers,

My, Tuft. Pemberton. ¥What was your Name at
St. Omers ¢

Doddington. My Name was Hollis there,

L. C. 7. How old are vou?

Doddington. Eighteen Yearsand an halr.

L.C."¥. What can you fay? Where was Mr.
Qates ¢

Doddington. He never went out of the Col-
lege, but one Night to #atton, till the end of
Fune,

L. C.¥. When came he into the College ?

Doddington. A fortnight before Chrifimas, 1
did not mind the Day, he fays himfelf it was the
1oth of December.

L. C.. Was he there till Fune ?

Doddington. Yes, he never went out till juie
but one Night.

L. C. . Where was that? At Pation ¢

Doddington. Yes, my Lord.

L. C.%. How do you know that ¢

Doddigton. 1 only know that by what all the
Houfe faid.

L. C. 7. Did you {ee him every Day, except
that Day ?

Doddington. I cannot fay I faw him every Day,
becaufe he was in the Infirmary once, and he
was there that very Day after Mr. Hilfley went
away.

L.C.% What Day was it that Mr, Hilfley

went away ?

Doddington, The 24th of April New Stile;
and that Day he fell fick, and went into the ln-
firmary the next.

L. C. ¥. What Day of the Week was that?

Doddington. It was of a Sunday.

L.C.7. And when did you fee Mr, Qates¢

Doddington. On Monday or Tuefday, 1 am not
cereain,

L.C.¥. How oftendid you fee him from the
24th of April to Fune? Did you fee him every
other Day?

Doddingion,
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Doddington, Yes, that Iam fure of for every
other Day, I am not certain every Day.

L.C.F. Areyou pofitive? |

Yury. We defire to know what time of the
Year he was in the Infirmary.

Doddington, 1 difcourfed with him in the Infir-
mary two or three Days after Mr. Hilfley went
away.

L}t C. ¥. But what time of the Year was it ?

Doddington. Fe was there firft In Winter, and
then afterwards he was in at this time, which was
in April.

L. C. 5. Have you any moreto fay?

Doddington. 1 can fay more, that I faw Mr.
Outes the fecond of May with one Blood or Bur-
naby, and 1 am fure I faw him in his Company.

L.C. 5. Where did you fee him?

Deddington. 1 faw him walking in the Garden
with Mr. Burnaby.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton,
to England ¢ |

Doddington. 1 came over the 24th of April.

L. C.¥. How long have you been in England ¢

Doddington. About two Months,

My, Fuft. Pemberton. Why did you come over?
were you {ent for over upon this occafion !

Doddington. No, 1 was not.

My, Fuft, Pemberson. Why did you come
over?

Doddington. 1 came over partly upon the King's
Proclamation.

L. C. ¥. What Proclamation was that ?

L. C.'#. North. That thofe that were in the
Seminaries fhould come over again.

Doddington. And partly becaufe I had not my

Health.
Fenwick. Mr. Gifford, what do you know

about Mr. Oates’s coming from St. Omers €

L. C. ¥. When came you from St. Omers?

Gifford. 1 came over about 2 Month ago.

L. C. ¥. Upon what occafion?

Gifford. To juftify that Mr, Oates was there all
the while that he fays he was here.

L. C.¥. You fpeak likean honeft Man, there
is no hurt in that.

Fenwick, We did {fend for him over.

L.C.¥. When did youfee Mr. Oates there?

Gifferd. 1{aw him the firftof May wasTwelve-
month with us, and the 211t of Apri.

L.C.%¥. And how long after that ¢
~ Gifford. T was in his Company for a whole

Week after, I am {fure.

L. C. . You fay the firft of Mayhe was there,
how can you tell?

Gifford. The firft of AMay there came one Mr.
Burnaby to the College, and he fell into Acquain-
tance with him, and I faw him with him: He
was with us an whole Week at lealt every Day
after Dinner: We have an hour always after
Dinner to recreate in, and this Gentleman was
there with us, and Mr. Burnaby; for Mr. Oales
feeing us in the Garden at firfty put himfelf into
our Company, and kept with us.

L.C.F7. Was he not in the Infirmary ?

Gifford. Not at that time, my Lord.

L. C.J. When was he in the Infirmary ¢

Gifford. The Day after Hilfley went away.

L. C. 7. Doyou remember that?
Gifford. Yes, 1 do. -*

L. C. #. North. How long did he ftay in the

Infirmary ?

~ Parry. About three Days,

When did you come in-

L.C.¥. And for how long together did you
fee him after Mr. Hilfley's Departure?

Gifford. 1can fwear that I faw him at leaft ¢ill
“une, if I can believe my own Eyes.

L.C.¥. Your Religion does not allow you
to believe your own Eyes.

Gifford. 1 can in my Confcience fay, I believe
I did fee him every Day, or every other Day.

L. C. . Which do you fay, Did you fee him
every other Day, or every Day.

Gifferd. 1f I fay, I faw him every other Day,
that is-fuffictent.

L.C.¥. Do you know that he went out of the
College at anytime?

Gifferd. Yes, he went for one Night.

L. C.¥. Whither?

Gifford. To a place called P atton.

L.C.¥F. Whatdid he go thither for?

Gifford. For his Relaxation.

L.C. . How came you to take fuch particu-
lar notice of him, that he was there ?

Gifferd. 1t is impoflible but we fhould fee him,
and take notice of him, for we Dine all together
in one Room, and we could not but take notice
jt;:fl']chirn,, for he was at a diftinct Table by him-
elf.

L.C.}. How many are there that Dine in one
Room ¢

Gifford. One hundred and fifty.

L. C. 7. How could you know him, when
there were fo many?

Gifford. He was at a diftinét Table by himflf,
between the Boys and the Religious.

Then flood up another, one Palmer.

L.C. F. Well, what do you ask him?

Fenwick, The fame Queftion as the reft.

L.C. ¥. When came you from St. Omers?

Palmer. 1 came two or three Months ago.

L. C.¥. Why did you come over ?

Palmer. I had no mind to ftay any longer.

L. C.7. Where does your Father live ?

Palmer. By Windfor.

L.C.JF. When did you fee Mafter Oates ?

Palmer. 1 faw him the firft Day of May, New
Stile, and 1 know it for a particular Reafon;
there were Strangers dined at the College that
Day, whereupon Mafter Oates, and feveral other
Boys played at Nine-Pins, i the Afternoon, I
faw them.

L.C.7. Why, you do not count all Boys
there, do you?

Palmer. All but thofe that are the Religious.

L. C. ¥. Why, you did not count Mafter Qates
2 Boy, did you?

Palmer. He was none of the Religious: He
fat indeed at a Table by himfelf, but he went to

School with the Boys, and we called all the Scho-
lars Boys.

L.C. ¥. How often did you fee him? -

Palmer, 1l tell your Lordfhip, I faw him the
firlt of May, for that Reafon; the fecond of Aday
I faw him with Mafter Burnaby, a Man that he
had never feen in all his Life before, and we

wondred that he had fo much impudence to infi-
nuate himfelf into his Company.

L.C.7. What is he?

. Palmer. He 1s a Gentleman that is now in

Flanders.

L.C. 7. How do you know that Mr. Ostes
had no Acquaintance with him before?

l Palmer.
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Palier, Becaufe 1 know he was in England,
and came over while Mafter Oates was actually
at St. Onmeers.

L. C. F. But he might be of his Acquaintance
in Eugland,

Palmer. 1 heard Mafter Burnaby fay, he never
1w Mafter Oates in all his life before.  The fe-
cond of May I faw him at the Action, the ffth
of Aay Mafter Killinbeck went away, and I faw
Mafter Qates actually there then, and one Malfter
Posle went away 3 and I remember Oates was
there for a particular Reafon s he was 2 kind of
a weak Man, fomething foft, not over-wile, and
we were asking him, why he would go away by
himlelf 3 and talking of it afterwards, fays Malter
Oates, (I will not fay pofitively thofe were the
words, but that was the fenfe} He dues not go a-
lsi:e, for there goes Efquire Poole and Efquire Fool
trretber,  The eleventh Day we had an Adtion,
a Llay alfo, whercupon there was a particular
place for the Muficians to play in, where no one
e was to fit; Mafter Oates would fit there,
and thereupon there was one Mafter atfou quar-
rel’d with him, and they had like to bave
fought.

L. C. . This was the r1th of AMay?

Palmer. Yes, my Lord, New Stile, and the
other was the sth. ' '

L.C.%. Butyou faw him betwixt that Time

Palmer. Yes, my Lord, | did.

L. C. ¥. And fo for how long?
Palmer. I faw him at tour o’clock 1n a Morn-

ing, reading Facher Zorfley’s Gontrovetfies, and
{o for feveral Days together.
Fenwick., Did he go away before Fuie £
Pulmer. No, hedid never ftir ull Fune,
Sir Cr. Levinz. Did not you go fometime by

the Name of Sanders or Hill ¢
Palmer. No, only by the Name of Thomas

Palmer. _ o
Sir Cr. Levinzg, Hark you, Sir, who maintained
you at St. Omers¢ Do not you know one Mr.
Caryl ¢ o
Palner. No, my Father mamntained me.
L.C.¥. Who s your Father ?
Palmer. Sir Philip Palmer. |
L. C. F. What Country Gentleman is he?

Palmer. Buckinghamfhire.

Mr. Jult, Penberton. He is Cup-bearer to the
King,
Then [ffood up one Mafter Cox.

I, C. ¥. How long have you been from Saint

Omers ¢
Cox. Two Months.
L €. ¥. What Country-man are you?

Cox. 1 was born at Bruffels, to ferve you,
L. C. ¥. Do you know Mafter Oates €
Cox. Yes, 1did, very well,

L.C. % Where?

Cox. At St. Qiners.

L. C.F. When?
Cox., Ij;eft St. Omers Seven Months ago, and

I came away in the Month of Nevember, after
Mafter Oates. My Lord, 1 can prove that he was
there in April and May. 1 went from St. Omers
to Beuffels, and from Biraffels 1 came ftraight to

London,
L. C. . But when did you {ee Mafter Oates

there ? o
Cox, I can prove I faw him at St. Onters, when

he fays he was in England, and that by this Cir-
cumftance; Mafter Poo/, who was my Mulick-

Mafter, was fick there, and Mafter Oares was
often with him.

L. C. 7. Were you there all the Time he was
there ?

Cox. Yes, I was, till he went away.

L. C.7. When did he go away ?

; ?ox. Maller Oates went away in the Month of
uly.

L. C. 7. Are you fure of that?

Cox. Yes, my Lord, Iam.

L.C. 7. Not in Tune ?

Cex. No, my Lord, 7uly.

L. C. ¥. Why he differs from all the reft.

Cox. My Lord, I can prove he was at St. O-
mers when he fays he was in England.

L. C. . Why, what Month did he go away?

Cox. My Lord, 1 can prove that Mr. Qates
was never ablent from St. Omers, till he went a-
way for good and all. |

L. C. 7. When was that ?

Cox. He went after the Confult of the Jefuigs,
which he fays was in England in April.

L.C, 7. Come, come, anfwer me plainly, if
you can, in what Month Mr. Oates left St
Omers ¢

Cox. I fay, Mr, Qates was never abfent from
St. Omers, till the Confult of the Jefuits was over,
which he hath confefled himfelf to be at.

L. C. . When was that?

Cox. Why it was after May, ’tis no matter
what the Month was, whether Fuwe or Fuly.
(At which the People langhed.)

Cox. What do you laugh at, Sws? why, fup-
pofe I miftake the Month, it is no matter.

L. C.}. Look you, we are now upon a Que-
ftion of Time, and you cannot tell that a Man
1s there at a certain Time, unlefs you can prove
the certain Time when he came away,

Cox. I can prove, that he was there till after
the Confult of the Jefuits. (Aud then the People
laugbed again.)

L. C. 7. Ay, I believe you there, ’ts enough
for you, but you have done a very great Preju-
dice to thofe Perfons that you came for, for you
come to prove the Conclufion, but do not take
notice of what Mediums you are to ufe. Say you,
if 1 can but prove that he was there till after the
Confult of the Jefuits, that is the Thing in Que-
ftion, and I need no more 3 but this is ferving a
Turn only: Pray can you tell me what Month
he came to St. Omers ¢

Cox. Yes, he came thither in the Month of
December,

L.C. . And when did he go away again ?

Cox. He was never abfent from St. Qmers, out
of the View of e Scholars, except one Night,
that he went to /#atton, and one Day, when he
was in the Infirmary, but even at that Time he
was feen by fome of the Scholats.

L. G. ¥. Yet you cannot tell the Time that he
went away ?

Cox. He was never abfent all the while,

Mr. Jult. #indbam, Do you know when the
Confult of the Jefuits was? upon what Day ¢

Cox. He fays he went away with Mr, Hilfley,
but he did not, 1 can prove the contrary.

L. C. ¥. No, no, he fays he followed him,
and overteck him at Calais.

Cox. That is falfe, and I can prove it by this
Circumftance: One Mr. Congueft was to go for
England that Day, and he came into the Refe-
&ary, and told us a Story of this Mr. Congueff’s

being
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being unwilling to rife in the Morning to go for
England,

L. C. . When did he tell that Story ?

Cox. That Day that he was to go for Englaud.

L. C.f. How long was that after Mr. Hilfley
went away ?

Cox. The Day after.

Gavan. When was the Time that Mr. Congreft
went for Eugland ?

Cox. In the Month of May, as we count.

L. C. 7. What time in the Month of May ¢

Cox. It was the sth: And he fays, that Mr.,
Pool and Mr. Nevil were in England with him,
but I can teftify that they were not abfent, for one
of them was my Mufick-mafter.

L.C. 7. Was he there all May?

Cox. Yes, that [ can teftify upon my Oath.

L. C. % And all Fune ? -

Cox. Yes, my Lord, but if I prove he was not
in Aay in England 1t 1s {ufficient.

L. C. 7. Upon my word, you deferve a (harp
Penance, for running into that Fault two or three
times : Y ou have done them no Kindnefs in this
matter.

Gavai. 1f your Lordfhip will take Advantage
of every Circumf{tance, young Men may not re-
member the particular Day of his going away.

L. C.7. But you hear how he delivers his E-
vidence, tis as if he had been inftrufted, You
muft come and prove that QOafes was not in Eig-
land in dpril and May, and that will do our Bu.
finels 5 for he tells you, it is fufficient; but we
will have 1t proved to fatisfy us,

Cox. But why {hould ! fay more than I know ?

L. C. 7. Youmean, more than you are inftru-
¢ted about. I only ask you one fhore Queftion,
Do you know when Mr. Oates left St. Omers ?
Name the Month,

Gavan. 1f youdon’t remember the Time, fay fo,

Gox. My Lord, T cannot remember it.

L.C. 7. Then call another. Fho flosd up.

Qates. My Lord, 1 defire they may be examined
apart.

L. C. 7. You need not trouble yourfelf about
that,  7/bat 15 sour Name?

Billing. My Name is Thomas Billing.

L. C. 7. When came you from St. Omers ¢

Bilitng, I came three Months ago, I think, my
Lord.

L.C. ¥. Do you know Mr. Qates?

Billing. Yes, my Lord, very well.

L. C.F. When did you fee him at St. Omers ¢

Billing. My Lord, I {faw him when he came,
the fame Day, or the Day after,

L. C. 7. When was that?

billing. In December, my Lord, the roth of
December.

L. C. 7. And he ftaid there, how long?

Billing., Tl the lacter end of Fure.

L. C. 7. Was he never abfent ?

Billing, I can very well remember that he went
to Watton n the Chriftmas. T was then in the In-
firmary myfelf, and he and his Companion came
10 there to {ee us, and faid he had been at Z7aiton.

L. C. 7. But he was twice inthe Infirmary,
was he not ?

Billing. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. F. When was the fecond time ?

Billmg, The fecond time was in 4 #i/, 1 went
in the Week before Chriftmas: On St. Thomas of
Canterbury’s Day 1 came out again.

L. C. 7. Butyou fay the fecond time wis in

April ¢

Billing, -Yes,

L.C.¥. How long was he there then ?

Billing. Truly 1 was not with him then, but ]
think three or four Days.

L. C. ¥. Were you in the College then ?

Billinz. Yes, my Lord, 1 was.

L. C.¥. Did you fec him in the College from
Time to Time?

Billing, Yes, 1did.

L. C. 7. How long?

Billing. For all the Time that he ftaid.

L.C. 7. How long was that?
Billing, “That was trom December, till the latter

end of Fuie.

L. C. 7. Was he there all May?

Billing. Yes, my Lord. He fays he was eight
Days in England, but he could not be fo, for he
entred himielf into the Sodality the 2s5th of
March, and not long after his Admiflion, he was
put to read every Swuday morning at Six o’clock.
And after that he began once to read, he never
was abfent from that Time tll the Time he went

away.,

L. C. 7. Why, did he read when he was fick ?

Billing. Fle was not fick upon the Sunday.

L. C. 7. You fay he was fick in dpiil 2

Billing, Yes, my Lord.

L. C. . But he was not f{ick of a Swiday, in
April ¢

Billing. He was only a little indifpofed, and
frequented the Infirmary in the Day-time for a
matter of three or four Days.

L. C. 7. Did heread, atthe Time he was fick.
in the Infirmary ?

Billing, He was not fick a whole Week,

L. C.f. Did 1t reach to a Sunday?

Billing., No, my Lord, that I remember,

L. C. 7. How long did he continue there?

Billing. ‘T1ll towards the latter end of Fuue,

L. C. ¥, Did you fee him once in two or thres
Days?

Bilting. Yes, my Lord, I did, conftantly. And
upon the 2d of May, I very particularly remem-
ber, looking out into the Garden, [ faw Mr. Blusu:
walking i the Garden, and Mr, Oates with him :
And oblerving him to be very intimately fami-
liar with him, I asked fome that were with me,
Does this Saumpfoir, for he went by that Name in
the College, fays I, does Sampfon know Dick
Bixnt ? No, faid they ; and we wondred at his
Confidence, having no greater Acquaintance ; I
faw him that Day, walking in the Garden with

that Bluis.

L. C. °¥. That was the 2d of May?

Billing. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. And he was conftantly in this Gentle-
man’s Company that Day ?

Billizg. Yes; and moreover the fame Day this
Sampfors was walking with one Fehu Rufbton in
the Garden, and feeing me walk alone, Thomas,
fays he, have you never a Companion? No,
Sampfon, faid I 1 Well, faid he, pr’ythee come to
us. So 1 was with him walking a little while,
and then this Blunt, and one Henry Howaid,
were playing one with another, throwing Stones
at one another’s Shins, At which he was dif-
pleafed, and faid, if they would not be quiet, he
would go tell the Reftor, Howard was hafty,
and {poke angrly to him, and faid, if he would
not be quiet, he would beat him : But Mr. Oates
perfifting, and daring of him, fays he, What, do
you dare me ? and comes up to him, and throws

up
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up Mr. Oates his Heels. With that Mr, Oates
Jook’d very fretfully upon him, and withdrew
himfelf into the Infirmary, as we thought, to
{peak to the Rector. And by thefe Particulars,
and fuch as thefe, I remember to have feen him
every Day, one Day with another, or every other
Day, at St. Quers, tlll he wentaway, which was

in fune.

Then flood up another, one Townley,

L. C.#. Come, Mr. Zownly, do you know
Mr. Qates 2

Townley. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. When came you from St. Omers ?

To-onley. 1 came a Week before Eaffer,

L. C. F. When {faw you this fame Mr. Oates
at St. Omers ¢

Tozonley. 1 faw him 1n

L.C. 7. Whenelfe?

Towiley, In May.

L.C. 7. Whenelfe?

Towwnley, In April.

L. C.J. Was he there in all April, all May,
and all Fune ¢

Towiley. No, not all Fane. He went away, as
I take it, about the 1oth of Fune.

L. C.’}. Pray, how often did you fee him?
Did you fee him every Day ?

Townley. 1 converfed with him every Day,
He was partly a Scholar, and partly a Father ;
and fat at a Table by himlelf, He went to School
as a Scholar; ’us rrue, indeed, he did not learn,
as the reft of the Boys did, but he wentto School,
as the Boysdid, and was at a Table from the Fa-
thers, as the Boys were, but apart and alone.

L. C. #. But how often did you fee him ? was
it every other Day ?

Townley. Yes, T believe 1 did.

L. C. ¥. What, for all dpri/, and all May ?

Townley, Yes.

L.C.F. How came you to take fuch parti-
cular Notice of it, that you can fay, you faw
him every other Day ?

Townley, If I conftantly dine with one, or if
he be at a fingle Table alone, he cannot be abfent,
but I muft take notice of it : And he was neither
as a Father nor as a Scholar, but betwixt both,
and therefore the more to be taken notice of,

L. C. }. This then you fay, He fitting by
himfelf, and being diftinét from all the others,
you might more eafily obferve his Abfence, than
any others, 'This is that you fay ?

Townley, Yes, my Lord.

L. C. ¥, You fay well. Call another.

Then ftood up one Fall.

L. C. 7. When came you from St. Omers 2
Fall. About Two Months ago:
L C. ¥. When did you fee Mr, Oates 2

Fall. | faw him whenI was in my Syntax, and
now Iam in Poetry.

L. C. ¥. What Month did you fee him in

‘all, When he came firlt, as I remember, it
was at Coriftmas.

L. C. 7. Chriftmas laft?

Fiali. No, it was Chrifimas was T'welve-month,
Chititmas 1647.

L. C. f. How long did you fee him there ?

Fall. T faw him there from that time till FJune,
only when he was at #atton.

L. C. ¥. Was he never fick ?
Vou. II.

T e,

Fall. I faw him in the Infirmary my felf.

L. C. . How can you tell when a Man is
fick ?

Fall. I do not pretend to that, but he was in
the Infirmary as a fick Man,

L. C. 7. How came you to take particular
notice of it 2

Fall, T took no particular notice, but I have
recollected my Memory.

L. C. ¥. Upon what Occafion?

Fall, Upon this Occafion,

L. C. 7. How often did you fee him ?

Fall. 1 faw him every Day.

L. C. ¥. How long have you been in the Con-
vent?

Fall. My Lord, 1 have been there two Years
and an half,

Then flood up John Hall,

L. C. ¥ When came you from St. Qmers ?
Hall. In Fuly, my Lord.

L. C. F. How long have you been there?
Hall. Scven Years, and upwards.

L. C. 7. How long is it fince you came from
thence ?

Hall. In Fuly, in the Year 1678,

L.C. f. And did you fee Mr, Qates there
then ?

Hall. No, my Lord.

L. C. J. When did you fee him there, then ?

Hall. 1 faw him there in April, May, and Fune.

L. C. 7. What, all Fune?

Hall. No, my Lord.

L. C. 7. How long in Fune?

Hall. He wentaway about the 23d of Fuse.

L. C. . How came you to take fuch particu-
lar notice Mr. Oates was there all this while ?

Hall. 1 wasa Servant there,

L. C. . In what Way?

Hall. A Refaltorian, a Butler.

L.C. 7. D you keep Books of what Meat
and Drink they had ?

Hall. No s I laid their Table, drew their
Beer, and laid the Bread.

L.C. 7. And did you ferve Mr. Qates with
Bread and Beer every Day ?

Hall. Yes, my Lord, moft Days, -

L. C. 7. Dud you ferve the Infirmary ?

Hafl. No, my Lord.

L. C. 7. But you fay you ferved him every
Day?

Hall. Yes, my Lord, the moft of the Time he
remained there ; Iacknowledge he was in the In-
firmary,

L. C. 7. Howlong ?

Hall. Four or five Days, or thereabouts.

L. C. j. Was he inthe College in April ?

Hall. Yes, my Lord, all along,

L.C. ¥. And all May?

Hall. Yes, my Lord, T faw him all Moy, I
laid his Table near the Door, at a particular
Place where he always fat.

Fury. My Lord, wedefire to know what Em-
ployment he is of now ?

L. C. J. Hall, what made you come into Engy
land ? :
Harl. My Lord, Thad not my Health there,
L. C. 7. How long had you lived there ?
Hall. Seven Years, and upwards,

L.C. 7. And when began you to be fick ?
Hall. I had not my Health at Chriffmas, in

Decenber 1677,
5 R
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L.CY.
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L. C. ¥ What Employment ‘have you herc,
for you had a good Place there?

Hall. 1 live at home, with my Father and my
Friends.

L.C.¥. What is your Father, where liveshe?

Hall, He is a Gentleman; he lives in Radnor-
Jhire.
- L. C. . When came you to London ¢

Hall. 1 came to England in Fuly 1678,

L. C. ¥. But you fay your Father is in Rad-
sorfhire, when came you here to Loudon ¢

Hall, 1 have been here about a Month, I was

fummoned upas a Witnefs.

Then one Dallifon was called, who did not ap-
pear s and one Manthel appearing, but [peak-
ing French, and no Englith, and an [nter-
preter not being ready, bewas for the prefent,
by the Confent of the Prifouers, fet afide. And
their flood up one Cooke.

L. C. #. When came you from St. Omers ¢

Ceoke. In Fanuary laft.

L. C. . And wherehave you been ever fince?

Cooke. Herein Town, my Lard.

L. C. ¥. Does your Father live here in Town?

Cooke, No, my Lord. |

L.C. ¥ Do your Friends live here ?

Cooke. No, my Lord. _

L. C. 7. You came over vpon this Occafion,
did you ?

Cooke. Yes, my Lord,

L. C.¥. When did you fee Mr., Oates there ?

Cooke. Ifaw him in laft Juae.

L.C. 7. And was he there In Jaly ?

Cooke. No, my Lord.

L. C. F. Whar time did he goaway ?

Coske. The 23d, the Eve of the Fealt of St.
“Yohn Baptyt.

L. €. 7. How do you know?

Coske. 1 made him fome Clothes.

L. C.¥. Are youa Taylor:

Cooke. Yes, _

L. C. ¥. How often did you fee him?

Cooke. Every Day.

L.C. ¥. How came he to keep you Company ?

Cooke. 1 could not choofe but fee him, fometimes
J faw him twenty tumes a Day.

L. C. ¥. Where was he in April ?

Cooke. e was there all April.

L. C.¥. He might be abfent one Day, or fo,

and you fee him not. |
Cooke. He ufed to come twice 2 Week to my

Shop for things.
L. C. 5. Was he there all May?

Cooke. Yes.

L.C.5. You fay you faw hum every other
Day ?

Cooke. Yes, my Lord,

Sir Cr. Levinz. Why, Sir, there are 150 Scho-
Jars there, how can you tell he was there fo
well 2

Mr. Juflt, Pemberion. Can you tell every one
that was there alf that ome ?

Cooke. No, Ican’t tell every one that wasthere,
but he was particalar enough.

L. C. }. Dic you live in Town as a Taylor,
ot in the College?

Caske. In the College,

Mr, Befzwoad. Was Mr, Qates at Halton. any
pare of the ume ?

Cooke. Yes, he was,

M, Belwood. YWhat Day ? what Month?

Cooke. I cannot juftly fay the Day, but it wag
in April.

L. G ¥. How long was he abfent ?

Cooke. Only one Night, as it fhall pleafe you;

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. Hark you, how came yoy
to take notice that he was at //a#ton one Night ?

Cooke. 1t was talked of among all the Scholars:

L. C. ¥. How can you remember what wag
faid a Year ago of one Man?

Gooke. 1t was reported all over the Houfe,

Gavan. In one Place of his Narrative, he fays
he came over with Str Fobn Warner and Sir Thy-
mas Praflon.

L. C. ¥. Noith. That is nothing to the Pur-
pofe. If you can contradict him in any thing
that hath been {wvorn here, do.

Gavan. 1f we can prove him a Perjured Man
at any time, we do our bufinefs.

L. C. 7. You fhould have proved him a Per.
jured Man before. How can we prove one Caufe
in another ? and then too he had been provided
to make his Defence. Can he come prepared to
make good every thing that he hath faid in his
Life ?

Oates. Can 1 come to make good my Evi-
dence againft all T have done in my Life ?

L. C. . Look you, if fo be he hath forfwormn
himfelf in any former Trial, if that would appear,
you have all the Reafon to make ufe of it ; but
you have not taken the right way, you fhould
have indicted him and tried him for Perjury inthe
former Trial, and then he could not have been
heard at all in this,

Fkitebread. We were all Prifoners clofe thw
up.
PL. C. 7. We know you have a Party ftrong
enough, and willing enough to conviét him of
Perjury, if they could ; but look you, Gentlemen,
here 1s the thing, if youcan give fuch Evidence
as will fatisfy the Jury that he was abfent all /£
prif and all Mav, you have faid a great thing.
His Evidence will be quite contradicted.

IWhitebread, He fays he came over with Sir
Thomas Prefton and Siv Fobn Warser, and others,

L: C. 7: He fays nothing of it now.

Oates. May 1t pleafe you, my Lord, I will
an{wer it, if you pleafe.

L. C. 7. They defire to know who came over
with you when you came over in Apsi/,

Oates. 1 will tell you, and to convince the
Court, that in neither of the Trials I did contra-
di¢t my felf, Ifay, I did name fome Perfons at one
time that I did not nameat another, becaufe fome
Mens Names did cccur to my mind at one time
than did at another. There came over with me
the Reltor of Liege, Sir Fobn /¥arner, Father
Williams, Father Alas/b, Father /7arner, Sv
Thomas Preflon, and others,

L. C. . This isdealing plainly with you.

Then food up one Bartlett:

L. C. 7. What Countryman are you ?

Bartfest, Tama Dutchman.

L. C. 7. Canyou fpeak Englifp 2

Bartlett. Yes, a little,

L. C. F. When came you from St, Omers ?

Bartlett. 1 came from St. Omers the 23d of
May, in the Year 1678, New Stile,

Gavan. My Lord, this Man 1s come over to
teftity, that Oates is perjured in a Circumflance
about Sir Fobi W arner.

L.C.7
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L. C. %. Heis to contradict Mr. Qafes’s Te-
ftimony, for he fays he came over with Sir Fobs
WWarner, and you fay Sir Fobn did not come at
that time.

Gavan. Yes.

L. C. F. Well, when did Sir Fobn Warner come
over from St. Omers ¢

Bartleit, Whither ¢

L. C. % Into England.

Bartlett. Sir Fobn Warner hath not been inEng-
Jand all May, and all the Month of April.

L. C. ¥. Where was he?

Bartlett. He was at Watton, 1 did fee him
there.

L. C. . Were you there all that time ?

Bartlett, Yes, 1 was,

L. C. . North. Wereyou thereall May ?

Bartlett. Yes, 1 was,

L.C. ¥. When did you come over into Exg-
Jond latt?

Bartlett. The 23d of May.

L. C. ¥. How long have you been in Eng-
Jand ¢

Bartl»tt, About five or fix Weeks,

L. ©;. ¥, What is your Name ?

Bartleit. My Name is Bartlett,

L. C.#. Butyou fay that you came over the
23d of May.

Bartett. I did not come over till che latter
end of Fune.

L. C. F. Juft now you faid, you came over the
23d of Way,

Bartlett, No, my Lord, I thought you had
asked the Queftion when Mr. Qates came over.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton, He fays {o, as your Lord-
thip fays before.

L. C. 7. How do youknow when Mr. QOates
came over?

Bartiett. 1 heard fo beyond Sea,

Then one Carlier, @ Foreigner, appearing, and
not being able to fpeak Englith, Mr. [iffer
the Under-Sheiiff of Middlelex was feor
iruly to interpret bis Teflimony.,

L.C. . Mr. Tiffer, you are only to tell us
what he fays: Ask him when he came into Zug-
land latt.

Tiffer. He fays, my Lord, it was between feven
and eight Weeks ago.

L. C. 7. Ask him if heknowswhere Sir Fobi
HWarner was, laft Summer wasa Year ago.

Tiffer. He fays, my Lord, he was in /¥atton for
two Years laft paft.

L. C. ¥. Ask him where he was all Aprd/ was
Twelvemonth, and all Mzy.

Tiffer. My Lord, he fays, that the laft Sun-
day in April Sir Fobn Farner was at his Houfe ac
IVatton.

L. C. %. And where was heall May?

Tifler. In the fame Houfe.

L. C. ¥. Ask him how he does know.

Tiffer My Lord, he faith, that he was a Gar-
dener there.

L. C. ¥. It feems he fays to the fame effet as
the laft Witnefs did. Call another. #ho did
fland up.

L. C. F. What s this Man’s Name?

Gavan, His Name 18 Charles Verron.

L. C.¥. Does he {peak any Englifh ¢

Gavan No, he does not.

L. C.¥. Then, Mr.T1er, ask himif heknows
You, II,

Sir Fobn Warner, and where he was April and
May was T welvemonth.

Tiffer. He fays, my Lord, that he was at 7/z1-
ton all April and May, and continued there till
September.

L.C. f. Priy ask this Man what Quality he

13 of there.

Tiffer. He goes along with a Veflel between
St. Omers and Fatton, and that he knows It 10
be true.

L.C. . Ask him if he did fee him every
Day.

Tiffer. He fays, generally, my Lord, daily.

L.C. . Ask him what Religion he is of.

Tiffer. He fays he isof the Romain Religion.

Then food up one Baillee,

L.C. 7. Askhim, Mr, Tiffr, if he knows Sir
Fobn Warner 5 and where he was all April and
May was Twelvemonth,

Tiffer. He fays the fame, that he was at /7al-
ton all April and May.

L. C.}. Ask him, how he can tell.

Tiffer. Hefayshe isa Servantof the Houfe.

L. C. 7. Anddid he fee him there daily ?

T1fler. My Lord, he fays that he gave him Di-
rections to make a Baftyment, that he 15 a Ma-
{on, and that he did give him Direétions daily
about it, and that he faw him every Day.

L. C. §. Look you, Gentlemen of the Jury, he
fpeaks to the fame purpofe that the three Wirmnel-
fes before fpoke to ;- he fays he is a Mafon, and
that he builta Baftymenc there by Diretion from
Sir Fobn IVarner, and that Sir Fobn Warier
came daily to give DireCtions about it.

Then ftood up John Jofeph.

L.C.F. Do you know Sir Toomas Preflyy ?
Fofeph. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. When did you fee him ?

Fofeph. In the Months of Apri/, May, and

Fune.

L. C. 7. Where was he then ?

Fofeph. He was at the Englifh Houfe at Licoe.

L.C. ¥. Did you fee him there ? How often
did you {ee him there ?

Jofeph. 1 faw him there every Day almoft,

L. C. 7. What Occafion had you to fee him ?

'What were you there?
Fofeph. 1 was Porter of the Gate.

L. C. 7. And did you fee him all che Month of
April ¢

Jofeph. Every Day, moft commonly,

L; C. 7. Dud you fee him once in 2 Day or
EWO :

Fofeph. ¥did fee him in April, May,and Fune,

L. C. F. That you might do; but did you
{ee him every Day?

Fofeph. Every Day, moft commonly, I can-
not abfolutely fay, but two or three Days in a
Week.

Sir Gr. Levinz. Pray do you know of any time
that Sir Zhomas Preflon was abfent from Liege 2

Fofeph. He was in the Time of Vacancy.

Sir Cr. Lewvinz, Was he not abfent in Apr#/ or
May ?

Fofeph, No, my Lord.

L. C. F. When are the Vacancies ?

Foferh. In Auguff, my Lord.

Then flood up one Peter Carpenteer.

L. C. }. Do you know Sir Tho. Prefton 2
5R 2 Carpenteer;
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Carpenteer. Yes, my Lord, very well,

L. C. ¥. Where did you know him?

Carpenteer. 1 knew him at Liege, ‘_

L.C. ¥. How often did you fee him there n
April and May ¢

Caspenteer. Every Day I faw him there, all 4-
pril and May.

L. C. 7. What Office had you there?

Carpenteer. 1 was Caterer.,

Gavan. My Lord, we have no more Witneffes
as to this Point, But, my Lord, my Cafe is dif-
ferent from the others: Mr. Oales fays he did not
fec me in the Congregation, but he fays, he after-
wards faw my Hand to the Confult : Now, my
Lord, 1 have a Witnefs to prove that I was at
that time at 2Wolverbampton in Staffordfbire. No
body hath a Right to fit in the Congregation till
he become a profeffed Jefuir, which at that time I
was not.

L. C. F. He does not charge you to have been
there, tho’ he fays he faw your Hand to 1.

Gavan, My Lord, I was then in the Country.

L. G. F. North. That will do you fome, and
yet but little Service, if you can prove your felt
at P olverbampton at that time ; bue call your Wit-
nefles.

L C.¥. Mr. Gauan, he fays he faw a Letter
of yours, giving an Account how Aflairs {tood
in Staffordfbire and Shropfbire,and that afterwards
in Fuly, and before that Gentleman, Mr. 4/bby,
went to the Bath, he heard you difcourfe ot the
fame Matter: And though he cannot charge his
Memory to fay he faw you the 2.3th of April, yet,
fays he, I did fee his Hand to the Confult; and
being asked how he knew your Hand, he fayshe
knew it by your writiag a Bill of Exchange 1n
his Prefeace.

Gav.an. I could not {ign the Confult at Loxdon,
and not be at Londor.

L. C. #. North. 1believe in {uch a Bufinefs
you care not how many Hands you have ; but we
will not prevent you calling your Witnefles: You
are upon your Life, don’t fpend the Time, call
them quickly.

L. C. 7. What do you call them to prove:

Gavan. Toprove that | was at 7Polverbampion
the 2.th and 2 5th of April.

L. C.¥. Pray hear what he fays himfelf. You
{ay, Sir, you faw his Hand to the Confult that
was in Agril s pray, when was it that you faw
it ?

Qates. It was 1n Fuue or Fuly.

L. C. . North. Youmight fet your Hand af-
terwards to i, If you were not there then.

L. C. ¥. You {ay you were then in Staffordfbire,
and might not you fet your Hand afterwards when
youcame to Town? [ will tell you, Mr. Gavan,
in April they met, and had fuch a Relolution ;
yeu were then in Staffordfhire 5 might not you
come to Town in Fuly following, and fet your
Jland to what was agreed in 4pril before? And
you cannot contradict him, but by thewing that
all Fune and Fuly you were not here: For if you
prove your felf never fo much to have been at

Folverbampton 1n April, that will not ferve the
‘Turn.  You {eern to make a very great Defence
of this : All that Mr. Oates fays is, that the 24th
of April he was prefent where chere was a Confult
had about the Death of the King, and divers Per-
fons fet their Hands to the Refolve, Mr. Gavan

afterwards was 1n Town, and then, fays he, I
raw his Hand fet to the Confult : I will not charge

my Memory to fay he was prefent, but T will
tell you why 1 believe it was his Hand, becaufe
I faw him draw a Bill of Exchange, and that
was julk like the fame Hand.

Guvan, Ay but, my Lord, I was not here in
Apri, |

L. C. . But this proves, in effect, that you fet
your Hand to the thing afterwards. And now
if you thould prove your felf never {o.plainly not
to have been there in 4pril, you do not come to
the thing ¢ 1t 1s full a Non lignet, whether you
were here Fuly, orno.  And Mr, Gates does not
pofitively charge you as to April. Well, call your
Witnefles, and prove what you will, -

Catharine Winford wwas called, and appeared.

Gavan, 1 defire you would be pleafed to ask
her, where 1 was the 29d of Fuly?

Winford. My Lord, [am very {ure he was a
Sojourner at our Houfe the moft part of the
Summer, in Fuize and Fuly both: In Faly the
2 2d he went away from my Houle, and took a-
nother Lodging more convenient for that which
he had to do.

L.C.f. Where? In what Town was this ?

Winford, At Iolverbampton in Staffordfbire.

L. C. 7. Was he never away from you all that
Time ?

Winferd, No 3 and then he went to another
Lodeing 1n the Town.

L.C.f. Do you fay that he fojourned with
you all Fune and Fuly till the 23d?

Winferd, He fojourned with me longer; but [
only name thole Months, becaufe they are only
1n Qucttion,

L. C. ¥. Where did he go when he went from

ou?
! Winford. He took another Iodging in the
Town.

L. C. ¥. And did you fee him then ?

Windford. 1{aw him then every Day, orevery
other Day.

L. C. 7. Are you a Roman Catholick?

JVinford. Yes, my Lord, Iam fo.

L. C. ¥. Call another.,

Gavan. Call Mary Poole,  [WWho flood up.]

L. C. 7. Do you know Mr. Gavan ?

Posle. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. J. How long have you known him?
Poole. This Six or Seven Years.

L. C. ¥. Pray do you know where he wasthis
time Twelvemonth ?

Poolz. He was at Mrs, Huford’s Houle ar
IV olverbampton,

L. C. ¥. How do you know?

Poole. T was a Servant there in the Houfe.

L. C. f. And where was he in April ?

Poole. He was at my Miftrefs’s Foufe.

L. C, 7. And where was he in May ?

Pooie. My Lord, I believe he was there.

L.C. 7. And why do you believe he was
there?

Poolz, Becaufe I don’t remember his going
forth, till the latter end of Yuly, and he was there
in Fune too.

L. C. . You anfwer readily, as to Fuwe and

July, why did you ftick at the Month of Mas,
more than the other Months ? for you know,

when I asked you where he was in 4p#il, then
you faid he was at home; why do you doub:
whether he was there in May, or no? pray tell
us why it is not as certain to you that he was

N0k
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not there in May, as that he was there in Fune 2
Why do you doubt more of ice

Poole. 1 do not doubt but that he was there.,

L. C. 7. Butr why did you not an{wer then as
readily to the one, as to the other ?

Poole. My Lord, any one may miftake,

L. C. §. This you were not prepared for, and
it was a Queftion you did not come ready to an-~
fver ; Are you a Roman Catholick ?

Poole. Yes, my Lord. [ Here the People laugh'd. ]

L. C. . Look you, you muft know there is
no other Ule to be made of it, but only to thew,
that Proteftants are {o averfe to Popery in Eznp-
land, that they will not endure a Roman Catho-
lick in England : But they are good Evidence,
and competent Witnefles, I muft tell you that,
and no Man muft deny it; for tho’ you deny
Heaven to us,* yet we will not deny Heaven to
you, nor Witneffes; tho’ you fay Hereticks will
be damn'd, yet we hope they will never, while
they do not follow your Pratices. [t which
the People gave a great Shout. ]

L. C. %. You muft pardon the People’s Shout-
ing ; for you have turned their Hearts fo, that
there is no Living for a Papift in England, 1 will
maintain it. [ And then the People fhouted again.]
You fhall have all the Juftice that can be, and
all the Favour the Law will allow.

Gavan. If there be but a Place for us in Hea-
ven, I am contented : My Lord, 1 defire you
will be pleafed to ask this Mrs. Catbarine Winford,
whether the does not remember that 1 came from
my Lord Affon’s the Monday before.

L. C F. Mus Winford, what fay you? do you
remember any Paffages about the Time he left
your Houfe?

Winford. My Lord, I did not know direétly
and politively what I fhould come to anfwer, and
therefore I cannot recolleét myfelf,

L.C.}. Do you know that he went to any
Geneleman's Houfe fome time before he left your

Houfe?

Winford. Yes, my Lord, he went often a.
broad.

L.C.%. To whole?

Winford. To my Loerd Affen’s.

L. C. f. How long before ?

JVinford. 1 cannot tell.

L. C. 7. How long did he ftay at my Lord's?
Did he ever ftay Five or Six Days ?

Wiiiford. 1 cannot tell,

‘L. C. ¥. My Meaning is this, in plain Eng-
lih, to ask you plainly, and you ought in Con-
feienice to fpeak the Truth as much as if you were
upon your Qath; for you are in the Prefence of
God, who will judge you as feverely for a Falf-
hood in this Cafe, as in the other : I would zsk
you whether he could not poffibly be abfent, and
mase a Step to London, and you be never the
wifer ?

Winford. My Lord, I am as confident as I can
be of any thing in the World, of the contrary,

L. C. ¥. Might not he be in London the latcer
erd of June or Fuly, and you not know it, when
he pretended to go to my Lord Affen’s ?

Winford, 1 do not know, but I am very con-
hdent he did not.

L.C. ¥. But was he abfent long enough to
have done it? Can you charge your Memory
with that ?

Winford, Tt was pofiible it might be fo, but I
am confident it was nor, becaufe I ufed to order

my Maid to get him his Linen ready upon any
Journey, and he had none now.

Oates. My Lord, he took a Chamber to go
into the Exercife; now, my Lord, he taking a
Chamber on purpofe for this very thing, he might
pretend that, and come to London the while, and
they not Know it, becaufe he was fhut up; for
none are to come at them.

Winford. My Lord, 1 know not any fuch Thing
of him; but this is a Rule amongft them, that
when they are fo fhut up, if there be a neceffary
Occafion to come to them about any particular
Bufinefs, as fending them Linen, or fo, they have
Admittance to them.

L.C. 7. Were you employ’d upon any fuch
extraordinary Matter ?

Winford. My Lord, Iufed to go and fee him,
and carry him his Linen,

L. C. 7. And can you charge your Memory
with that?

Winferd: Yes, my Lord, I can.

L.C. 7. When? the latter end of Fuly?

Wnford: Yes, my Lord, I often went to fee
him then, when he was gone from my Houfz.

L. C. . Where was he for all the former pare
of Fuly, till thofe eight Days ?

Winfora., He was at my own Houle.

L. C. F. When went he firft into this reclufe
Way ?
. ?ff"z‘;ﬁrd. He went from my Houlfe the 23d of

uly. .
L.C. J. Was he not clofe, when he was with
you ?

Winford. No, my Lord.

L. C. . And the laft eight Days you had Ac-

cefs to him ? .

Wanferd, Yes, 1 had.

L. G. 7. T ask you, Are thefe People fhut up
at a certain Time, and there is no <oming to
them, upon any Occalion ?

W inford. My Lord, moft of thofe Days 1did
fee him, indeed he was fhut up, bur upon any
kind ot Bufinefs, as the carrying of Linen, and
fometimes a pair of Gloves, and other Things of
his own, or fometimes to fpeak with him abour
Bulinefs, we were admitted.

L. C. F. I fee your Confinements are not fo
great as you would make them to be, or he would
have us think : I ask you once more, whether
you can fyy, that during the Months of Fune and
July it was not poffible for him to make a Step
to Londen, and you never the wifer ?

Winford, 1am very confident he did not, he
was not abfent long enough to do it.

Sir Cr. Levinz, You faid juft now, you could
not fay pofitively, but he might be abfenc for five
or fix Days.

Winford, I do not believe he did 3 for he had

no Linen with him, which he ufed to have,
when he went to London.

L. C. ¥. But, fuppofing he had no Linen,
might he not go to London, and you not know
It ?

Winford, 1 can’t tell whether he was abfent,
or no, long enough to do it

Gavan, Pray, my Lord, let me fpeak; as I
live, an innocent Man will be loft elfe. He fays
expreflly, I was in Town in 7#ly; and gives this
Argument for it, That Mr. 4/bby was in Town,
and he met me with him,

L.C. ¥. No, no; Mr, Oates was not fo pofi-
tive : Ee fays, it was cither in June or Fuly; but

he
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he rather thinks it was Fuly. But, Miftrefs,
might not he, 1n the beginning of Fuly, be ab-
fent {o long, as a Man might go to London, and
return again ; 1n the firft three Weeks of Fuly, 1
mean ?

Winford, My Lord, I cannot charge my Me-
mory, becaufe 1 did not know what [ fhould be
asked, and {o could not recollect myfelf. I only
fay I am confident of i, becaufe he always told
me, when he went fuch a Journey, that 1 might
make Provifion of Linen to fit him for ir.

L. C. ¥. Your Reafons arc weak ; Becaufe he
ufed to tell you, that you might get him Lin-
en: Men, upon extraordinary Occafions, do
extraordinary things; fo that you are not to go-
vern yourfelt by what he ufed to do, in his ac-
quainting you, or you in providing his Linen.
This was no ordinary Errand, and therefore I
don’t ask you whether he had Linen from you,
or no; but you are only to charge yourfelf with
remembring whether he could not be abfent long;
enough out of your Sight, to have been fuch a
Journey 2

Gavan, Pray, my Lord, give me fair Play. He
dacs charge it exprefly, and is precife to a Day :
He faith, I was here in Fauly, after that Afhby was
come to Town, and before that he went out of
Town: And he fays, That Afbby came to Town
in the middle of Fuly, and went out of Town
about the latter end of Fuly, or beginning of
Axguft.  Now, my Lord, I fay this, he faying
that Afbby came to Town the middle of Fuly,
and {taid there a Fortnight, and then went to the
Bathy and that I came to Town while that he
was there; if I prove that Iwas in Staffordfbive
tfrom the 14th or 16th of 7uly, tothe end of the
Month, then I thall clear myfelf evidently ; for
he does, 1n effe, charge me to be here, fome
Time in that Fortnight’s Time, and 1 prove,
that all the latter Part of Fuly I was in the
Country.,

L. C. . He does not charge 1t to a Day, but
he fays it was about a Fortnight,

Oates. Mr. Afbby came to Town in the begin-
ning or middle of Fuly; 1 rather think it was
the middle, but I dare not, upon my QOath, be
pofitive, as to the Time; and in that Time
that Mr. Afbby ftaid in Town, Mr. Gavas came
to Loudon : For I remember, he faid he would
go and fee Father 4/bby, who wasthen at ///ild-
Loufe.

L. C. F. Prove where you were now, all Fu-
{v.  Call your Witneffes.

Gavan. 1 prove that 1 was at Zolverbampton,
from the 23d, to the end of the Month. .

L. C. 7. Call your Witnefles to prove where
you were the beginning, that can fpeak cxprefly
to It.

Gavan, My Lord, I have them not here.

L. €. 7. Why then would you make us lofe
all this Time?

Gavan. My Lord, I will tell you ; hear the
Words of an ingenuous Man : Being, as | was,
innocent, not knowing what they mtended to
charge me with, [, in my Mind, run over all
that I could imagine I had at any time done,
that they could lay hold on. If 1 had been guilty
of any Thing, my own Confcience would have
told me of it; .and I fhould have provided to
have given fome Anfwer to it : But being inno-
cent, | was to ranfack my Memory, to fum up all
the Paflages of my Lifc; where I had been, what

I had faid, what I had done, that would give
them any Occalion of accufing me. And becaufe
I did imagine they might think I was here the
24th of April, 1 brought Witnefles for thar; and
becaufe 1 did imagine that they might fpeak of
fome Confults in #pril, 1 fent up for fuch Wi
nefles, at my own Charge, as could teftify where
I was then.

L. C. ¥. But you have not one Proteftant, that
teftifies for you.

Gavan. And now, my Lord, I humbly caft
myfelf upon the Honour and Juftice of this Ho-
nourable and Juft Court; to which 1 {fubmic my
felf, with all my Heart and Soul, having ufed all
the Remedies | can, 1 have cleared myfelf, as
to the main Day, the 24th of 4pril, whereon all
the pretended Plot lies: And I'll bring Wit.
nefles that fhall fivear, 1 was not in Londen in
Auguft 5 and if my eternal Salvation lay upon i,
I could aver, I was not in Londonn : And I wifh
I may be made an Example of Juftice before all
the World (1n the Sight of God 1 fpeak it) if
I be not the moft insiocent Perfon in the World.
And, my Lord, feeing there is only his Quth
for it, and my Denial, I have only one De-
mand ; | don't know, whether it be an extrava-
gant one or no; if it be, 1 don’t defire to have jt
granted.

L. C. 7. What 1s that Demand ?

Gavan. You know, that in the beginrira of
the Church (this learned and jult Court muft
needs know that) that for One Uioufard Years
together, it was a Cuitom, aid grew to a con-
{tant Law, for the Trial of Ferluns acculea of
any Capital Offence, where there was only the
Accufer’s Qath, and the Acculed’s Deral,  for
the Prifoner to pur himfelt upor the 1rial of Or-
deal, to evidence his own fnnccency.

L. C. 7. North, We have no fuch Law now.

L.C. 7. Youare very fanciful, Mr. Gavan ;
you believe that your Cunning in asking fuch a
Thing, will take much with the Auditory ; buc
this is only an artificial Varnith: You may do
this with Hopes of having it take with thofe
that are Reman Catholicks, who are fo fuperfti-
tious as to believe Innocency upen fuch Defires ;
but we have a plain Way of underftanding here
in Eugland, and that help’d very much by the
Proteftant Religion : So that there 1s fcarce any
Artifice big enough to impofe upon vs.  Ycu
ask a Thing that founds much of a Pretence to
Innocency, and that it would be a mighty Suf-
fering, if you fhould mifcarry, becaufe you ask
that you know you can’t have. Our Eyes and
our Underftandings are left us, tho’ you do not
leave therr Underftandings to your Profelytes :
But you are miftaken, it you think to impofe
that upon us that you do upon them; and you
do fo impole upon them. But I'll tell you,
there 1s fcarce any Man with us that can be a
Papilt: For you cannot deceive and gull us, as
you have done all that you have perverted to
your Way,

Gavan. Is it any Harm, my Lord, to ask
whether | nught not be fo Tried ¢

L. C. . Narth. Look you here, Mr, Gavan,
the Time 1s far fpent; if you have any thing to
fay, we will hear you ; if you have any Witnefl-
fes, call them, and we will examine them: But
if not, the other Prifoners muft be admitted to

make their Dedence, as well as you.

Gavan,
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Gavan. All thefe Six can prove, that I was at
I olverhampton the lalt Week in Fuly,

Then another Witiefs frood up for bina,

Gavan. Where was 1 in Fuly?

Witnefs. 1 cannot {peak to all Fuly; but, my
Lord, I can declare, that Mr., Gevan was mn
Staffordfbire the laft Week of Fuly, every Day,
1 am conhdent.

L. C. §. Where was he, the firflt threc Weeks

in Fuly?

Witnefs. 1 cannot fpeak as to that; but m the
lat Week in Fuly, he came to an Apartment of
an Houfe that I lived 1n.

L. C. 7. Look you, Mr, Gavan, you {ce what
this Evidence is ; fhe fays, that you were 1n Szaf-
fordfbire the laft Week in Fuly, for you had an
Apartment in the Houfe the lived in.  Call ano-
ther, [ Who flood up.]

L. C. ¥. Where was Mr, Gavan in Fuly Iaft?

2 [Vitnefs. My Lord, 1 faw him myfclf, at the
latter end of Fuly, for very many Days; for he
was in a Room of the Houfe that I lived 1n, I
am fure, moft of the laft Wecek.

L.C.¥. Where was he the laft Fortnight ?

2 Witiefs. 1 am confident I faw him all the laft
Fortnight, but I cannot be pofitive.

L. C. ¥. Call another. [ #Who flood up.]

L.C. ¥. Where was Mr, Gavan in Fuly ?

g Witnefs. My Lord, [ lived iu the fame Town
with him, and I don’t remember that he was
out all Fuly, but the laft Week he was in our
Houle.

L.C.F. Well, call another. [ 1#7ho flood up. ]

L. C.¥. Where was Mr, Gavan 1n Fuly laft ?

4 Witnefs. He was, in July laft, the laft Week,
in a part of our Houfe.

L. C. ¥. So then he came home, from Londsi,
the 23d or 24th of Fuly, Well, Mr. Gavai, have
you any more Witnefles, to any other Purpofe?
For here are enough to this.

Gavan, No, my Lord.

L.C.F. Mr, Whitebread, have you any Wit~
neffes to call?

I7bitebread. My Lord, 1 have only this, and I
defire to be heard in this Point, to prove that
Mr, Qates was miftaken in his Evidence that he
oave at the lalt Trial, againlt Mr, freland,

L.C. ¥. Look you, I muit break in upon
you ; you have been told {o often, all of you have
been rtold it, and yet you are upon the former
Trials again.  You are now upon your Trial for
your Life, if you could have difproved any thing
that he faid at 2 former Trial, you fhould have
taken a Legal Way, and convidted him of Per-
jury 5 but now to charge him with a Printed Pa-

pery is not fair.  You mult fpeak to what he
fays now,

Whitebread. He {ays the fame now. But all
that I fay is this, If he be not honeft, he can be
Witnefs in no Cafe. ! fuppofe if any one can
prove him not Probus Teitis, his Teftimony s not
to be received in any Cate,

L. C. ¥. But how will you prove that? Come
on, {'ll teach you a little Logick 5 it you will
come to contradié a Witnels, you ought to do
it in a Matrer which Is the prefent Debate here s
for if you would convict him of ary thing that
he faid in Ireland’s Trial, we muft Try Ireland's
Caufe over again, But if you will fay any thing
againft what he fzys now, do.

Whitebread. That which I would alledge is this,
If he be convitted of Perjury in one Cafe, he s
not to be believed in another,

L. C. 7. Youfay right, if he be conviéted.

2V bitebread. He 13 not only then an Incompe-
tent Witnefs, for he cannot be faid to be probus

teftis, buc he is improbus, Now this is that I can
prove.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. Nay, you muft fhew i
by a Record.

L.C. ¥, You cannot have fo little Under-
ftanding ; you that have been, and were to be, fo
great a Vian among them ; had been Provincial,
and was to have been fomewhat elfe. I have told
you already, that to prove him to be a Man that
hath no Faith in him, he muft be Conviéted. You
muft have Indicted him, and Convifted him, of
the Thing wherein he did commit Perjury, and
then he had been prepared to jultify himfelf, But
fhall you come now, and at this your Trial, and
prove what he faid at Staley’s Trial, and Coleman’s
Trial, and freland’s Trial P And mult We examine
what Matters have received a Verdi®t and a Jude-
ment there? For, confider what will be the Cnﬁ-
fequence of 1t; 1f it thould be falfe, you there
Arraign a Verdit.  You fhould have convicted
him ot the Falthood firft,

Whitebread. 1 defire the Jury to take notice
that he does not flick to the Teftimony that he
gave then, for if he does, it was falle.

L. C. ¥. They muft not take notice of any
thing that was done ar a former Trial, unlefs it
be fpoken of now,

L. C. 7. Nerth. Do not call any Witnefles to
prove what he faid then, but to difprove whar he
hath faid now. -

L. C. F. "Tis a pretty hard matter to make a
Prielt underftand one, tor what I fee.  if the
Witnels {hall not gain Credit with the Jury, thac
he came over with Sir Thomas Prefton, Sir Fobn
Warnerr s 1t they are fatisfied by thofe many Wit-
nefles, Ten or T'welve, at leaft, that itis falfe,
they ought not to believe him; but as to that
Teltimony, they ought to believe your Wit-
nefles 5 but he s not prefently guilty of Perjury :
For if they fhould not give Credit to Mr. Qafos
you muft indi¢t him, and another Jury muft paf;
upon him, before he is convicted : For it is one
Thing to be Forfworn and Perjured, and ano-
ther Thing to be proved {o, and he is not pro-

ved to be {o, but by a Record for thar Pur-
pofe,

Harconrt. 1t fo be ourWitnefles can’t be Jook’d
upon as good Witnefles, then there can be no
Commerce abroad in any other Country.

L. C. 7. Theyare, no doubt, good Witneffes.
till they be proved otherwife; and they are Jeft
to the Jury to believe as they think ft.

Harconrt. Naw here are divers Things that are
brought againft myfelf, by Mr. Bedicwy, My,
Pirance, Mr. Oates, and Mr. Dazdale; if the
Witnefles that I bring, becaufe they are Romay

Catholicks, are notr good Witnefles, then ]
1n a hard Cafe, ° L Aam

L. C.J. North. Look then, you miftake the
Thing ; thofe that are not Witneffes, we dop’c
hear at all ; but our hearing them ar all, proves
that we look upon them as good Witnefles. By
when a Man 15 a Witnels, he is cither of morea
Credit, orof lefs Credit, according to the Circum-
ftances ; and "tis a proper Queftion to ask them,

whe-



864 83.Trialof Whitebread, Harcourt, Fenwick, 31Car.]I.

whether they are Roman Catholicks ? But they are

Witnefles, without all Queftion.

Harcourt. 1 fay, my Lord, thefe Perfons are
known to be every one of them very bad and fla-
gitious Perfons, and that every one of them have
undertaken this Courfe, meerly to get a Livel-
hood: They are Men of defperate Fortunes, they
oet a Living by fwearing faft, they find that the
beft Trade. | ‘

L. C. . Nerth. If you have any other Wit-
nefles, we will hear them : If you have no other
‘Witnefles, then we muft hear what the King’s
Counfel reply, and then it will be your Turn to

fay what you can in your Defence. _
Gavan. I have Witnefles here: It 1s not in-

deed a Pofitive Evidence, but a Negative Evi-
dence; and I have a Brother and a Sifter In
Town, and upon my Salvation I never came to
Town, but I came to their Houfe.

L.C. ¥. That will fignify nothing, Mr. Ha-
courty have you any more Witneffes? If you have

them, pray call them. |
Harcourt. *Tis in vain to call them, if they be

not t0 be believed, becaufe they are Roman Ca-
tholicks.

Sir Cr. Levinz. *Tis a Miftake, we do not re-
fufe any Witnefles, becaufe they are Roman Ca-
tholicks,

L. C. ¥. No, we have not refufed any one

Point yet.

L C. . North. If you have any more, pray -

call them, and don’t {pend the Time.

L. C. F. Call a Pricft or two, if youwill, we
will hear them.

Harcourt, Mr. Oates did accufe me of paying
Fourfcore Pounds at my Chamber, and he did fay
afterwards it was at }/ild- Houfe. 1 have Perfons
to juftify what was done at my own Chamber ;
and he fays Mr. Ireland was by, now here are
Witnefles to prove, that Mr. Ireland was in Staf-
fordfbire all the Month of Auguft, therefore he
could not be prefent.

L. C. ¥. Docs he fay any fuch thing now?

Mr. Fuft. Pciberton. That was urged before s
pray do not infift upon that, it hath receiv'd a
Trial.

L. C. F. Pll tell you what he fays, and I'll ask
him the Queftion : Dr. Oates, it is fuppofed by
your Teftimony, that Mr. Jreland and Mr. Har-
conrt were together, when this Fourfeore Pounds
was paid, for the Villains that went to #Wmndfor to
murder the King?

Oates. I never faid fuch a Word.

Harcourt. Here it is in the Tral.

L. C. 7. 11tand not by the printed Trial, it is
no Record in Law. In thort, Were Mr. Ireland
and Mr. Harcourt together at that Time?

Qates. No, they were not.

Gavan. He did then fay, that he did receive
of Mr. Ireland, the 2d of September, 205, that
he borrowed of him ; now the 2d of September
he was at Bofcabel.

Oates. My Lord, I was not pofitive as to the
Day ; but as near as I remember, (thofe were the
Words | faid) it was the 2d of September; but
whether it was the 1ft, 2d, 7th, 8th or gth, I
would not be politive in it.

Then the Prifoners called Pendrel and bis WVife,
and Gifford and bis Wife; and Gitford

frood up.
Gifford. My Lord, I was here the laft Seflions,

where I did teftify the fecing of Mr. Ireland in
Staffordflire, on the 24th of Auguft, Bartholomer-
Day, and the next Day after ; at which Time
Mr. Oates faid that he faw him here in Town,
But Mr. Oates could not be particular in every
Thing; but at lalt he came to a Circumftance,
and averred, that the 1ft or 2d of September he
did receive 205, of Mr, Ireland, in Harcourps
Chamber ; he faid it was about the Faft-Day.

Qates, That was as near as 1 remembred.

Gifford. Here is in Court at leaft fix People
that know it; 1 faw him feveral other of thofe
Days there ; but thefe fix People converfed with
him every Day.

hﬂ?‘ Fuft. Pemberton, How do you know all
that:

L.C. ¥. North. Come, come, you muft not
fpeak, as to what he faid in Jreland’s Trial,

L.C. ¥. What Time was it that Mr. Harcourt
and Mr. freland conferred together about this
fame Bufinefs ?

Oates, My Lord, I do not charge Ireland, but
I charge Harcourt with being at #ild- Houfe, and
that there Colemman met him, and that there was
the greateft Part of the Money, which was carried
back to Harconrt’s Chamber, and given to the
Perfon that was to carry it down to #7ndfor ; but
Mr. Coleman was gone away before, and had left
a Guinea behind him, which was aiven to the
Mefenger for Expedition,

L. C. . 1 am mftaken, if you have not tefti-
fied that fieland was In Town in Auguft and Sepe
tember with Harcourt,

Oates. Ireland took his Leave of London be-
twixt the 3th and the rath of duguf, as to go to
§¢. Omers.

L. C. 7. Here 15 the Matter, they muft have
Right, tho' there be never fo much Time loft,
and Patience fpent. Say they, We muft prove
and contradiCt Men by {uch Matters as we can ;
People may {wear downright Things, and ’ris
impoflible to contradi€t them ; but we will call
Witnefles to prove thofe Particulars that can
be proved : Say where Mr. Ireland was in Au-
guft.

Oates. He took his Leave of us in Town in
Augnft, and that was between the 8th and 12th,
at Harcourt’s Chamber.

L. C.7. What do you infer from Ireland’s be-
ing there then 7

Qates. Pl tell you what I defign in it : Your
Lordfhip may perceive that I did methodize my
Evidence according to the Times for I faid, this
was our Bufinels in April, this in Fuly, and now
we come to the Bufinefs of Auguff, faid I, we
took our Leaves of Mr. Ireland between the Sth
and 12th. Ifawd, in Fuly Mr. Fenwick was out
of Town, but then, if your Lordfhip remembers,
I fard, he was in Town, and took his Leave of
Mr, freland, between the 8th and the 12th of
Auguft.

L. C.F. Was Mr. Ireland in Fenwick’s Com-
pany at that Time in Augufi ?

Oates. Yes, my Lord, he was, when he took
his Leave,

L.C.%. Did they talk then of this Bufinefs?

Qates, They took their Leaves of one another,
put as to what particular Things of the Plot they
{poke about, I don’t remember.

L. C. 7. Look you now, mind what he fays,
Ireland and Fenwick were together in Augufl, Ge.
tween the 8th and the 12th; but being asked,

W he-
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W hether they were met on purpole to talk of
‘the Plot? He fays, he does not remember the

Particulars,

Here the Lady Southcott, ber Son, and ber
Daughter, were called.

L. C. . Did you fay, that Fenwick, there at
the Bar, had Converfe with Ireland in Auguft, for
the carrying on of the Plot?

Ouates. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. My Rule is this, in doubtful Cafes,
when Men are upon their Lives, 1 had rather
hear what is impertinent, than not let them make
a foll Defence.

L. C. ¥. North. T had rather hear Things at

a Venture, than forbid Things ata Venture.

Lady Southcott flood up.

L, C. ¥. How long were you in Mr. Ireland’s
Company ?

Lady Southeott. From the sth of Augaft to the
16th,

L. C. 7. What, every Day ?

Lady Southeott, Yes, every Day.

Qates. My Lords, here 1s Sarab Pati, who be-
fore hath teftified what the hath known in this
Matter, If your Lordfhip pleafe, I defire fhe
may be called, in readinefs to {peak to it.

L.C. ¥. Are you {ure it was the 5th?

Lady Southeott. Yes, as {ure as I can be of any
thing.

My. Recorder. Dr. Oates, you had beft keep
your Evidence entire till the laft.

Then Sir John Southcott was called, and ap-
peared,

L. C.¥. Did you know Mr. lrelaind ?
Sir Fobu Southeott. Yes, I did know him by
Face,

L. C. ¥: Where did you fee him ?

Sir Fobn Southeott. 1 faw him the 5th of Au-
guft, at St Albaus.

L. C.7. Anddid he travel along with you?

St Fobn Soutbeost. Yes, he did travel along
with us the 6th, 7th, Sth, and gth,

L. C. }. How many Days did he travel along
with you

St fobn Southeott, He travelled along with us
four Days together, I am {ure.

L. C.J. What, from the sthto the gth ?

Sii Fobu Southeott. Yes, Sir.

L. G. }. Is this all that you can fay?

Sir Fobn Sontheott. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. But we would know where he was
aiterwards. Did you fee him after the gth?

§ir Fobn Southeott. My Lord, 1 faw himat S,
Albans, and he went from thence to Northampton,
and from thence to Coventry, and from thence to
my Lord Affen’s, that 1s four Days; and I faw

him Thurfday, 1 faw him Friday, Saturday, and &

Moiday tollowing. Tuefday T had occafion to go
further into the Couniry, and he went along with

us; fo 1 faw him Tuefday, Wednefday, ﬂ’”’fdﬁ}:

and Friday afterwards,
5 L. C. F. Why then you faw him at leaft twelve
ays 1 -

Sir Fobn Southeott. Yes.

L.C. ¥. Have you any more?

ﬁe;z Mz, Edward Southcott flood up.

L. C. 7. Were you here when Ireland was
Tried 2

Vo, II.

Sir Fobn Southoott. No.

| ﬁ;L?; C. 7. Did you fee Mr, Feland in Augtft
aft .

My. Southeot. 'The 3d of Auguft he came down
to my Lord 4ffon’s at Stanmore, they faid fo ; bucl
cannot {wear he came that Night ; but { faw him
very early the next Morning 3 the 5th we went to
St. Albaus, and we kepton till we came to Tix=
ally and 1 was in his Company from the sthto
the 16th.

L.C. 7. Why, you hear what he fays, He
was in company with him every Day from the
4th to the 16¢h,

Gavan. Call Mrs, Harewell, and her Daughter,

Mrs, Gifford and Mrs. Pendrel,

Then Mrs, Harewell flood up.

I ﬂJ:L C.7. Did you fee Mr. Ireland in Auguft
aft? |

Harewell. 1 faw Ireland in Augaft latt, the 17th
Day : He came then to my Houfe at Wolver-
bampton, and there he continued every Day, and
lay in my Houfe every Night, till the 26th Day.

Then young Mrs. Harewell food up.

Harewell, Mr, Ireland came to our Houfe in
Staffordfbire the 17th of Auguft, and fraid there ull
the 26th; I faw him every Day, unlefs i
was Friday, the Day before Dartholomeo-Day,
when he went to Litchficld and returned again.

Gavai, My Lord, thereis a Prifoner now in
Newgate that can teftify the fame,

L.C. }. North, Would you ask your Fellow
if you be a Thief? he is in for the famne Of-
fence.

Gavan, My Lord, I defire to know, if a Man
be not convicted of the fame Oftence, whether he
be not a good Witnefs ?

L. C. 7. North. It he ftand charged of the

{fame Plot, his Evidence is of little weiglt.

Then Elizabeth Keiling flood up.

L. C. ¥. Did you fee Mr. Ireland in Auguft ?

Keiling. Yes, my Lord, I did.

L.C. J. Where did you fee him?

Keiling, 1 faw him at Zelverbampton, there he
was from Sainrdaythe 17th, to Monday, and then
I went to fee my Mother, and came back again’
on Thurfday, and found him there, and there he

was till the 26th.
Gavan., Call Mr, Pendrell and his Wile.

Then Pendrell Jflood up.

L C. 7. When did you fee Mr. lrelsind ?
Peudrell, T faw him the Second and Third of

September.

L. C. 7. Where did you fee him ?
Pendrell, At Bofeobel.
/{L.? C. 7. And what, did you fee him in dx-
uff
Peundrell. No, my Lord.
L.C. f. How do you know you faw him
then ?
Pendrell. My Wife being paid for his Diet, fet
down the Day.,
L.C. 7. What, he came to fojourn with you,
did he ?
Peudrell. They were with me for their Meals,
and fo my Wife fet it down.
L. C. J. Why, do you fet down the Day of
the Month when any one comes to you ?

5 S Pendrell
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Pendrell. Yes, my Lord, when we are paid for

eir Diet, we do.

i L. C. . What, do you keep a publick Houfe?

Pendrell. 1 keep the Royal-Oat.

L. C. ¥. Methinks, you fhould have a great
deal of Company, if you live there ; and 'tis hard
you fhould charge yourfelf to remember a parti-
cular Perfon you did not know before.

Pendrell, My Lord, he told me his Name was
Iréland, and feveral others did fo too.

ZL.C. ¥. You had as good have let fuch trivial
Evidences as this alone. But go on.

Then Mis. Pendrell ffood up.

LC. %. Do you know Mr. Ireland £

Mrs. Pendrell. 1 did know by Report it was be.

L.C.¥. Where did you fee him in uguft or
September 2

Mrs. Pendrell, At Boftobel, my Lord.

L.C. ¥. Did you ever fec him before that
tune !

Mprs, Pendrell. No, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. Do you know it was the fame Man
that {uffered ? |

Mrs. Pendrell. T will talie my Oath of it

L. C.¥. How! when you never faw him be-

fore that rime?? _
Mrs. Pendrell. T was in Town when he died.

Then fleod np Adis. Gifford,

L.C. ¥. When did you fee Mr. Jreland ¢

Gifford. My Lord, Mr. Ireland came to #ol-
verbampton the 17th of Zngeff, and he ftayed
there till the 26th, it was of a Monday, I remem-
ber it by feveral Circumitances.

L.C. 7. Did you know Mr. Jrelaid ¢

Gifford. 1 never faw him before.

L.C. ¥. Do you know it was the fame that
died ? ‘

Gifford. My Lord, here was my Brother in
Town, who faw him executed, and he did aflure
me he was the ame : And I faw him again the
fecond of September, and the feventh of Seplem-
ber again, and the tenth and eleventh : My Lord,
he was the fame Man, I believe, becaufe my Bro-
ther told me fo.

M. Gifferd. I faw him 1n the Country, and I
faw him exccuted.

Their another s, Gifford flood up,

Mrs. Gifferd. ' 1 faw him at Pancrafs Fair in
Staffordfbire.

L. C. 7. Was it the fame Man that was Exe-
cuted ? !

Mrs, Gifford. My Lord, I cannot fay that, I

did not fec him fuffer ; but my Sifter and I were
at the Window, and fhe thew’d him to me, and

fard that was Mr. Jrelaund, and told me how long
he had been in Eagland.

L. C. 7. How do you know that was the Man
that was Executed ? did you fee him tried Jere ?

Mrs. Gifford, Yes, my Lord, I did.

L. C. ‘7. And that was the fame Man ?

Mis. Gifford. Yes, it was, my Lord.

L. G. . When was it your Sifter thew’d you
him?

Mrs. Gifferd. I faw him upon the feventh of

Septeinber.
Toeit flood up one 3r, Bedle.
L. G. f. When did you fee Mr, Ireland 2

~ Bedls.-1 faw him at a Place.called. Millage in

Staffordfbire,- the {fecond of September.

L. C. 7. Are you a Roman Catholick ?

Bedle, If I muft make a confeffion of my Faith,
Iwill. But Ifaw him there, and they faid i
was Mr, Ireland the Jefuit.

L. €. ¥. Had you no Acquaintance with him
before ?

Bedle. No.

L.C. . How do you know it is the fame
Man that fuffered !

Bedle. T do not know that, but I fuppofe it
was the fame.

Turner. 1 am accufed for being at Trxall at 2
Confult in Seprember, 1 defire to know who faw
me there, for I have not been there thefe Four
Y ears.

L. C.7}. Mr. Dugdale faw you there.

Turner. “What Witnefies befides ?

L. C. 7. None buc he for that.

Mr. Recorder. FHath Mr. Fenwick any more
Witnefies to call ?

Fewwick, My Lord, I have not any.

Then was Captain Hill called.

Fenwier. My Lord, he can prove fomething
againit Mr. Bedlow : He fays, he lived in good
repute 3 but the Caprain will tell you, he was in

the Mdarfoalfea, and lived a poor mean Life, and
all the time fed upon the Basket.

L. C. }. Novth. He was Guilty of the fame
Treafons that you are Guilty of, there is his
fault.

L. C. 7. Nodoubt he was a Naughty Man,
he was with you in this Plot.
Fenwick. 1 can prove by Sir Fames Butler’s

Clerk, that he cheated a Cutler of a Silver hilted
Sword.

Then Sir James Butler’s Clerk was called ; byt
be baving more than one, and the Perfon

meant 1ot being there, there conld nothing be
examined about that,

L.C.7. North. He hath had the King’s Par-
don for all that.

Fenwick, e was forced to run the Country for
a many Cheats, and was forced to borrow 4 Or
5. to redeem his Boots. My Lord, does his
Pardon make him a good Witnefs ? Then we will
prove fomething fince his Pardon. |

L.C. 7. No doubt he was bad enouch while

he was with you.

Whitebread- My Lord, I think I have a plain
Demontration againft Mr. Bedlow fince his Par-
don; he did ar my laft Trial fay, that he had no-

thing to fay againft me, and now he comes and
gives frefh Evidence againft me.

L. C. 7. Norih. That is an Obijection that will
not take away his Evidence, but only goes to the
leffening of the credit of it. He fays he was in
Treaty with Mr. Reading about you, and the
Lords in the Zower 5 and to beget 2 Confidence
In him that the Lords in the Tower thould receive
favour from him, and come off by his means, he
was to be eafy to you too, which made him lef-
fen his Evidence at that time. This is that he

fays, the weight of it muft be left to the Jury.

And he faid at that time he had more to fay at
Tme and Place convenient,

Whitebread, 'There is no fuch thing in the
Trial.  He hath alledged grear Matters againft
me, therefore it is Evident he did falfity his

Oath ;
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Oath ; for if he were to fwear the truth, the
whole truth, and nothing but the truth, and he
did not fay the whole truth, he is perjured; if
he did, he can fay nothing againft me now.

L. C. ¥. North, Mr. Whitebread, you have
your Objection, and it mui]: be obferved to the
Tury.  Your repeating of things fignifies nothing

Their Captain Hill flood up.

Feivick. Pray Sir, what do you know of
Mr. Bedlow ?

Mr. Juft, Pemberton. But don’t ask any thing
hetore the Pardon,

Hill. Tknew him in the AMarfbalfea,

Fencwick. Inwhat condition was he there, Sir?

Hill. He wasa poor Man, as | be, and lived
upon the Basket. _

Harconrt, How long ago is 1t {ince you knew
him there?

Hiil. In May was Twelve-month.

L.C. ¥ That was long before his Pardon.
But he might be an honeft Man for all that, tho’
he were as poor as you.  Are you an honeft Man?

Hill, Yes, [ think fo,

L. C. 7. And fo might he be. Well, have
you any more ?

Prifoners. No.

Sir Cr. Levinz, Gentlemen of the Jury, you
have heard the Prifoners, and they have had a
great deal of time to make their Defence 3 but
the greateft part of their Defence hath been to
invalidate the Teftimony of Mr. Oates; and what
is the Evidence they have broughe againft him ?
they tell you firft, That he did not come over in
that Company that he fays he came over with.
And whereas he bath fworn he was here the
2.th of April, they have taken a great deal of
Pains by filtcen or fixteen Witneffes to prove
that he was all the time at St. Omers; and that
Sit Fobn Farnery and Siv Thomas Preflen, whom
he tells you came over in Company with him,
never ftir'd from the Places of their Refidence,
that is Lizpe and Watton all that nme: But this,
Gentlemen, you muft obferve, thac it Mr. Oates
were out of the Cafe, all thele Perfons, except
Mr., Turuer, are proved Guity of the Trealon
they are charged with; and yet I fhall fet up his
Teftimony, and make him clear, notwithftand-
ing whatoever hath been alledged againft him.
Gentlemen, to take them in order, Mr. #bitebread
hath Mr, Dugdale, Mr. Bedlsw, and Mr. Prance,
to prove him Guilty, let what will come of
Mr. Qates, all of them fpeak to him.

L. C. %¥. Prance, do you fpeak any thing
againit Mr, W hitebiead ¢ |

My, Prance. No. .

Mr. Recorder. It was Fenwick and Harcourt,

Sir Cr. Levinz. But there is Bedloso and Dug-
. dale againtt Mr. W bitebread, and therefore, Gen-
tlemen, there are two have fworn againft him,
befides Oates 3 and there is two againft Mr. Feu-
wick av leatt s nay, there are three, for befides
Outes there is Bedlow and Prance; as to Mr.,
Haiconit, there is Bedloso, Dugdale, and Praice,
befides Mr. Ogtesy as to Mr. Gavai, there is
Qates and Dugdale; indeed there Is none but

Ouates and Dugdale againft Turner 3 {o that as to
the three firft however there are two Witnefles

befides Mr. Oates, that is, againft Mr. 2White-

bread, Mr., Fenwick, and Mr, Harconrt. Now

as for Mr. Qates's Teftimony, and what they

have to fay to him; in the firff Place, they have
Vor. I,
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brought a young Gentleman, Mr, Hilfley, and ke
fays he did not come over with him, and there
‘s one againft one, but Dr. QOates hath fworn
it, and hath given you fuch convincing Cii-
cumftances how he loft his Money, &, {o that
I leave it to you which of the two is in the
Right, and ought to be believed. But then, my
Lord, as to the reft of the Witnefles, here are
a great many brought over to prove that Mr.
Qates was all the while at St. Omers s but I fhall
bring you a confiderable Number of Witnefles to
prove that Dr, Oates was then in Lezdon, and
that all thefe Perfons are miftaken. They doall
pitch upon the firft of May to fix it upon a time
wherein he fays he was here in Town : But Gen-
tiemen, I hope you did obferve, that as to other
Things and Time that were not fo neceflary as to
this Matter, there they were pleafed to miftake,
and to differ one from another, to contradiétone
another ; for fome of them faid he went away
and left St. Omers the 1oth Day of Fune, others
the 23d, others, which was the fame Flemifh Gar-
diner, that he ftaid all Faly.  Truly half that va-
riance in the time which is neceflary would ferve
our L'urn, we are but fortight Days time, that s,
he was not above eight or ten Days here, truly
thefe Gentlemen will be fure to fpeak punctually
to all thofe eight Days that hurt the Prifoners,
but they will vary thirty Days ac another time
that hurts them not. Why may they not be
miftaken as well with that portion of time, as
thcy were in the other, wherein they fo much
differed one from another?

Bur I fhall give you moft infallible proof by
and by, that Mr, Oazes was in England at thar
time that he faid he was in Figland. My Lord,
as to that of Sir Fobn Warier, truly we have feng
for a Witnefs, but we did not know of the Ob.
jection before 5 they have row brought you the
Gardiner, and he did fay poliively at firlt thac
Sir Fobn Warner was there all that while, buc
being asked again how he knew ir, he faid it was
the talk of the Country, and {o fome of the Wit-
nefles did {peak to Sir Themas Prefion.  But then
I did defire to know of thefe Witnefles, whether
thefe Perfons were never abfent from thefe Places
or not, they told me they wereabient for fome
time In the Vacancy.

Gavan, That was in Auguft.

Sir Cr. Levinz. You are very good at expounc-
ing | know, but what thofe Vacancics were I
am not certain; but being apt to miftake a little,
they might miftake the Tfmie too, and they
might extend their Journey beyond their Vacancy.,
Mr. Gavan he hath made a mighty Defence I
muft confefs, endeavouring to prove that he was
out of Town all Fune and Fuly, and in April and
May before, and cruly he hath brought fome Wit~
nefles that have fpoken very far for him as to thole
Months, but I will defire you to obferve, as I
know you did, that the three laft Witnefles that
knew him very well did affirm pofitively that ke
was there the laft Week in F#ly, but being asked
to the Weck before that, and the Week before
that, they couid not be pofitive. And, under
favour, by that Evidence you will believe rather
that he was not there, for if {o bethey could fo
pofitively Remember for the laft Week, why
{hould they not be as pofitive forthe two Wecks
before ? why, thefe two Weeks were encugh to
ferve our Turn, for 1t was towards the latrer
end of Fuly that which Mr, Gates hath fworn

59 2 upon
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upon Mr., Gaguan, that he was 1n Town, iH"ld
talked of the fame Matters which he had writ-
ten the Letter about. And therefore it is much
to be prefumed, that becaufe the Witneffes will
take upon them as to the laft Week, they are
{ure he was at Holverbampton, but as to the two
other Weeks they could -not be fure, that they
fpeak with fome Confcience, and therefore 1t may
be true that he was here, And the Woman faid
fhe could not fay but poffibly he might make
fuch'a Journey and [he never the wifer, So that
under favour, Gentlemen, all that which Mr.
Gavan hath fo induftrioufly endeavoured to lay
upon Mr, Oates, does fhrink into a very {lender
Evidence, and that it might well be he was at
Londen at the Time that Ouates fays, thethree laft
Witnefles fpeaking pofitively only to the lait
Week in Fauly.

Then truly, my Lord, they are fixed upon
another great Matter to blemifh Mr. Oates as to
Mr. Ireland, a Perfon that is dead and out of the
way. Mr. Ireland hath been hanged upon that
Evidence, fo far it was believed; but now after
all this, will thefe Gentlemen come to queftion
the Evidence that was given againlt Mr, freland.
They have likewife, my Lord, brought my Lady
Scutheott, and fome other Perfons, who give you
an Evidence concerning Mr. Ircland, that he
fhould not be here at this Time; but, Gentle-
men, under favour, Mr. Qates hath {worn be-
fore, and he hath now f{worn it again, that
My. Lreland was at that Time in London, and,
Gentlemen, I will confirm him in that by ano-
ther Witnefs that did fee him here in Town at
that Time. And when you have two Witnefies
for the King upon their Oaths come and teftify
it, I hope you will believe them, rather than
other Perfons that teftity only by hearfay. It
was the Matter then in iflue, and had faved his
Life if it had been true; but tho’ it be now
feteled, and none could think it would be again
flarted, they would make that an Objeftion, but
by chance we have a Wumefs ftill to give you
Satisfaction, that Mr. freland was in London at
that Time that Mr, Oates did fwear him to be.
We will begin with that Witnels about Ireland.
And then we will call our Witnefles to prove
that Mr. Oates was in England, and did come
over when he faid he did.  Call Sarab Paine.
IVio was fiora,

Sir Cr. Levinz. What time did you fee Mr. fre-
land in London ? did you fee him in Augnft laft?

§. Paine. | faw him about feven or ¢ight Days
before I came to my Lord Chamberlain, and that
was about a Week betore the King went to #/iud-
or.

f L. C. 7. Where did you fee him?

S. Paine. At his own Door 1 Ruffel-Street.

L.C. ¥. Did you fpeak to him ?

S. Paiiie. No, Iknew him very well, and faw
him as I came by,

Sir Cr. Levinz., Had not you carried many Let-
ters to him?

§. Paine. Ycs, feveral Letters.

Sir Cr. Levinz, Where did you Jive before?

8. Paine. 1 lived at Mr, Grove's.

Sir Cr, Levinz. Did not Mr, [reland uleto come
there too? ’

8. Paine. Yes, he did often.

L.C. 7. Was any one talking with Ireland
then?

S. Paine, No.

i Cr. Levinz, How long did you- look upon
bim? Did you fee him go in? did you fee his
Face or his Back ?

S. Paine. 1 faw his Face and made him 2
Curtefy.

L. C. 7. This the faid to Ireland’s Face.

Mr. Fuft. Dolben. Your Evidence is, that Mr.
Ireland went out of Town the 5th of Augzff, and
fhe fays flic faw him about that ume which muft
be the z2th or 14th of Angufl,

Gavan. How does fhe prove it? fhe does no
fay fhe fpoke with him.

Myr. Iuft. Dolben. She {wears ir.

Sir Cr. Leving, Now we muft prove what
time the King went to /#1udfor.

L. C. §. Sir Thomas Deleman, what time in
Anuft did the King go to Windjor alt Summer?

Sir Tho, Doleman. 1 beheve (1 cannot charge
my Memory fo well) 1t was the 13th, 1t was
about the 12th or 13th,

L.C. 7. Was my Lord Chamberlain there
then?

8. Paine. My lLord Chamberlain went after
the King,

L. C.7}. And when do you fay you faw Ire-
land ¢

§. Paine. 1 faw him feven or eight Days be-
fore I went to my Lord Chamberlain’s, which
was before my Lord went to Windfor, and that
was a Week after the King went thicher.

Sir Cr. Levinz. Now I'll tell you what fhe
fays; fhe fays the faw Irelanda Week before fhe
went to my Lord Chamberlain’s, and the faw
him go into Grove’s Houle, where he did ufually
ao for Letters; fhe fays fhe faw his Face, and
made him a Curtefy 5 and that this was a Weck
before fhe went to my Lord Chamberlain’s, and
that was a Week after the King went to Windfor.
Now the time that Mr. Oates pitches upon is be-
tween the eighth and the twelfth of Auguf which
by computation is the time fhe {peaks of.

Gavan. And our Witnefles go from the third
of Auguft to the fourteenth of September.

St Cr. Levinz. Call Sir Richard Bearker, Wil-
liam Walkery Sarab Tves, &c.

William Walker «zas fir fworn, and bid to
fand up, |

Sir Cr. Levinz. Pray, Sir, do you know that
Mr. Oates was 1n England the beginning of laft
Summer? Pray tell your whole knowledge,

Walker., Yes, myLord, Iwill. Ihave known
Mr, Titus Qates thefe feven Yearss and had not
feen him above five Years; but about two Years
ago 1 did meet him in Newgate-market, and then
again In the latter end of the Month of March
1678, or the beginning of April, 1 did fee Mr.
Oates 1n a difguife in a gray Serge Coat, and I
think a gray Hat, but 1 did not underftand i,
nor did I know him to be the Man; and I was very
much troubled that I could not recolleét my felf
who he was, and I went to Bed, and could not
recolleét who he was; but before I rofe in the
Morning [ did draw him within the Scheme of
my knowledge, that it was Tutis Oates, and to
copfirm my Judgment in that, 1did go toa Gen-
tlewoman, whole Name I did not know, but I
went thither becaufe it was the fame place that
I had feen him at a Year before, to enquire what
became of Mr. Oates, and how he did: And
when [ came to her (in the Morning early, it
was the next Day after I had feen him in Dif-

- guife}
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guife) 1 cnqutrcd of the Gentlewoman how Mr.
Oates did, and the clapped her Hand upon her
Counter, be:ng'lTradeﬁvoman, 0, Said the, He
is an undope Mrz::f' Why fo2 faid I. Said ﬂ‘lt: He
is turned to the Church” of Rome, and he ﬂbﬁam/.r
and bides binfplf, T know not. where he is.” Then, in
plain Terms, aid 1, I faw him later than you, for
1 faw bims Yefterday, between Nine and Ten of the
Clock, it was at the ypper-end of §t. Martin's-Lane,
sear Leiceﬂcr-Houfe.

Sir Cr. Levinz., What time was this?

[Valker. This was in Apr il or March laft was
a Twelve-month.

L..C. 7. Did younever fee him more than then?

[Walker. No, 1 knew his Face fo well, asI
icoked back upon him, and he looked bu::k upon
ne, but it was with fomt: kind of Terror, and
he did feem to abfcond and hide himfelt.

L. C. f. When was this?

[Walker. It was fome time from the latter end
of March 1o the middle of April.

L.C. ¥. Why did you skip the beginning of
April ¢

Woelker. T am not able to remember exaltly the
Time for why, Idid never think to be called as

a Witnefs about it.

L.C. 7. Did you {peak to him?

}alker. No, my Lc:-rd I did not.

L. C.’}. Howlong b{:torc had you {poke to him?

Walker. A Year beﬁ:}re, but in his Canomml
Hdblf, and not before of five Years.

L.C. . Noith. You will not fure catch him
upon a Day.

L. C. 7. But I’ll tell you what it does, it con-
tradicts all tat your Boys, all your. W 1mcHE:5 fay:
Tho’ it does not go home exactly to the 24th of
Aprily yet, 1t it be true, and we have no Reafon
to believe 1t otherwife, It dlfprovcs .1]1 their Evi-
dence; for they charge him to lm*c been at St.
Oumers all March, dprif, and Mas.

Sir Cr. Lf:'vmz Swear Sarab I‘Uef
was done. ]

Qates. My Lord, we bring Sarab Ives to prove
that this fame Gentleman went to her to enquire
of her about me.

L. C. %#. Pray Mrs. what did that Minifter fay

to you, and when, concerning Mr. Qates ¢

Tves. Mr. Walker came to my Shop, and asked
me when I faw Mr. Qatesy faid I, T have wot feen
bim fince be went beyond Sez. beﬂ, faid he, I have
fees bim later than 1 youty for I woas going to Leicefter-
Fields, and at the end of St. Martin’s Lane 1 faw
bim iz a Difguife, and be looked wiftly back upon
me, and I upon bim, and, faid he, Tam ccitain, it
was the Mail.

L. C. ¥. What time was this?

Tves. Tt was Ap#il was a Twelve-month.

L. C. }. What time in #pril do you think ?

Fves. 1 cannot fay the Day.

L. C.F. But whattime of the Month was ir?

Fves. 1don’t juftly know, I think ir was the
middle of April, or thereabouts.

L. C. 7. Call another Witnefs.

S1r Cr. Levinz. Call Mrs. Mayo.
fworn.]

i Cr. Levinz. \Vell, what fay you, when did
you fee Mr. Oates in England ?

Mayo. 1 never faw hlS Face till 2 Week be-
iore /Whitfontide, or a little after; there was a
Young Man, a Servant of Sir ch&md szrker’s
that kncw him a long time bcforc s he came to
me and faid, 2onder is M Qates fm;’b cbﬁﬁgc’d b;s

[ Which

[ Who was

{1gh-Trealon.

Coat from a black 1o a whitey what is be! faid I,
be was a Minfler, but be is either turned Quaker
or Catholick s but, taid 1, be is not turired anlze:,
Jor be weays a Peric: wig, and he fell a lauﬂhlntr
and jeering at him; faid I, #hy do you deridz

this Geﬂt/mm:, when be is a Friend of Sir Richard
Barker’s,

L. C. 7. Where was Mr. Oales then?

MNayo. He was in the Court-yard, and I wazs
in the Kitchen.

L. C. . When was this?

Mayo. The Week before Fhitfoutide.

L.C. % In what Month?

Mayo. [t was 1n May.

L.C. %. Did you know him before then?

AMayo. No, I did not, bur I bad heard much
of him in the Family.

L.C. j. How foon did you fee him arram afrer
that?

Mayo. Abouta Weel: afrer he came and broughe
another with him, and walked into the Garden,
and feemed to be difcontented that they did not
fhew fuch a Countenance to him as they ufed o
do in the Houfe, for the Gentlewomen had heard
he was wrned Fefuiz, and thercfore were very
fhy ; thatis, Sir Richard’s Kinfiwomen, my Lady’s
Sifters Daughters.

L.C. 7. Do you know Dr. Oates now ?

Mayo. Very welly Sir.  Afterwards he came
again and walked into the Garden, and the Young
Man 1 fpoke of before, that is now dead, came
agamn and took notice of him, of the ﬁnrge
G1rb he was inj he was in a Roam that looked
into the Garden, I faw him walking there, and
faid he, Yonder 15 Qates again, and bm‘/.: bironght
anather witp bim ; he looked out of the Window,
and faid he, Prlythee look bere, does wnot be look
like a Jefuit? and he that was with him locked
back, and if it had not been for that, and the
Young Marw’s Importunity, I had never taken
notice of Mr. Qates. After, when I heard he was
come over and gave in his Te timony about the
Plot, I would needs go fee him; but he-fpoke
very fllﬂhtlnﬂly to me, and feemed to be offended
with the Family becaufe they did fcorn him. Said

I, They bad no reafon to countenance ycu, becanfz
we all underflood you were turned Catholick, Tiy

didy faid he, look very fby upow me. Hly, faid
1, you muft not be offended, for you kisw all the
Faumly are no Friends to Jeluits, and I bope sever
will be foy but 1 bope, Mr. Qates, you il 7 10t for
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get saten Bready becaufe be ufed 1o be made very

much of ai Sir Rlchard Barker’s.

Sir Gr. Levinz. Is that the Man that you faw
there ?

Mayo. This is the Man, if you will put me
to my Oath again I will fwear it.

Sir Cr. Levinz, When was this?

Mayo. It was the Weck before Fhitfontide, it
was in May, for Whitfouide fell in M.

St Cr. Levinz. Then call Philip Page
was fworn. |

Sir Cr. Levinz, Do you know Dr. Oafes 2

Page. Ycs, Sir.

S:r Cr. Levinz. How long have you known him?

que I have known him four or five Years,

L.C. 7. Pray did you fee him in the Year 1678,
laft Year.

Page. Yes, 1 did.

L.C. 7. At what Time?

Page. Ahout the beginning of Mav

L. G ¥. Where? - :

o

Page.
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Page, At Siv Richard Barker’s. _

L. C. 5. Were you acquainted with him be-
fore?

Page. 1 had fpoke with him before. '

L. C. 7. How do you know it was he? did
you {peak with him then ?

Page. Yes, 1 did.

L.C. ¥. What Habit was hein?

Page. He had a light-coloured Gampaign Coat.
T ask’d him, where he had been fo long a Time,
that we had not feen him, but he turned away
from me, and gave me no Account, bu, after he
had been in the Houfe, made back again, and away
he went, after he enquired for Sir Richard.

L. C. 7. How do you know it was in May ¢
why might it not be in April ¢

Page. It was in the beginning of May, to the
beft of my Knowledge. o

L. C. 7. By what material Circumftances do
you remember it was in the beginning ot Aay ¢
Is there any thing that puts it into your Mind
more particularly ¢ | _

Page. My Mafter had a Patient at that Time,
that was fick of a Fever,

L.C. §. Where? at Sir Richard Barker's
Houfe.

Page. At Iflington 1t was. |

Yury. We defire to know what the FPatient’s
Name was, for fome of us know [flingtei very
well.

Page. T have forgot the Name.

Sir Kichard Barker. It was Aldram Milver's
Daughter.

L. C. ¥. Tt was about that Time i J/ay that
you faw him¢

Page. I did upon my Oath, and [ fpoke with
him, and took much Notice of him, he had an
old black Hat on, that flapp’d, and a pair of
Spanifh-Leather Shoes.

Sir Cr. Levinz, Call Sit Ricbard Bavker. Who
was [wori.

L.C. #. Do you know Dr, Qazes?

Sir Richard Barker. Yes, my Lordy I have
known his Father and him ever fince he hath been
a Child; I faw him the lalt Summer,

L. C. ¥. About what time?

Sir Richard Barker. At that Time that they
have given in Evidence, I have only this to fay,
I was abroad, as my Bufinefs leads me often
abroad into the Country, but they told me, M.,
Qates came to my Houfe in a Difguife, and that
they believed he was turned either Quaker or
Papitt.

L. C. }. When was this?

Sir Ricbard Barker. It was, my Lord, to the
beft of my Remembrance, after Wbitfontide thac
they told me, but they told me a Story of hLim,
how that he was in two feveral Difguifes, the
one was a fhort Haw, and then they thought he
was turned Quaker, another Time he had a long
Periwig, and then they thought he was turned
Papilt; and the firlt that told me, was this Fel-
low here, that 15 a Coachman of mine, who was
mending fomething of his Coach. It happen’d,
my Lord, upoen the viliting of a Gentleman, that
I was very ill, in which Time Mr. Qates was
gone, and afterwards, when I was recovered again,

he came to my Houfe, to enquire concerning
Dr. Tongue.

L. C. . When did you fee him firft?
Sir Richard Barker. It was, my Lord, to the
belt of my Remembrance, the latter end of

June, or beginning of Fuly, upon my Reco-
very.

L.C.%. By the Qath that you have taken, [
would ask you one Queftion, Did not you fee
him till Fuie 2

Sir Ricbard Barker. No, my Lord; bur my
Servants told me, they had feen him in Aay, be-
fore Whiifontide.

L. C. 7. Did you {ee him in Fuie ?

Sir Richard Barker. To the beft of my Re.
membrance, ’twas in Fune.

Then one Butler <was fevorn.

L.C. 7. Come, do you know Dr. Qates?

butler, Yes, very well,

L.C ¥. How long have you known him?

Butler. I have known him thefe three Years,
before he went beyond Sea.

L.C. f. Come, you are upon your Oath,
when did you fee Dr. Oates, and where, the be-
oinning of lalt Summer?

Butler. I faw him the beginning of laft Aay,
at my Malter's Houfe in Barbicas.

L.C. 7. Upon what Occafion? what are you?

Butler. 1 am Sir Richard Barker’s Coachman,
And I was making clean my Couch in the Gate-
houfe, and in comes Dr., Qates, in May laft was
a2 Tweivemonth, the beginning of AMay; with
his Hair cut off clofe cropt to his Fars, in Gray
Clothes, a Gray Coat like a Shepherd’s Coat, a
Yorkfbire-Gray, he asked me whether Dr 7ogue
was within? I told him, No: Neverthelefs he
went into the Houle, and immediately came out
again, and feemed to be very much difcontented,
but fard nothing at all to me, but pafled by me,
and went away.,

L.C.}. And did you know him at that Time
he fpoke to you firlt?

Butler, Yes, my Lord, becaufe I knew him
three Years before.

L. C. ¥, Could you have then call’d him by
his Name ?

Butler. Yes, my Lord, I could.

L. C. 7. You fay he came to enguire for Dr,

Tongue, and was dilcontented that he could not
fee him? *

Butler. Ile faid nothing to me when he came
out, but pafs’d away as one that was troubled.

L. G. F. Did you fee him afterwards ¢

Butler., Six Weeks after I faw him; and then
he had a long black Coat and a Periwig on.

L. C.F. But are you fure it was the fame
Man:?

Butler, 1 am, upon my Qath,
Mr. Juft. Delben. Did you tell your Mafter of
his being there the firft time?

Butler. 1 did tell Sir Richard Baiker of him, as
icon as 1 {faw him.

L.C.}. Sir Richard, how foon did he tell you
Oates was firft there?

Sir Ruchard Barker. It was foon after, my
Lord,

L.C. 7. Was it in May that he told you he
had {een him?

Sir Richard Barker. Hetold me as foon as ever
I came home, in May, as I remember.

L. C. 7. Did he tell you Mr. Qates was there
by Name?

Sir Ricbard Barker. Yes, my Lord, he did:
And when he told me what Habit he was in, I
wondred at it,

Qales.
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Ouates, There are feveral, my Lord, that did
{fee me at that Time ; but they are gone into the
Country 3 and I cannot have them now ready :
If you pleafe now to call Mr. Smith the School-
malter of Jflington. Who was fworn.

Sir Cr. Levinz. Do you know Dr. Qafes ?

Smith. Yes, very well.

Sir Gr. Levinz, Pray, Sir, how long have you
known him?

Smith. He was my Scholar at Aerchant-Tay-
his-School, where I was Uther.

Sir Cr. Levinz. When did you fee him, the
beainning of laft Summer ?

Smith. 1 faw him in the beginning of laft May,
that is, 1678.

L.C. F. Where did you fee him ?

Smith. He dined with me at my Houle in
Iinston.

Mr. Juft, Dolben. What, the Boys at St. O-
Mers NOW are gone !

L. C. ¥. Reccllett yourfelf well: By che Oath
you have taken, did Dr. Oates inMay was T welve-
month dine with you?

Smith. Yes, my Lord, he did and it was the
firlt Monday in May, as I remember. |

Mr. Jult. Dolben. And this you {wear, directly
and pofitively ?

Smith. Yes, my Lord, I do.

L. C. #. How long did he ftay there?

Smith. He ftad three or four Hours after :
And, may it pleafe you, my Lord, he was ina
Summer-fuit, and a coloured Ribbon, a green
Knot upon his Shoulder.

L. C. 7. What did you dilcourfe about ?

Swith. About his being in Spain and Faiders,
and his Travels.

L. C. ¥ Had youa long Difcourfe with him ?

Saith. Yes, I had.,

L. C.¥. Had you nothing about the Times ?

Smith, No, my Lord, not a Word. '

L.'C. ¥. Did you underftand he had been
turned Roman Catholicle ?

Snith, 1 did know it.

Fury. My Lord, Did Mr. Smith fee him any
cther time after that?

Smith. No, my Lord, net in two Months; to
my Remembrance, about the middle of Augu/t.

Sir Cr, Levinz, Call one Clay, Who was [worn,

L. C. 7. Do you know Dr., Oates ¢

Clay. Yes, my Lord, I do. |

L. C. ¥. How long have you kaown him?

Clay. Ever fince Aprillaft was Twelvemonth,

L. C. 7. Was that the firlt Time of your
Acquaiitance with him ?

Clay. Yes, at Mr. Charles Howard’s?

L. C. 7. Where were you there with him?

C/ay. He lived in one Corner of old Arundel-
Houte, . .

L. C. ¥. How came you acquainted with
him ? |

Clsy. Traly I met him accidentally, at M.

fnwara’s Houle,

L. C. ¥, How came you to come there?

Clay. 1 was there to vifit Mr. Heward, as a
Friend.

L. C. 7. Were you acquainted with him ?

Clay. Yes, I was with Mr, Howard, and there
I faw Dr. Ouyes.

L.C.¥. When did you fee him the fecond
Time ? '

Clay. The fecond Time T thiek I faw him
there teo,

L. C. 7. When was that ?

Clay. That was in May.

L. G. J. North. How long was that after ?

Clay. 1think the other was in pril,

L. C. 7. And did you fee him in May?

Clay, 1 faw himin May too.

L. C. }. What Time of the Month was it ?

Clay. 1 cannot exaltly fpeak to thar, but it
was in that Month as I remember, I am morally
certain of it.

L.G. 7. And when did you fee him after
May ¢

Clay. 1 can’t tell whether I faw him after May
or not,

L. C. 7. Isthatthe fame Man that you fawat
Mr. Howard's, either in dpril or May ?

Clay. Yes, my Lord, icis the fame Man,

Sir Cr. Levinz, Then we have done with our
E.vidence,

L. G, 7. Come, Gentlemen, now what can
you fay to this ? They have given you now their
tull Charge.

Oates, My Lord, I have one thing more, I
defire your Lordfhip to take notice, this Gentle-
man, Mr. Clay, is a Prieft in Orders, asthey fay.

L.C. 7 1 will not ask him that Quettion,
but, Mr, Clay, are youa Papift ?

Clay. Yes, my Lord, 1am fo.

L. C. J. North. Come, what fay you now, Mr.
Whitebread, to this ?

Whitehread. T have this to fay; firft, That at
my laft Trial, when [ prefled him te declare who
had feen him, when he faid he was here in
Town, he could name no body, not ope. I
know afterwards he was examined at the Com-
inittee, and then he could name no body neither.
He faid he was there privately at Mr. Groze’s, and
we can prove, that he never did lie there in his
Lafe, And then he faid abfoluiely, he had not
feen much Company, he ftaid but fix Days. Now
this good Doctor that does fay he faw him here in
the latter end of March, or the middle of Aprif,

whereas he himfelf fays he came over with Hilffey,
the 2.4th of Ap#il.

L. C. ¥. He was landed here the 1 7th of April,
and the Witneffes fay, it was the latter end of .4-
prily or beginning of May,

¥ bitebread. Mr. Oates exprefly faid, he ftaid
here but fix Days, when he came over to the

Conlul.

L. G. 7. Why, does not all this ftand toge-
ther?

Whitebread. No, my Lord, how could this
ftand together? his coming over the 17th, and
his being here a great parc in May, whereas he
fays he was but fix Days?

L. C. J. Perchance Dr, Oates may not be pre-
cife enough ; but look you here, thefe Witnefles
do not fpeak fo exactly toa Day ortwo, or three,
or four, or five, but to the latter end of April :
Now, why might.they not fee him the latter end
of 4pril, and the beginning of May, and yer
ftand very well with Mr. OQates’s Teftimony,
who fays he +was landed here about the 17th
of April,and ftaid here about fix or feven Days ?
How nice would you have them be in thar
Cafe? which, becaufe they are honeft, they will
not be.

L. C. ¥. North. You make your Defences to
depend upon an Uncertainty of Time, which no
mortal Man can ever remember; befides, pray

obferve
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obferve this, That Mr. Oates {tands a good Wit-
nefs, till you impeach him by a Fry out of your
own Schools, and they go to the whole Months
of Fune, and April, and May, now thefe all {peak
in contradiftion to other Witnefles, and {o Mr.
Oates is ftill an uptight and good Witnefs.

Whitebread. They fay they did fee him there
every Day, or every other Day.

L. C. 7. But fure I can as well tell, who faw
him but once in fuch a Month, and dined with
him then, as any that faw him never fo often :
but here are five Witnefles upon you in this Point,

Whitebread. The one was told by his Man,
the other by his Boy.

L. C. ¥. The Coachman, and the Boy, and
the Maid, and Mr. Smith did fee him.

Mr. Jult. Pemberton. The Divinedid fee him,
and went and told the Woman that he had {een
him, pray remember that,

L. C. F. North. Now the Evidence is conclud-
ed, fay what you will for your felves ; and then
we will oblerve what you object, upon our Di-
rection to the Jury, according to our Confciences.

Gavan. My Lord, then I fay this for my felf.
We commit our felves to God Almighty. We
muft compare the Number, tho’ ours were not
{worn, yet there were fixteen of them, Boys,
Young-men, that converfed with him every Day,
and thefe Witnefies fpeak but of one or two par-
ticular Days : Onec fays he dined with him, and
another faw bim in a Difguife 5 bur, my Lord,
1n thefe very Witnefles there is an apparent Con-
tradition, becaule out of his own Mouth (ex orz
tuo le judico) they are contradicted. He fays he
came over upon Sunday, with Hilflev, which was
the 2oth of April, asl think, and ftaid here only
a matter of {ix Days. One of the Witnefes fays
he faw him the fult Mowday in May. What
fignify the Witnefies, though upon Oath, that
fay they faw him in Af2y? How can he come
over the aoth of April, and ftay but fix Days,
and be {een hire 1n May ¢ Before thefe can be
reconciled, one of them muft be falfe ; and then,
my Lord, befiles that which I firft faid, there is
the Number of Witnefles, they are nothing in
Comparifon with the Number of ours. And
then, my Lord, Secondly, if we fhould grant,
that a lefler Number fhould ferve the Turn, be-
caufe they are fworn for the King, becaufe they
{wear for the Safety of the King, (whom God
preferve, whatfoever becemes of me) and the o-
ther fpeak not upon their Oaths, yet, my Lord,
tnis does not deftroy nor touch at all that Evi-
dence that 1s brought againft him, about the

Rector of Liegz, Sir Fobit Farner, and Sir The.
Preflon.  And though it be granted, that all the
others that {poke about Mr. Oates being at St.
Omers be miftaken, and muft not be believed,
yet we have him ftill, by thofe fix others, who
have proved that he hath fworn falfe; and I hope
we fhall have fair Play in the Law, to make the
beft Defence we can for our Lives ; and I hum-
-bly conceive, no bedy muft be convited of
High-Treafon by the Law, but upon the Evi-
dence of two fufficient Witnefles.  Now 1 leave
it to the Confcience and Honour of the Courrt,
whether he fhall be believed, and counted a fuf-

ficient Witnefs, when there are fo many that
have proved him falfe in that one Point? And

then, befides all this, my Lord, we have here
fixteen, at leaft, Staffordfbire Witnefles, who
.give you an Account of Mr, Ireland’s being ont

of London, from the 3d of Augnft till the r4th of
September 5 {o that in thefe two Things he hath
been contradicted without any Anfwer, for he fays,
the 12th of Augufl he was with him, when they
{fay he was in Staffordfbire.

L. C. #. You have forgot the Maid that faw
him in London the 12th or 13th,

Gavan. No, my Lord, 1 have not.  And thig
15 1t 1 anfwer to 1t, She 152 Witnels that only
fays, fhe juft faw him, but did not {peak to him,

L. C. 7. She made a Courtely to him.

Gavan, We are now talking of feeing Jreland
in Adnguff, and we prove by Sir Fobir Southeas,
and all his Family, who fay they began their
Journey with him the sth of Argeff, and ftaid
with him «ill the 1gth, after the particular Day
that the fpeaks of, you find feven or eight of
them f{wear that they faw him all the Time,
And therefore I would fain know, whether poor
Mens Lives thall be caft away upon fuch Evi-
dence as this? And then, my Lord, for the other
Thing, I hope I have made a very good Plea
for my felf concerning the Matter of Frdy, my
Witnefies could be pofitive as to the laft Week,
but for the other Werks, tho’ they could not
be pofitive, they rather believed 1 was there,
than not: Bur when it is urged, Why might
not they give as geod a Teftimony for the for-
mer Weeks as for that ? Tothis | anfwer fully,
that there 1s a great and predominant Reafon
why they fhould have a particular Reafon to
fwear, why 1 fhould be there the laft Week,
rather than the other Weeks, becaufe I was then
{huot up in the Spiritual Exercife, and they had a
particular Reafon to take notice of that.  Then,
my Lord, 1 hope you will be pleafed to mind
this, by which I have made my Plea good, that
15, my Lord, that Mr, Oafes’s Teftimony againft
me is this, Mr. 4/bby came to Town about the
middle of Fuly, and that he ftaid there about a
Fortnight, and that in the Time of that Fort-
night 1 came to Town, and faid [ would go fee
Father /by, and had that Difcourfe he fpeaks
of ; and {o much for that. And then, my Lord,
I befeech you {till to bear it in your mind, thatI
have been proved not to be in Town at the time
of the great Confult about the Plot 5 and indeed I
was not capable of 1ty for [ was not then Profef-
fed, and there could none be of that Congrega-
t'on about the Plor, but thofe that were Profefled.
1 could not be there in the Congregation, by rea-
fon of my Age, Mr. Harcouit here, and the
reft, if you will ask them, will tell you it, they
were there, but, upon the Word of a dying Man
I was not there,

L. C. ¥. >Tis not politively faid by Mr, Outes
that you were.

Gavan, But then, my Lord, he fays my Name
was to 1t, which he faw in Faly; now 1 prove,
that T was in Staffordfiire, the laft Week of Fu-
[y, and fecing I have Witnefles to prove, that I
was there till the 14th, and the laft Week, and ic
was after the 14th, that he faw me, I hope my
Plea is good. Then, my Lord, 1 around my
Plea upon this, I have ftudied Philofophy, and
other Things, but I never ftudied the Law, and
fo am very ignorant of it; but this is my Cafe,
am accufed by one Witnefs, concerning one Fadt,
and by another concerning another 3 the one
comnutted here at Lexdsn, the other in Stafford-
Jhire 3 1 defire, therefore, to know, whether
the Witnels that fwears the Thing done in

Staffordfiire,
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Sta ffordfbire, in another County, being joined to
the other Witnefs, that {fwears whar was done in
Londen, can be efteemed two Witnefles, accord-
ing to the Law, to conviét me of Treafon?

L.C. F. North. Yes, T'lltell you, if it werea
Matter of Doubt, it might be found fpecially,
and be argued, butit is a Matter that hath been
already refolved in the Cafe of Sir Henry Vane at
the Xing’s-Beneh Bar, who was indicted for levy~
ing of War again{t the King, and there one
Witnefs proved the levying of War inone Coun-
ty, and the other proved the levying of War in a-
nother County, and fo, though they were bhut
fingle Witefles of fingle Falls, yet being both
came up to the Indictment, they were adjudged
fufficient to maintain it.  So it 1s 1n your Cafe,
here is one Witnefs for the proving your hand to
the Paper, which was for the Murder of the
King, and there is another Witnefs of your Dif-
courfe to the fame purpofe; the Fat is your
joining and conf{piring to deftroy the King, and to
levy War againft him, and both thefe are
proved to the full of the Indi€tment by thele
Witnefles 5 and though they are to feveral parti-
cular Faéts, yet they arc all Overt Acls of the
fame Treafon.

Gavan. My Lord, I have a contrary Opinion
to that in Serjeant Rolls.

L.C. . North. But this is a known Cale, and
the Law is fettled therein.

L.C. % Til tell you what you miftake in
what you fay, for there are two Witnefles, Oates
and Dugdale, who fwear to the fame Fact, which
is killing the King, altering the Government,
and bringing in Popery: Oates fays he faw your
Hand to the Confult, for the Murder of the
King, for the raifing the Army, and for the -
troducing of Popery, which is a neceflary Con-
fequence of Change of Government; Dugdale
fays he was with you in the Parlour of my Lord
Afton’s, where the Difcourfe was between him and
you, and others, about killing the King, and al-
tering Religion,  Are not thefe two Witnefles to
one and the fame Treafon ¢

Gavan. No, my Lord, I conceive not.

L. C. ¥. If Iconfult a way to kill the King
here, and then 1 go into the Country, and there
I confult of it with another Perfon, are not thefe
two Witneffes to the fame Treafon ? fure they
are,
Gavanr. Then, my Lord, my fecond Plea is
this, If there be two Witnefles, you will grant
me this Ground, that no Man mult be convicted
but upon the Evidence of two legal and credi-
ble Witnefies, and upon clear Evidence, as the
Statute fince His Majefly*s happy Reftauration
does declare. Now two Things are required cer-
tainly to make a credible Witnefs, and a clear
Evidence ; asthe Witnefs muft be credible, fo it
is as agreeable to Reaflon that the Evidence muft

¢ plain and clear, yea, as clear as the Light of
the Sun at Mid-day. Now therefore if I prove,
that neither the Witnefs is credible, fuch as the
Law requires, nor the Evidence clear, fuch as
the Law looks upon as fuch, then I ought not to
be convited by this Witnefs upon this Evi-
derice,

L.C. 7. The Jury are Judges of that, and
therefore there I leave It

L.C. ¥. North. You argue mighty fubtilly,
but I’ll give you this Anfwer ; there mult be two

fawful Witnefles, that is the Law; 3 Man can-
VoL, 1I,

not be impeached of T'reafon'but by two lawful
Witnefles ;3 now if they be-nor conviéted of Per-
jury, and their Teftimony be not taken away,
but they may ‘be heard in a Court of Juftice, they-
are lawful Witnefles';s now for-the being credi-
ble Witnefles, that is a matter that is left to the
Jury, but we muft receive them as-Jawful Wit~
nefles till they be convict of a Crime that takes a-
way their Teftimony. |

Gavan. Therefore becaufe they are left to the
Jury, I am fatisfied, and [ turn my felf to you,
Gentlemen.  Youare to fit upon my Life and my
Death, as for my own part }-can truly profefs I
am as innocent as the Child anborn, and this
Gentleman Mr. Whitebread knows 1 was not ca-
pable of being at the Confult, being not of Age.
Now I muft leave my {elf to the Jury, and will
leave it to their Judements whether thefe two
W itnefles can be efteemed credible Witneffes
for to make credible Witnefles there 1s re-
quired Honefty of Life, and Truth in their
Teftimony, for no Man can be a good Witnefs
that 1s not an honeft Man, nor that hath carried
himfelf fo that he 15 not to be believed. Asto
the Honefty of Mr. Oates his Life, you have
heard that he was difgufted by the Jefuits, elteem-
ed not a Perfon of that diligence or fidelicy to be
intrufted by them ; he was turned our of St
Omers,

L.C.#. Does that prove any Difhonefty in
Mr. Qates ¢

Gavan. No, but I {peak to his Credibility.

L.C. 7. Speak plain, how does it impeach
Mr. Qates his Evidence, that the Jeluits did not
like him? '

Gavan. It might be a Ground of Hatred and
Malice in him againft themn 5 and then; Gentlemen,
I defire you to confider that other Thing, That
we have proved him to fpeak falfe in his Tefti-
mony about Sir Fobu H’arner and Sir Thomas
Preffoir 5 and all the Bulinefs of the 12th of Au-

guff, concerning Mr, Ireland's being herethe 12th

of Auguft, who, by Sixteen Witnefies, is proved
to have been all the while in Staffordfbire : And

tho’ he was not conviéted of Perjury before,

which might have eafily been done, as I have
fhewn to the whole World now, I appeal to the
Honour and Confcience of the Jury, whether all
thefe Proofs ought not to make this Witnels to
be deemed an incredible Witnefs, And pray,
Gentlemen, hear me this, and carry this away
with you, as to the Bufinefs of Ireland, between
the 8th and 12th of Auguft, how many do f{wear
that he was in Staffordfbire, 1 defire you but to
compare that one Woman that only faw him,
and made a Courtefy to him, as fhe fays, with
thofe Sixteen Witneffes that converfed with him
daily. Then as for the fecond Teftimony of the
St. Omers Witnefles, which you fee is thwarted
by fome that do fwear in the King’s Name to
the contrary : Still I defire you to compare
Number with Number : The others, tho’ they
do not fwear, are ready to fwear, and there are
only three or four againft fixteen of them, and
there is an evident Contradition in what they fay,
and that proved out of his own Mouth; for he
fays he came over the 20th of #pril with Mr,
Hilfley, and ftaid only fix Days; they fay he was
here in May, and I defire chefe may be compared :
for how could it be that he thould be here in
May, if he ftaid but fix Days? And then to
make your Verdit, and take their Credit away,

5 T |
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I would defire you to confider thofe Witnefles.
that 1 have brought for my felf, not being here,

but in #olverbampton 3 for being in Staffordfbire
as long as till the laft Week of Fuly, it muft-fall
within the time of his Teftimony. 1 have
brought Witnefles to prove upon Oath, that from
the 22d upward they faw me in #olverbampion,
and they do remember the particular Inftance
that 1 was then at my Spiritual Exercife: And
this is that I have to fay as to Mr. Oates. As
for Mr. Dygdale, 1 would defire you to reflect
upon the whole Story of his coming to difcover
this Plot, and his being an Informer about it. The
Truth is, I confefs I have known him five or fix
Years, whillt he lived at my Lord Affon’s, and
I have divers times difcourfed with him there in
Mr. Ewers's Chamber ; but, as I hope to be
faved, never any thing of Treafon in all my Life,
Now, us well known, and there are thofe that
can teltify ir, that in truch Dugdale run away

from my Lord Affen’s after he had loft 300/ of

my Lord’s Money.

L. C. 7. If you can fay any thing againft Mr,
Dugdale by Witneffes that you can prove it,
then you fay well 5 butif you will tell a Story
out of one Lord’s Mouth, and another Lord’s
Mouth, that 1s never to be endured ; you fhall
never take away a Man’s Teftimony by hear-fay,
you muft prove it.

Gavan. *T1s well known, if I prove Dug-
dale no credible Witnefs, I play my own Game,
You know I havebeen a Prifoner twenty Weeks,
and could not feek out Witnelfes, 1 asked it as
{foon as I knew of my Trial, but it was denied
me to fend for Witnefles to prove that Dugdale
was 1n Goal for Debt. If I had the Recorder’s
Warrant, or the Authority of this Bench, I
counld fend for them.

L. C. ¥. You muft not fall upon Perfons
without Evidence, if you have Witnefies to
prove any thing, whom the Jury will believe, call
them,

Gavan. T do affure your Lordfhip, as I hope
to {ee the Face of God, I am innocent of what is
charged upon me.  And God blefs the King and

this Honourable Court.
L. C. 7. Tho’ you do an hundred times blefs

the King and Court and all, you muft prove
things 1t you will be believed. What fay you,
Mr. Whitebread ?

Whitebread. My Lord, 1 have but one thing
to fay, and ’tis but a word: Your Lordfhip was
pleafed to make an Obfervation, and a good one
it was, a Letter which Mr, Dugdale fays was
~written by me to Mr. Ewers, which he fays he
intercepted 3 he was, in the mean time, a trufty
Correfpondent for his Friend. In that Letter he
{wears, there was exprefly contained pofitive
Words of entertaining Perfons to kill the King,
that only fuch as were hardy, defperate, and
ftour ; but as your Lordfhip well obferved, that
it was an improbable thing that a Man who had
his Wits about him fhould write fuch plain Ex-
preflions about fuch a Matter; and upon that
improbability 1 leave it to the Jury.

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. Have you any thing to
fay, Mr. Fenwick ¢

Fenwick. 1 defire, my Lord, your Lordfhip

and the Jury to confider and obferve the nature
both of our Witneffes, and of them that are
brought againft us. The one {peak for the whole
Time,. that they faw him every Day, or every .

other Day ; they daily converfed with him, -and
eat and drank with him 1in the fame Houfe; the
others, they fay only, they faw him one particy-
lar Day, another, another ; and one of them
fays he faw him but in a Difguife. Now, my
Lord, whether it be likely that {o many innocent
Children, brought up in a good virtuous Life,
fhould come here to forfwear themfelves, to con-
tradiét People that we know not what they are ;
and then, befides, we know that thefe People
are of a poor, mean, beggarly Condition, thatip-
tend to mend that Condition by fuch a Pretence
of Difcovery, and hope thereby to advance
themfelves. It is probable fuch People might be
drawn in. Then alfo we fhall prove shat Sir
Tobn WWarner did not come over with him, nor
Mr, Williams, nov Sir Thomas Preflon: Then
all his Witnefs, as to them, 1s falfe, and he
does not fay he went back with thefe People 5
and this for the Witnefless, Now fuppofe the
Witnefles were all equal, what does he prove a-
gainft us Three? Or what Reafon doth he give
of his Evidence? He fays he faw fuch and fuch
Letters from Mr, 7/bitebread. Now is it poffible
that a Man that had no Credit av all with us,
that we fhould be fuch Fools to truft him
with fuch Letters as thofe, then your Lordfhips
muft hang us twice, once for Fools, and then
for Knaves. Or 1s 1t poflible that we thould be
fuch egregious Foolsthat we thould truft a Man
that was never efteem’d of, was expelled the
College 2 And for all his Talk of Commiffions
and Letters, there is not one of thofe found, Iet
him fhew any one Commiffion, any Money paid,
or any Order brought him, or any Arms that
were found ; there are three Quarters of a Year
now paffed fince the firft difcovery ; certainly all
this time could produce fomething: Thoufands of
Letters have been taken from us, fome of thofe
Letters would have difcovered this Thing : cer-
tainly therefore we have better Evidence than he
hath, {uppofing them to be equal as to Credi-
bility in their Original. Is 1t credible we fhould
be fo great Rogues to contrive the King’s
Death? though he {peaks of the Writing being
carried from Chamber to Chamber concerning
this Matter, he can never produce one Paper
figned by any one Man’s Hand, nor can he
produce any thing to atwelt his Teftimony, I
leave this to your Lordfhips Judgment, whether
this Evidence be good, there is nothing appears
in fo much time, of any Effe&t that 1s produced :
Where were the Armies ? Where were the Mo-
nies paid 7 Where the Commiffions? Is it pof-
{ible fuch a thing fhould be, and no fign of it
for a whole Year almoft ¢ there 15 no Reafon
brought, amongft them all, but Saying and Swear-
ing, and that I will ftand by.

Fi7bitebread. Ithank God I don’t look like a
fighting Man, nor I never did; but who can
think that I fhould be fo mad, when I had com-
mitted fuch a Secret to him, to beat him, as he
fays? °Tis ftrange that fuch a Plot fhould be
difcovered wherein fo many Perfons of Quality,
Honour and Reputation, are faid to be concerned,
and yet no Footfteps of it appear ; and none ol
them, as my Lord Arundel, my Lord Bellafis,
fhould never divulge fuch a Plot ; I would fain
know whether fuch a thing be probable, butl
commend my felf to God Almighty, and the Jury.

Harcourt, My Lord, 1 haveonly this to fay, I

have lived to this Age, which is 70 Years,and I
| never
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never knew any Man that could fay I was accu-
{fed of the thing in the World, for which ]
fhould be brought before any Magiltrate; and
'tis ftrange that after fo many Years | fhould
come to be Arraigned and Condemned for a Crime
of the higheft Nature; and there’s no Reafon
brought againft me, nor any of the reft, for the
Proof of what 1s alledged, nor do they, who
are the Witnefles againtt us, deferve at all any
Credic. They only affirmy fuch and fuch things
without any Reafon, to perfuade you to believe
them, and ’uis eafy to fay, and fo ’us to fwear i,
So that all I have to fay s this, fince a Negative
cannot be proved, 1 hope Innocency will find
fome that thall defend it. I leave my felf to the
Bench, for the Law is the Defence of Innocency.
If they did bring any Evidence befides that,
which 1s downright pofitive Swearing without any
Reafon or concurrent Reafon to confirm 1t, it
were fomething.

Fenzoick, And befides all this, to think how
thefe Men have lived before time is worth Re-
fle¢tion and Confidering. As for Bedlsw, he
hath been a very ill Man, the World knows i,

L.C.F. Have you proved it? Can you fhew
any Record of it?

Mr., Jult. Pemberton. Turuer, have you any
thing to fay? You have had your Time,

Fenwick, You will find that Newo wepente fit
neguiffimus, No Man arrives at the highelt De-
grees of Impiety at firlt: Men grow extremely
wicked by Decgrees. But let us fee 1f they can
blame our Lives, or any thing that we have done
at any time before; we prove, and all the World
knows what they have beeny and how {canda-
Joufly they have lived.

Gavan., Our Witnefles are to be regarded for
their Number and for their Innocency, efpecially
fince they gve no Realon nor convincing Argu-
ments for what they do affirm.

L.C.¥. We would hear you, and we have
heard you very long, but it muft not be permit-
ted you to go over the Jame things again and
agatn,

L.C. Baron, Hath Turazer any thing to fay?

Turner. All that 1 have to fay, my Lord, is
this, to ask whether it be reafonable that Bedlow
and Oates thould be looked upon as good W it-
neffes, that thefe Perfons who have been fuch
{candalous People [hould be admitted to an Oath,
who were debarred from the Sacrament; for ac-
cording to the Church of Zugland, no Man that
15 publickly fcandalous can be admitted to the
Sacrament,

L.C. f. But you prove nothing,

Turner, 1 can prove it firft by Evidence of one
Haftins,

L.C. % Call him, [But be appeared not. ]

L.C. 7. Gentlemen of the Jury; kere hath
been a very long Evidence, and a very confufed
one; and you cannot expect, that it fhould be
wholly repeated to you: For it is almoft impoffi-
ble for any one to remember it; neither would I
if I could, becaufe a great deal of it is imperti-
nent, and vainly to be repeated : And befides ma-
ny things have been faid over and over again,
to no purpole.  But I will obferve to you, as well

as 1 can, what Teltimonies there are againft each
particular Man of them; and that I do look upon,

to be very matertal.  And Ileaveit to you, to
Judge and confider, how far the Evidence is Cre-
dible, and how far it is Subftantial.

Vou. Il

Againft Mr. Whitebread, you have the Tefti
mony of three, Oates, Dugdale, and Bedlow:
Againlt Mr, Fenwick, youhave the Teftimony of
Oales, Bedloi and Praunce: Againft Harcourt, you
have Qates, Dugdalé, Bedlow; and Praunce. You
have againft Gdvan, Duygdale, and Oates; and
againft Turner, Dugdale, and Oates: So that, to
the two laft, you havetwo, three to the two firft,
and four to Harcourt.

Now, the Matter that they have fworn, hath
been all tending to one thing; the Murder of
the King, the Advancing of Popery, and Sup-
preflion of the Protefant Relision: That is the
'Thing, that all the Evidence does drive at.

For Dugdale, for ought we can perceive, he
hath been upon the matter a Stranger to Oates
and Bedlow 35 and I do not find, that he had any
Correfpondence with, or Knowledge of them, at
the time he charges Mr, Harcourt, and Mr. Ga-
van, And he charges them with the very felf-
fame Things, wiz. the Confulting the Death of
the Kiig, and Advancement of Popery. And
they have feveral Inftances of the Fadts, as their
feveral Confultations ; how they met together, and
where, or at what Place. And Dugdale tells you
of a Letter, that he found s wherein #bitehread
gave Charge, for the Entertainment of good
ftout Fellows; Nomatter for Gentlemen, {o they
were Refolute.  And fo they have feveral Medi-
ums to prove oneand the fame Thing,

Mr, Fenwick fays to all this, Here is nothing
againft us, bur talking and fwearing : But for that,
he hath been told, (if it were poffible for him to
learn) that all Teftimony is but talking and fwear-
ing: Forall Things, all Mens Lives and Fortures,
are determined by an Oath; and an Oath is by
talking, by kiffing the Book, and calling God to
witnefs to the Truth of what is faid. That is
the Effence of an Oath, and thofe are the Cere-
monies: The Kifling the Book, and Speaking,
15 the accidental Form 3 the Subftance is, calling
God to Witnefs. Therefore what a vain thing
s it in Mr. Feswick, to feem to triumph, by fay-
ing, There 15 nothing againit us, but talking and
{fwearing, There 15 nothing againft them, buc
Evidence and Proof of Men upon Qath: And
their Reafons, the Truth is, are very Trifles.
They defend their Lives as they do their Reli-
gion, with weak Arguments, and fallacious Rea-
fons.

For that long Bufinefs, that Mr, Gevan hath
undertaken to fay againft Mr, Oates, and what
they all infift upon, viz. the Number of their
Witneffes, which were Sixteen, amounts to this,
to difprove Mr. Oafes that it could not be true
what he fays, That he thould be prefent here at
a Confult, the Twenty-fourth of April, becaufe
they have brought Sixteen from St. Omers to
prove, That he was there all 4pril and Aay.

“Ts very true now, if that be fo, it is impof-
fible Oates can {wear any Truth: But whether
that is to be heliev’d, or no, is the Queftion,
Methinks they did not do well for themfelves,
when they bid you remember the Nature of the
Evidence, They did well enough, to bid you
remember the Number: For the Number is more
than what Oafes 1s back’d with on t'other Side;
but the Nature 15 of much lefs Weight: Not
only becauie they are not upon their Qaths, for
by Law they may not be upon their Qaths 3 (and
that mult not be charged on them as a Defet,
feeing they would {wear, I doubt not,if they

5 T 2 might )
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might) but becanfe their Teftimony is reaily to be

"believed much alike without an Qath, as withone;
‘becaufe they are of 2 Religion that can difpenfe
with Qaths, though falfe, for the fake of agood
Caule.

But, feeing they defire the Nature of the Men
may be confidered, you are to obfervey that they
are Profelytes, and Young Striplings of their
Church 3 which does indeed, in one Refpect or
other, abufe all her Difciples, and keeps them
a blind Obedience, to purfue and cffeCt all Her
Commands.

If the Do&rines of that Church were better;
if fuch which are allowed by their Chief Authors,
were but lefs bloody and inhumane; If they had
ever put thofe that are {o, into an Index Expur-
galorins, that they might have been publickly
difowned and declared as the particular Opinions
of fome ill Men, which they did difavow ; thefe
Men might have been then more worthy to be re-
garded.  Bot when none of therr Popes have
dore this (who muft have very {trange Foreheads,
if thev fay they have) and fuch Doétrines are itill
owned, there 1s much indeed to be obferved from
the Naszie of the Evidence, the Nafwre of the
Men, and their Profefiion.

I muft confefs, I believe that they would deny
their Principles to be bloody, or to be defended
and allowed by any of their beft Authors, if at
this Time, the Fear of apparent Falfhood did not
deter them : But if to Murder K1NGs, or 1o
Depofe them, and Abfolve their Subjets from
their Allegiance, for the Advancement of Religt-
on, be a Thing moft improus, and void of Religt-
on, and makes Religion worle than none 3 which
Docétrine yat they have owned, and their Councils
have nwned, and we have proved it upon them,
and ¢ut of them: I cannot tell what to fuy to
thefc Men, or their Teftimony 5 the Natwiz of
whom they defire to be conlidered.

But they were Young Boys, fent for hither on
purpcle to give this Telumony; and 1t was not,
indeed, a Fault in the Prifoners at the Bar, to
fend for what Evidence they could, for themtelves:
But it 1s very doubtful and fuipicious, to have fuch
oreen and flexible Minds thus employ’d, and I
mult leave it to you, to confider how far thefe
Young Men, train’d in fuch Principles, may be
prevail’d on to {peak what is not true.

And now, if the King’s Evidence, after this,
ftood alone, 1t were yet fomething: But when
you have Mr. Oates’s Teftimony, as te this great
Matter of his appearing in April, confirmed by
Seven or Eight Witnefles, that fpeak {o expref-
‘ly to it, how will they anfwer it! Do they make
Sir Richard Baiker a Perfon of no Value? Do
they fo litle efteem the Minifter, that fays I
knew him though he wasin Difguife; and went
and faid it prefently to a Woman, that he knew
was acquainted with Oates, And asking her,
when fhe faw Mr. Qates? And fhe faying, Nota
great while; he faid, I faw him later than you;
and fays, he did know him: And this 1s con-
firmed {till by Sir Richard Barker, who tells you,
That his Men told him that he had been there,
What fhould make them to acquaint their Mafter
fo, if it were not fo? Or do you think 1t a thing
malicioufly prepared or invented, to take away
the Lives of thefe Men, that his Men fhould tell
him a Story fo longago? If it be not true; to
what Purpofe fhould they tell him fo? and if 1t
ba true, it confirmsthe Matter fiwornagamnft them.

There is he that was his Companion, the
Schoolmafter, that fays, in the beginning of
Meay was Twelvemonth, Mr. Oafes dined wich
him at his Houfe, fat with him four Hours, djg.
courfed of his Travels into Spain and St. Omers »
And there is the Man that is a Papiff, if not
Prieff, that {wears he {aw him twice, about the
middle of April, at Mr, Charles Haward’s Lodg-
ings in Aryndel Floule; fo that here are Sevep
Witnefles, dire@t or circumitantial, to prove
Mr. Oates to have been in Londsi, in April and
May, 1078.

But fay they, This is but Zalking and Swearing,
Very fine! and the St. Omers Youths is Zalking,
but not Swearing, Ay! but then their Numbers
arc not fo many. That, Gentlemen, I leave to
you, for both cannot be true. The Teftimony
of Mr. Oates, and the Witnefles that he had 1o
back himfelf withal, and to prove himfelf to be
here, Is inconfiftent with what the young Men fay,
that he was at St. Omers,

Now, if you obferve, all thefe Mens Defence
1s in the circumitantial Part of the Evidence, in
watching and catching at what Day, what Hour,
and what Month? how Mr. Oates reckoned falfe,
fo ard {o: if he came here about the 20th of
Aprily how could they fee him the 1ft of Adap?
and they think then, they have got {uch a migh-
ty -Vicrory, but it1s not fo weighty an Argument
with Proteftants, after all their Conceit, that it
is unanferable; for here is the Point, The Mat-
ter of Time is 2 Thing that no Man can fo pre-
cifely charge his Memory with, as that it thould
be too flrictly the Meafure of your Judements
about Truth or Falthood, by the miftake of feven
or cight Days, Examine your {felves, how often
every Day you do miftake things that have been
tranfated half a Year ago, and err in Point of
Time, taking one Week for another, and one
Month for another; and tho’ I mult fay, it s
confiderable, yet too great Weight i1s not to be
laid upon that,

As for that they infift upon fo much, the com.
ing over of Sir Thomas Pregon, and Sir Fobn
Iarner, with Mr. Oatess it 1s true, three or four
Witnefles fpeak, as toSir Fobn W arner, and fome
to Sir Themas Preffon; and they fay, they were
both beyond Sea when Mr, Oales came over;
but if the Sixteen be notto be believed in the
firlt Matter, and if Mr. Qates does fay true, not-
withflanding all their Evidence, that he was here
fuch a Time in April and Alay, then Pl tell you
what Inference may naturally be; to wit, That
they can’t want 2 Witnefs to prove what they
pleafc: For 1 believe there is none of them all
will make any Bones of it.

[ fay, Gentlemen, if you are fatished ‘in your
Con{ciences, that the Evidence on Mr. Quaies his
Part, to that Poinr, (that is to fay, feven Wit
nefles) ought to prevail with you, to believe he
was here in thofe Months, (notwithftanding the
fixteens Witnelles, who fay they faw him every Day
beyond Sea, in April and May,) their other Evi-
dence about his coming over with Preflens and
Farner, will have no great Weignt; ‘becaufe the
other is the Great Matter, by which they make
the Subftance of their Defence.

[ am glad indeed to fee a Gentleman here, whofe
Face 1 never faw before, and that is Mr, Dup-
dale. Upon my Word, he hath cfcaped well,
for T find lhittle faid agamft him, very little,
either as to the Matter or the Manner of his

Evidence.
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Evidence. ‘They would have made Refletion on
him for his Poverty, but I hope that they, whole
Religion is-to vow Poverty, will never infilt on
that for any great Objetion againt any.

L. C.F. Nowth, Your Lordfhip hath forgot that
he faid he save away Three or Four Hundred
Pounds to them.,

L.C. F. Bat I will challenge all the Papifts in
England, to fatisfy any Man that hears me this
Day of one picce of Evidence, which will turn
every Proteftant’s Heart againft the Papifts, If
* fo be they murdered Sir Edmundbury Godfrey, the
Plot even by that, is ina grear'meafure proved
upon them, by that bafe Murder, And what can
be a plainer ‘Proof of it, than the Evidence of
this Day, which Nr. Dugdale produces? We
had notice, faith he, on Adsuday Night, that on
the Saturday before -it, Siv Edmundbury Godfrey
was kill’d-3 (which falls out to be that very §a-
turday he was firlt mifling ;) which Norice was
given in a Leiter writ by Harcowrt to Euwers,
another Prieft, that fame Saturday Night, where-
in were thefe Words, This Night Sir Edmunbu-
ry Godfrey is difpatcl’d 5 and 1 am fure, 1t this
be true, then no Nan can fay, but They murdered
him.

IWhitehread. Tt is not alledged againft apy of
us.
L.C.7. It is an Evidence of the Plot in gene-
ral, and to [Harconrt in-particular,

Harcourt. He never fhews the Letter that he
fays 1 wrir.

L.C. % He fays that he ufed to perufe the
Letters, and that Zwers had this again, after he
had perufed it; he fays alfo he has received, at
Times, a hundred Letters from you, and this
among the reft. Now the Queltion 15, W he-
ther it be true, or no? To make it out he pro-
duces Mr. Chetwynd, whom I hope you will not
deny to be a Gentleman of one of the beft Fa-
milies of his Country, and of honeft Reputation ;
who fays, Thaton the Zuefday following that §a-
trday Siv Edmundbury Gedfrey was mifs’d, he
and another were talking together m Staffurdfhiie,
and that the ozher Perfon asked him, if he knew
of the Death of any Jultice of the Peace at 777¢f-
ainfter, and when he told him, he had heard of
no fuch thing ; No! faid he, that 1s ftrange, you
living fometimes about 77effmtnfler for, faid he,
The Wench at the Alchoule fays, That this
Morning Mr. Drgdale faid to two other Gentle-
men, There was a Jultice of Peace of /7%f-
minffer kill’d 3 and Mr. Dugdale fwears, that was
Sir Edmundbury Godfrey. Now, if Duygdale'be fic
to be believed, that he faw fuch a Letrer, as he
muft be if he be not a very great Prophet, to
be able to foretel this; orif the Maid that faid
this, did not invent it (2 Thing then 1mpoflible
to be done) or Mr. Chetswyid feigned, that he
heard the Man make his ‘Report from the Maid 4
this Thing could not come pcfs, but by thefe
Men, Nuy, if Mr. Dugdale could not do as
areat a Miracle as any are in the Fopsh Legends,
how could he tell, that it was done on the fame
Night when it was done at Londoi ¢ Or fpeak
of it, on the Monday Night after, when 1t was
not known in Loudon till the Thurfiay following?
This will ftick, Iaflure you, Sirs, upon all your
Parry.

K gr my own part, this Tvidence of Mr. Dug-
dal’s gives me the greateft Saustaction of any
thing in the World in this Mater; and whilit

we reft fatisfied in the Murder of that Man, and
are morally certain you muft do it, knowing of
what Principles you are, you cannot blame us,
if, upon fuch manifeft Reafons, we lay it upon
'Ol

} And this is Occalional Evidence, which I, for
my part never heard before this Day; nor can
I be more, or better fatished, than I am upon -
this Point, iz, The Teftimony that I have re-
ceived this Afeernoon, concerning the Murder of
Sir Edmundbury Godfrey. As to the Defences
they have made, they are Exceptions in Point of
Time, but do not affeét Mr. Dugdale; for they
have hardly the Confidence to'deny ‘the Things
he {ays, to be true againlt them.

They fall foul, indecd, upon Mr, Ostes: He
appears to have been their Agent; and whillt fo,
bad enough : But if he had not had a Mind to
have become a*good Man, he would not likely
have done us that Good that he hath done, in
difcovering the Dehign you had engaged him in.
Let any iMan judge, by your ‘Principles and
Practices, what you will'not do, for the pro-
moting of the fame.

For while this Gentleman’s Blood lies upon
you {and fome have ‘been Executed for it,) it
muft be yet farther told you, that in what you
Did do, you have given us a Specimen of what
you /#ould do. Wre havea Teftimony, that for
promoting your Caufe, you would not ftick at
the Proteftants Blood. You Began with Sir Zd-
smundbury Godfrey, but who knows where you
would have made an End! It was this One Man
you kill’d in his‘Perfon, ‘but in ‘Efigy the Whole
Nation. It was 1 one Man’s‘Blood your Hands
are Imbrued; but your Souls were Dipf in the
Blood of us all, This was a Handfel only of
what was to follow ; and fo long as we are con-
vinced you kill’d him, we cannot but believe you
would alfo kill the King. 'We cannot but believe,
you would make All of Us away, that ftand in
the Way of your Religion; A Religion, which,
according to what it is, you would bring in upon
us; by a Converfion of us with Blood 3 and by a
Baptifn with Fire. God keep our Laud from
the one, and our City from the other.,

To return: The Letter that is found in FHar-
conit’s Papers, does further confirm Mr. Oates in
all the greatand confiderable Mazters that he fays ;
That there was a Plot; That that Plot was call-
ed by the Nameof a DEsicN, which wasto be
kept Clofe and Secrer: And this is an Evidence
that cannot lye. For that Letter will never be
cot off, no more than the other Letter, that
Mr, Dugdale fpeaks of about Sir Edmundbury
Godfrey. '

And thus I leave it to you Gentlemen: You
have heard how many Witneffes they have had

for them, about Twenty-four or Twenty-five,

of one fort or another. You have heard what
they apply their Teftimony unto, to convict
MTr, Oates of Falthood in matter of Time; which
was their principal Defence: That he was not
here 1n April and Aay, and that he came not
over with Sir Thomas Prefton, and Sir Jobi IV ar-
ser, and that Lreland was not here all Augnff,
You have heard what Witnefles Oafes 1 back‘ﬁ
withal, as to the Time of his being here: Aud
the Maid fays, fhe faw lreland here in Auguf?,
However, though thelr Defence depends buit

-upon 2 Point of Time, 1 mult tell you, it oughe

to be well confidered, for s indced very confider-
able



878

able towards their Defence; and God forbid but
we fhould be equal to all Men.

And fo I have remembred, as well as 1 can, 1n
this long and perplexed Evidence, that which
feems to me moft material, as to their Charge or
Difcharge ; and that which they have made their
greateft Defence by the Youths from St. Omers,
to difprove Mr. Oafes his being here, and Mr.
Ireland’s not being in London in Auguff, which 1n

Truth is not the proper Bufinefs of this Day ;

but hath received a former Verdict before; for

if fo be the Jury before had not been fatisfied of

the Truth of that, they could never have found
[reland Guilty. So I leave it to you, upon the
whole Matter., I can remember nothing befides.
Go together, and confider of your Verdict, ac-
cording to your Evidence.

L. C. . North. Gentlemen, my Lord hath re-
peated it fo fully to you, that 1 {hall not need to
add any thing to It.

Then an Officer was fworn 1o keep the Jury,
who withdrews and the Fudges alfo went
off from the Beuch, leaving Mr. Recorder,

and a competent Number of Commiffioners
theve, to take the Verdifl; and about the
fpace of a Quarter of an Hour, the Jury
veturned, and anfwered to their Names, and
gave in their Verditt thus.

Cl. of the Cr. Gentlemen, are you all agreed
of your Verdi(t?

Omnes. Yes.
Cl. of the Cr. Who fhall fay for your
Omnes. Foreman, ,
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Cl. of the Cr. Thoiras Ihite, alias Whitebread,
hold up thy Hand. You of the Jury look upon
the Prifoner: How fay you? Is he Guilty of
the High-Treafon whereof he ftands Indicted, or
Not Guilty?

Foreman. Guilty.

Cl. of the Cr. What Goods or Chattels?

Foreman, None, to our Knowledge., [4ud fo

Jeverally of the reft.]

Which Verdiét being Recorded, in ufual Form,
Mr. Recorder fpoke to the Fury thus:

Gentlemen, you of the Jury, There hath been
a long Evidence given againft the Prifoners at
the Bar: They were all Indi®ed, Arraigned,
fairly Tried, and fully Heard, for High-Trealon,
depending upon feveral Circumftances. They can
none of them pretend to fay, (and 1 take the
Liberty to take notice of it, for the Satisfation
of them, and all that are here prefent, and all the
World,) That not a Perfon among the Prifoners
at the Bar, were either wanting to themfelves to
Offer, or the Court to them, to Hear any thing
that they could fay for themfelves. But, upon
a long Evidence, a full difcufling the Objections
made againft 1t, and a patient hearing of the De-
fence they made, they are found Guilty: And I
do think, that every honeft Man will fay, That

they are unexceptionably found fo; and that ’tis
a juft Verdiét you have given.

And then the Prifoners were carried back to
Newgate, and the Court adjourned till Eight
uext Mormng : When the Court proceeded
fo the Trial of Richard Langhorn.

LXXXIV. The Trialof RicaarDd * LANGHORN, L/fg;
at the Old-Baily, for High-Trealon, June 14, 1679,

31 Car. 1L

BT 'j‘??}ﬁ‘éPON Saturday the 14th of Fuue,
52 fBR {3 1679, at the Seffions-Houfe in the

4832 Old-Baily, London, the Court (accord-
Wleld ina to their Adjournment the pre-

Xdsente ceeding Day) met, and proceeded to
the Trial of Richard Langhorn, Eig; n this

manner .

Clerk of the Crown. Set Richard Langhorn to
the Bar. Richard Langhorn, hold up thy Hand.

(W bich be did.]

"Thou ftandeft Indifted in London, by the Name
of Richard Langhorn, late of London, Elq;

For that you Richard Langhorn the Elder, as a
falfe Traitor of the moft [luftrious, Serene, and Ex-
cellent Prince, Charles the Second, by the Grace of
God, King of England, Scotland, France, and
Treland, Defender of the Faith, your fupreme and
Nataval Lord, not hazing the Fear of God in your
Heart, nor weighing the Duty of your allegiatice,

but being moved and feduced by the Infligation of the
Devil, the cordial Love, and true, due, and naty-
ral Obediencey which true and faithful Subjetts of onr

Jaid Sovereigis Lord the King, towards bim do and

ought to bear, altogether withdrawing, and devifing,
and with all your Strength, iniending the Peace
and common Tranquillity of this Kiugdom to difturb,
and the true Worfbip of God within this Kingdom
ufed, and by Law eftablifbed, to overthrow, aid
Seditioa and Rebellion within this Kingdom to flir up
and precure, and the tyue Love, Duty and Obedience,
which true and faithful Subjeéls of our faid Lord
the King, towards bim do and of right ought to
bear, to withdraw, relinguifh, and extinguifh, on the
goth Day of September, in the g0th Year of His
Majefty’s Reign, at London, in the Parifh of St.
Dunttan’s in the Weft, in the /Vard of Farringdon
without London, aforefaid, falfly, malicionfly, fub-
tilly, and traiteronfly, with many otber filfe Trai-
tors of our Sovereign Lord the King unknowon, did
purpofe, compafs, imagine, inteud, con/ult and agree,

50

* Burn. Hiff. Owsn Times, V ol. I. p. 463.



1670. O. B.

3o flir up Sedition and Rebellion within this Kingdom
of fngland, ag
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miffions in Writing, made by Authority derived from

ainft onr faid Sovereign Lord the the See of Rome, for conflituting Military Ojficers,

Kinp, and a miferable Slaughter amongft the Sub-  for leading the Forces to be lewicd in this Kingdois

o575 of our faid Lord the King, of bis Kingdoms:of
JEngl;md, 10 procure and canfe, aud our faid Sove-
reign Lord the King,

againfi our faid Sovereign Lord the King, for the
altering the Proteftant Reformed Relision, to ths

from bis Kingly State, Title, Ule and Superflition of the Church of Rome, il

Power, and Government, of bis Kingdom of England, for fubverting the Government of this Kingdom of

sotally to deprive, depofe, and difinberit, and our faid
Sovereign Lord the King to Death and final Deftruc-
tion 1o bring and put, and the Government of this
Kingdom 20 fitbver! ﬂf!d change, and the trite Jor-
fhip of God 18 this Kingdom by {Zrzqg qﬂnbi;_//yed and
vfed 1o alter, and the State of this Kingdom in all the
Parts thereof well inflitused, totally to fubvert and
deftroy, and I ar within this Kingdon qf' England
1o procure aid levy, and ihe fame moft wicked Trea-
foins, iratterous Imrzgmr{hwz:, Puypofes, Compaffings,
and Agreements aforefaid, and to perfel? and fulfil:
You the faid Richard Langhorn afterwards, to wit,
the 20th Day of September iiz the 30tb Year aforefaid,
and diverfe other Times Z)efb{'e al Londop, £gc. fal s
advifedly, malicioufly, fubtilly, and traiteronfly, did
conpafs, contrive, and write two Leiters, 1o be fent
40 certain Perfons unkiowon at Rome, and af St, O-
mers, 2 Parts beyond the Seas, to procure the Ad-
bf?'ﬁ’ﬂf‘fr"! A’id and Aﬁ}?mm qf the Papﬁ, ‘ﬂﬂd 'qf the
French King, and otheis, 1o you the -faid Richard
Langhorn, and atbe{' j}x{fé _Tm'zfars Hﬂkﬂ{fﬂﬂ, the
1r1e or hip of God within this Kingdom of England,
by Law eftablifbed and ufed, 1o the Superfiition of the
Churchof Rome fo alter, and the Goveriment of this
Kingdom of England fo Jubvert, and our faid Sove-
reigin Lord the King 10 Death and final Deftrultion o
bitng and pits and that Jou the faid Rlcllnrd La”g_'
horn, ## further Profecution of the faid Treafon, irai-
terous Imaginations, Intentionsy m{d zfgrreeﬂ:fnt:f afure-
ﬁzfd, oi the Day and Yoar aforefaid, and tf.{f' Jaid other
Days aid Times before at London, ¢, did compafs,
coitrive, and write Lo otber Letkers 10 be fent 1o
Rome, i1 Parts beyond the Seas, 10 oie Chriltopher
Anderton, thenRector of the Englith College atRome
ﬂfg;-qﬁzid, aid 1209 otber Lelters to ?):.’ fent to St, O-
mers, i1 Parts beyond the Seas, lo diverfe Perfons un-
bizon there refiding, and by the _/f:s'fd refpective Le{'-
ters traiteroufly you did advife the faid Pope, and Chri-
{topher Anderton, and otber Perfons unknown refi-
ding beyoud the Seas, of i ways and maniter to be
taken for accomplifbing the faid moft wicked Treafons,

o allering 1he true IV o fhip of Gagl‘ i7 iﬁ!{ Kingdom
efablifped and ufed, to the Superflition of tire Church
of Rome, and for fubvertig the Gﬂ%‘?‘m)}?ﬁt of this
Kingdom, and for the Dealo and Deftruiiion of our
Jaid Lord the King, and to the Intent that the fuid
Chriftopher Anderton, and otbers unknowi, fhould
give their Aid, Affffance, and dberence, and fhould
procuve other Aid, Affiftesnce, and ddberence, (o you
the faid Richard Langhorn, and otber falfe ﬁ'ﬂ:fq:-s
ankiowin, to alter the true I7orfbip of God aforefaid,
io the Superftition of the Church of Rome, and fo
[fubuert -the Government of this Kingdom g_:)"' Eng-
land, and to put onr faid Sovereigh-Lord.the King
to Death, and that you the faid Richard Langhorn
afterwards, to wit, the Day and Year aforefaid at
London, &5c. Traiteroufly did deliver the Letters
eforefaid, 1o be fent to tuz faid Chriftopher Ander-
ton, aind others, Perfons beyond the Seasy ¥o perfelt
the Traitesous Purpofes aforefaid, and. that you the
faid Richard Langhorn, Surther to fulfd and ac-
complifh the Jaine moft wicked Treafons, raiterous
TImaginations, Purpofes, aitd Cﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁ?fgf.#farc_ﬁzrd,
afterwards the [faid 30th Day of September, 12 the
Thirtieth Year aforefaid, at London, ¢, frve Com-

England, Traiteroufly. you did veceive, and five
otier Commiffions “in Writing, made by Authority
derived from the See of Rome, for conjliluting Cia
vil Officers for Governing this Kingdom aftcr the
moft wicked Treafons and Iraiterous Imaginations,
Purpofes and Compaffing aforefaid were fulfilled aid
accomplifbed, then and there traiteroufly you did
receive,  And that you the faid Langhorn, affei-
wards, to wity the Day and Year aforefaid, at
London, &¢. the faid feveral Commiffions (o res
cetved, to divers falfe Traitors of our Scvereivs
Lord the King unknown, falfly, kuowingly, aid
traiteroufly did diftribute, grve and difpofe for coi-
Situting Officers, as well Military as Cruil, to the
trasterous  Purpofes aforefaid.  And that you the

faid Richard Langhorn, afferwards on the Day

and Year aforefaid, at London, &e. a Commifion
lo conflitute and anthorize you to be Advocate-Ge-
neral of the drmy, to be levied in this Kingdom,
to War againft onr faid Severcign Lord the King,
falfly, traiteroufly, and againft the Duty of your
Allegiance,from a certainPerfon viknoton, did receive
and bad; and the fame Commiffion then and there
Jalfly, advifedly, aud traiteroufly, did infped and
read, and in your Cuftedy keep; and to the fawme
Commiffion trasteroufly did give your Confent, to the
Intent that you the faid Richard Langhorn fhosld
bave and execute the Place and Office of Advocate-
Geieral of the Army aforefaid, after the Army -
forefaid fhould be rais'd againft onr faid Ssvereion
Lard the King, by you the faid Richard Langhorn,
and other falfe Traitors nnknown, in Execution of
the faid tratterous Compafings, Imaginations, and
Agreements aforefaid.  dnd that whereas William
Ireland, John Grove, ard Thomas Pickering,
and otber falfe Traitors of our Sovereign Lord the
King, unknown, on the 24¢th Day of April, in the
30th Jear aforefaid, m the County of Middlefex,
did confult 1o bring and pur onr faid Sovercign Lord
twe King to Death and final Deflrniion, and 1
change and alter Religion in this Kingdem of Eng-
hand, rightly and by Law eftablifbed, to the Super-
fition of ibe Church of Rome, at London, &r.
bad Notice of that Confultation 5 and the fame Conn
fultation for tbe Defirution of the King, and for the
Alteration of Religion in this Kingdom, rightly E-
fablifbed, to the Superflition of the Church of Rome,
aind the Treafonable Apreements bad in that Conful-
tattoir, on the faid goth Day of September, i the
30th Year aforefaid, from our faid Sovereign Lord
the King, advifedly and traiteroufly did conceal, ard
10 that Confultation traiteroufly you did coufent. And
the faid William Ireland, John Grove, axd Tho-
mas Pickering, o the Day and Year loft aforefaid,
at London, the Treafons aforefaid to perpetiate and
perfeil, ‘malicionfly, fubtilly, and traiteronfly, you
did abet, counfel, maintain and comfert; and that
yote the faid Richard Langhorn, afterwards (to
wit) the faid 30th Day of September, in the g01b
Year aforefard, at London, Ec. falfly, fubtilly, and
traiteroufly, you did move and [olicit the Benedictine
Monks, (unknown ) to expend and pay the Sum of Six
Thoufand Pounds, to procure a Perfon traiteroufly to
kill and musder onr faid Sovereign Lord the King. And
whereas Edward Coléman, and other. falfé -Traz'fw}
¢
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of our faid Soveseign Lord the King, unknows, ot
the 29th of September, #n the 30th Xear aforefaid,
in the County of Miiddlefex, traiteroufly bad coit-
[pired and confulted to procure Rebellion and Sedi~
ti0it, within this Kingdom of England, agamft our
[aid Sovereign Lord the King, and bim from bis King-
ly State and Government of this bis Kingdom of Eng-
iand 2o deprive and difinberit, and o bring and
put kim to faal Death and Deflruétion, and e Go-
vernment of this Kingdom of England fo alter, and
the true Relision in this Kingdom of England, by
Law Eftablifted, to alter and change. And whereas
be the [aid Fdward Coleman bad tyaitcroufly witten
four Letters to Monfieur Le Chatle, then Counfel-
lor of the French King, to procure the Aid, Al
tance, and Adberence of the French King, to perfei?
and accorplifh the traiterons Imaginations aforcfatd,
you the faid Richard Langhorn afteriwards, 10
wit, the [aid Thirtieth Day of September, 1he
Thirtieth Year aforcfaid, ai London, ESc. well know-
ing the ti eafonable Matters i the fame Lelters con-
tained, to the fame Letters did confent, and then and
there falfly, fubtilly, advifedly, malicionfly, and tra-
teronfly did abet, conifely maintain, and comfort the
Jaid Edward Coleman, to perpelrate and accomplifh
the Treafor aforefaid, againft the Duty of jour Alle-
pizice, againft the Peace of our Severeign Lord the
King, his Crown and Dignity, and agaiift the Form
of the Statuse 1 this Caje made and provided.

Clerk of the Crown. How fay’lt thou, Rickaid
Langhorn, art thou Guilty of this Fligh-Trea-
fon whercof thou ftandeft Indicted, or Not
Guilty ? |

Laughurn. Not Guilty. |

Cl. of the Cr. Culprit, how wilc thou be
Tried ?

Langhorn, By God and my Country.

Cl of the Cr. God fend thee a good Delive-

rance.

Then the Peti. Fury impannelled for this Tria!l
cvas called, the Prifoncr put to bis Challenges,
but challengizg noiey the Twelve fuworn cwere
thefe.

Artbur Qonz, | Thomas Barnes,
Edward Beeler, | Francis Neeve,
Robert Tanford, | Jobn Hall,
IWilliam Yapp, | George Sitcvell,
“obi Kirtbam, | Fames Wood, and
Peter Pickering, | Richard Cawiborie.

After which, Proclamation for Information wwas
made i the ufual manxer.

Cl of the Cr. Richard Langhorn, hold up thy
Hand.” [ #bich be did.] You of the Jury, look
upon the Prifoner, and hearken to his Caufe :
He {tands IndiCted in Loudon by the Name of Ri-
chard Langbori, Yate of London, Eiq; for that as
a falfe Traitor, (Fe. [put in the Indictment Muta-
tis Mutandis] and againft the Form of the Sta-
tute in that Cafe made and provided. Upon this
Inditment he hath been Arraigned, and there-
unto hath pleaded No# Guilty; your Charge s
to enquire whether he be Guilty of the High-
Treafon whereof he ftands Indi¢ted, or Not
Guilty ; if you find him Guilty, then you are
to enquire what Goods or Chattels, Lands or

Tencmenss he had at the Time of the High-
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Treafon committed, or at any Time fincey 1f
you find him Not Guilty, you fhal] enquire whe-
ther he fled for it, if you find that he fled for 1,
you are to enquire of his Goods and Chattels, as
if you had found him Guilty : If you find him
Not Guilty, nor that he did {ly for it, fay {0 and
no more, and hear your Evidence.

Then Roger Belwood, Efgs of Council for ihe
King in this Canfe, opeir’d the Indiciment thus :

May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and you
Gentlemen of the Jury ;

The Prifoner at the Bar, Mr. Langhori, {tands
Indifted of High-Treafor, and 1t 1s for conipi-
ring the Murder of the King, and endeavouring
an Alteration in the Government in Church and
State. And the Indi¢tment fets forth, that the
soth of Auguft, in the 30th Year of the King, he
and cther falfe Traitors did agree to ftir up Sedi-
tion and Rebellion in the Kingdom, and to caufe
a great Slaughter of his Majefty’s Subjeéts ; To
introduce the Superftition of the Church of Rome,
and depofe and murder the King, and to alter the
Government in Church and State. And ’os there
faid, that to accomplifh thefe evil Defigns, he
writ two Letters to be fent to Kome, and 8. O-
mers, the Effect of which Letters was to procure
the Affiftance of the Pope and the French King,
to alter the Religion Eftablifked by Law in this
Kingdom, to Remifh Superitition, to fubvert the
Government, and to put the King to Death ; and
that in further Profecution of thele traiterous
Defigns, he writ two other Letters to be fent to
Rome to one Chriffepher Auderton, Re€or of the
Englifb College, and a Jefuit; and two others to
be fent to St Omers; and in thefe Letters he
took upon him to advife the Way and Means
by which thefe Treafens might be efietted, and
that thefe feveral Letters were fent and delivered
by him, and received. The Indiftment further
fets forch, that 1n further Profecution of thefe
traiterous Imaginations of his, he did receive
five feveral Commiflions in Writing, by Autho-
ricy derived from the See of Rome; and thofe
were for the making of Military Officers, to exe-
cute thefe Treafons by Force of Arms, and that
he did iikewife receive five other Commiffions for
confticuting Civil Officers in this Realm, after
the Treafon was committed. And that amongft
the reft he did receive for himfelf one Commif~
fion to be Advocate-General of the Army that
was to be rai’d,  And the Indiétment further
charges upon the Priloner, that to accomplith
thefe Treafons, whereas [reland, Pickering, and
Grove, and other falfe Traitors, had confulted
thefe Treafons, which 1 before mentioned, Mr.
Langhorn had Notice of the Trealons, and did
confent to them, and abet them, and that he did
folicit the Benedifiine Monks to advance 6000/,
for the Murder of the King, for the Alteration
of Religion, and for the Subverfion of the Go-
vernment in Church and State.  And further,
whereas Mr. Coleman, (who was executed for
Treafon) had (with others) confpired the Death
of the King, and the introducing of Popery, and
has writ a Letter to the French Confeflor Le Chaife,
for Aid and Afliftance, that the Prifoner at the
Bar had Notice of this, and that he did confent
to it, and did aber it.  This, Gentlemen, is
charged to be Traiteroufly and Devilifhly done,
againtt the Prifoner’s Allegiance, and the form of

the
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the Statute. To this he hath pleaded Not guiley,
but if we prove thefe Treafons, or any of them,
you are o tind him Guilry.

Then Sir Crefwel Levinz, one of His agefty's
Learned Censfel in the Laty epened the Chaige
thus : Prout-——

May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and you Gentle-
men of the Jury 3

Mr. Laugbern is indicted for Treafon, for hav-
ing a Parc in that general Trealon that you have
heard feveral times before of, and {ome Perfons
there were indifted, tried, and conviied yefter-
day, for that Treafon that Mr. Lafgbﬂrﬂ had an
Fland in @ for the Indiétment docs fet forth, that
there were Letters written by him to Rezme to the
fame purpol, of wh_ich.. GEHIIESH]EI], you have
heard fo often, and will hear again.

This Treafon was no lefs than to murder the
King, to zler the Religion, to overturn the
[aw, to raife an Army by [Force to effedt all
this, and in fhort to do all the mifchief that
Men (if it be lawful to call fuch Creatures Men)
could do. That there was, n order to this, Con-
(ulcations held the 24th of April among the Je-
fuits 3 and chere it was refolved that the King
(hould be killed, there were Perfons appointed
t0 do it, that was Pickeriizg and Grove, but they
failed therein, and they profecuted 1t at 7#nd)cr,
but happening to fail there alfo, they followed
him to Newmarkel, and ordered thar it fhould
he done there : And when all this failed, they
rook another Courfe, His Majefty was to be poi-
foned 5 and as I fuid before, to make all this good,
an Army was to be raifed of 50,000 Men in
Enzland, to perfect this Work ; but if that
would not do, they were to have Forces from
beyond Sea to join with them: and Mr. Langhora
he writ Letters to procure thefe Forces, and he not
only did fo, but he found the effeét of his Let-
ters, and received Commiffions from beyond Sea,
whereof one was for himfelf, to be Advocate-
General of the Army.  All thele things are laid
to Mr. Laughora’s Charge.

But 1l begin firft, and fhew you, before I
come to the particular Evidence againft M.
Langhors, fome Evidence of the general Defign
and therefore we will call fome Witnefles to do
that in the firft Place, and then bring it down to
Mr. Langhorn himielt.

Call Mr, Dugdale, and Mr. Praunce, (who were
both fworn, and Mr. Dugdale firft ftood up.)

Sir Cr. Levizz, Come, Sir, what do you know
of any Defign to murder the King? fpeak what
you know concerning the Plot and Conlpiracy.

Dugdale. 1 was in feveral Conlfultations for
Alteration of this prefent Government, and for
the introducing of Popery, and for the Murder
of the King. I wasa Perfon in molt of the
Cenfultations to the fame purpofe, and heard the
very Words ufed, and was hired to be inftramen-
tal in it, and was to have a Sum of Money to
be one of them that thould do it. I was to be an
Afor in it, and was to have a Place appointed
to do i,

Mr. Toft, Atkins, What wereyou bired to do ?

Dugdale. 1 was to kill the King,

Sir Cr. Levinz. And who were the Perlons that
put you upon it ¢

Dugdale. There was Mr. Ewers, Mr. Gavan,
Mr. Lufon, and Mr. Vavafur.

Sir Cr. Lewinz. What were thefe Men ?
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Dugdale. They are all Jefuits, -

Sir Cr. Levinz. Do you know any thing of an
Army that was to be raifed to effed jt?

Dugdale. They always did fpeak of an Army
thar was to be raifed; but it was not actually to
be done till the King was kiiled 5 that was the
Jaft Conclufion: 1t was indeed at Arft concluded
on to raife an Army, but the Jaft Confuleation
was, that there fhould ne Arms appear, till the
King was killed. |

Sir C7, Lewtisz, You do not know any thing
of Mr. Laughory in particular, do you?

Digdale. No, 1 do not know any thing parti=
cular, I have heard of him.

L. C. }. North. Why, you brought him only

to prove the general Defiga,

Dugdale. There was a Maflacre to be, and
then there thould be an Army, a pretty good
confiderable Army, there was no certain Number
that I could hear of ; but thofe that did
efcape the Maflacre, thould be cut off by the
Army.

L. C. J. North. Where were thefe Confulta-
tions ?

Dugdale. One was at Tixall, another was at
Bofcabel, at my Lord Afiew’s, and Mr, Ger-
rard’s.

L. C. . North. Where were thefe Places?

Dugdale. In § taffordfbire,

Mr. Juft. Atkins. Pray, who were to be maf:
{acred in the firft place?

Dugdale, All Proteftants, and thofe we could
not be fure to be Paptits.

Mr. Belwood. Pray, Sir, what do you know
of any Letter to be writ to Mr. Ewers, concern-
ing Sir Edmundbury Gedfrey’s Death ?

Dugdale. 1 do remember a Letter that came to
Mr. Ewers, from Mr. Harcourt, which did ex-
prefs, and begin thus, Tbis very Night Sir Ed-
mundbury Godfrey #sdifpatched 5 with fome other
Words of like Import; and then I fent to Mr.,
Ewers about it : And do you think this will car-
ry on the Defign ? I will be hang’d if it don’t
fpeil it: No, faid he, he was a Perfon that ufed
to be very fevere againft debauch’d lewd Perfons,
and fo it will be laid, as if they had done it out of
Revenge.

L. C. F. North. What Day of the Week was
that Letter dated ?

Dugdale. It was, as I can very well make ic
out, on Saturday.

L. C. ¥. North. Andwhen was it received ?

Dugdale. Itwas received on Monday Nighe.

L. C. #. North. What were the Contents of
it, do you fay ¢

Dugdale, 1 began thus, This very Night Sir
Edmundbury Godfrey #s difpatched.

L. C.*}. North, Who did it come from?

Dugdale. 1t came from Mr, Harconrt.

Sir Cr. Levinz. They themfelves know that
he was not found here in Lendon, till Thurfday.

Dugdale. 1 could not hold, it run fo much in
my Mind, but the next Morning going to an
Alehoufe hard by, I there fpoke of it, and tm-
mediately it was carried to Mr. Chetwin, and he
was here Yefterday to make it out, that I {o
did.

L. C. % North. But why did they kill him ?
was it exprefied why?

Drugdale. 1 had feveral Times heard, he wastoo
much privy to their Confultations.

iU L. C ¥,
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L. C. 7. Nerth, That is, you mean, he had
too mucn difcovered to hin.

Dugdale, And fo they were afraid of Mr. Cele-
maz too, that he carried Things too high ; and
he was out of their Favour for two Y ears,

Siv Cr. Levinzg. Then call Mr. Praunce. Pray,
Sir, what can you fay. ™

Praunce. There was one Mr, A% ffengcer, a Gen-
tleman of the Horle to my Lord Arwndel of 117ar-
dezrr, who was employed by my Lord Arandel of
HWardenr, and my Lord Peivis, and he was to
kill the King, and to havea very good Reward
for the doing of it; and 1 was told fo by my
Lord Butler : afterwards met with this Aeffon-
gcr, and asked him, what his Realon was that

he would kill the King.  He told me, he was off

of 1t now.
Sir Cr. Levizz, But what was to be done after

they thould kill the King ?

Praunce. Prefertly there thould bean Armyof

50,000 Men rafed, to be governed by my Lord
Arendel, and my Lord Pewis, andthem: § have
heard Mr. Fenrwick, and NMr. Ireland, and Grove,
to fpeak of this at the jame time together.

Sir Cr. Levizz, What was that Army to be
raifed for ?

Dyaiizee. To fettle the Catholick Religion.

L. C. 7. Nerta. What was to become of other
*erions °

Pianrce. They wereto be killed and ruined all :
So Feuzvick told me.

L.C.%. Nerth. Look you, Mr. Laughorn, thefe
Witnefies {peak nothing to you in particular, but
only that there was a Confpiracy 1n general, to
kill the King, and introduce Popery: 1f you will
ask them any Queltion, you may.

Langhors, No, my Lord, they not accufing me,
I have nothing to fay to them.

Pranice. 1 heard oae Mr. Harconrt fay, that
the King was to be killed by {cveral, before one
Mr. Thompfein, twice in his own Chamber in
Duke-Street.  And 1 heard Fenwick {2y, that Mr.
Langhorn was to have a great hand in it.

Laighern. Is that all you have to fay as to
me ?

Praunce, It is all that T know of,

Then the Lord Chicf Faftice Scrogas came in.

Sir Cr. Levinz, Now, my Lord, we will call
the Evidence, that fhall prove the particular
Matters of the Indiftment, as of writing the Let-
ters beyond Sea, of his receiving Commiffions,
of his diftributing them here to the feveral Per-
fons to whom they were dirc€ted 5 of his folicit-
g for the Money, the 6ooo /. to be raifed by
the Bencdicline Monks, which was either for a
particular Purpofe to potfon the King, or to carry
on the Delizn in general.  And firft we call Dr.
Ouates.  TWho <was fworn and food up,

Sir Cr. Levinz, Sir, you hear what the Matter
is, as to Mr. Langhors, be pleafed to tell the
Court, whether you knew he writ any Lerters,
and recetved any Commiflions 5 {peal your whole
Knowledee,

Qates. 1 hope your Lordfhip will be pleafed
to give me feave to uie my own method,

L.C. /. Ay, ay, take your own Way, Mr.,
Oales, |

Ouates. Then I begin thus.  Tn the Month of
April 1657, 1 went into the Kingdom of Spain:
In the Month of Seprember following, the Sons
of Mr. Langbors came into the Kingdom of Spain;
It was Sepember, or fooner, but I will not be po-
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firtve as to the Time of their comirg ; the one
wisa Scholarof the Zuglifh College at Mudrid,
the other was a Scholar of the Euglifh College at
Jalledelid,  ‘They came there to tudy Philulo-
piy, 1 order to their receiving of the Prieft-
hood. DMy Lord, my Occafions called me in-
to Liglaid, In the Month of November follow-
ing 3 and coming into Lxgland, Mr, Lanohsri’s
oons did give me fome Letters to Mr. Langhors
their Father 5 and as foon as I had refted my {ulf
for a Day or two, after my Journey, I came to
Mr. Langhors’s Houfe in Sheer-lane.  Now Mr.
Laughors’s Wife being a zealous Proteitant, I did
whifper his Foot-Boy, or his Servant-Boy, in the
Far, that he thould go and whifper his Mafter,
Mr. Langleriz, and tell him there was one would
{peak with him from his Sons. Mr, Layghora,
by his Son, did defire me to meer him at his
Chamber 1 the Temple, (in the Juner-Temple-
lzne, 1t was, I think) | know the Chamber,
however 5 and accordingly I did meer Mr:
Langioarn that Nighe, by the means of his Half-
Brother, who 15 Brother, I think, by the Mo-
ther, and not by the Facher, his Name is Swmizh-
foits and when I came into Mr. Laughors’s Cham-
ber, ticir Chambers being directly oppofite one
to another, I was treated by Mr. Laughori with
a great deal of Civility, and I aclivered Mr.
Langborr the Leters from his Sons, and 1 told
him, that I thought his Sors would enter inte
the Society : Mr, Langhori: was mighily pleafud
with the News, bzing himfelf a great Vorary for
the Society, that his Sons would enter into ir.
Now may it pleafe your Lordthip, Mr: Laug-
porir did fay, He thought if they did contizae in
the World, that is Secular Pricfts; they would
fuddenly bave very grear Promotion in Lagland 3
for he {ard, Things would not laft long in this
Pofture 3 that is, at that Time he then {poke ; I
{peak the Words now, that be faid then. And
now, my Lord, I was with Mr. Lazzhorn ano-
ther Time, while I was in Enslaid ; but in the
latter end of November, Old Stile, in the begin-
ning of December New Stile, I went to St. Omers,
and there were Letters that he delivered me
(tookiiig upoin the Prifoner) a Pacquet to carry to
St. Omeis.  And when the Pacquet was opened,
there was a Letter, ligned Richard Langhors,
in which he gave the Fathers at St. Omers great
‘Thanks, for the grear Care had of, and Kind-
nefs they fhewed to, his Sons, and that what they
had been out of Pocket for their Piaticum, in or-
der to their Journey into Spainy which was 20 /.
he promifed them they thould be repaid it ; and
in this Letter he did exprefly fay, that he had
written to rather Le Chaife in order to our Con-
cerns 3 thofe were his Words, Now, my Lord,
the Letter that he writ to Father Le Chaife I faw
not, but only this Letter I faw, which gave an
Account of that Letter he had writ to Father
L. Chatfe 5 and he faid, Mr. Coleman had been
very large with him, and therefore it would not
be necellary for him to trouble his Reverence
with any large Epiftles ac that Time. My
Lord, there was another Letter, and I think
that was in the Month of AlZweh or gpril, 1
cannot be pofitive as to the particular Time,
but it was upon this remarkable Circumftance :
Mr. Langhorn had a Songthat had been in Re-
bellion, and had turned Soldier, or fome fuch
Thing in France, and this Young Gentlemun
came to 3t, Oiwers, being the Place where he had
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been Educated 5 and Mr. Langhorsn, by the In-
terceflion of the Pathers there, did order him
Five Pounds, to bring him over into Eugland,
upon Promife of his Son’s Submiffion, who had
been very extravagant in feveral refpefts, In this
Letter, my Lord, Mr. Langhborn did exprels his
great Care for the carrying on of the Defign of
the Catholicks, and feveral other Expreffions
there were in it bad enough, which [ cannot now
call to mind, but they were to this Effet ; The
Parliament began to flag in promoting the Pro-
teitant Religion, and now they had a fair Op-
portunity to begin and give the Blow; what that
Blow was, I leave to the Court and to the Jury
to expound.

L. C.}. But was that an Expreflion in the
Letter ?

Qates. It was, my Lord: Bat it was a very
Jarge Letter, I can’t give a particular Account
of every Thing init, My Lord, 1n the Month
of April, or the beginning of Afay, your Lord-
fhip remembers there was a Confult that hath
been {worn here 1n this Court, to which Con-
fult

L. C. ¥. Pray fpeak 1t out.

Oates.  There were {everal of us came over
rom Sf, Omers, and from other Parts beyond the
Seas, to this Confult, at which Confult Mr,
Lanzbora was not prefent ; but § had Orders from
the Provincialy to give Mr. Langhern an Account
of what Refolutions, and Paffages, and Minutes
pafs’d at this Confults and this [ did as well as I
could, and when [ did lo, Mr. Laughorn hift up
his Hands and his Eyes, and pray’d to God to
give 1t good Succefs. My Lord, while I was at
Mr. Langhor#’s Chamber, giving this Account,
I faw feveral Parchments lying upon the Table
in his Study.

L.C. 7. You had belt tell the Effiedt of the
Account you gave Mr. Laighoriz in his Chamber,
that you fpeak of,

Oates. My Lord, I told him who went Pro-
curator to Rome, that was one Facher Cary,y I told
him what was the Refolve of the Confult con-
cerning the Death of the King.

L.C Y. Did youfo?

Qates. Yes, my Lord, I did: I told Mr,
Laugheriz that feveral of the Fathers were to be
admonifhed for their irregular Living, as they
termed it :  And to this Mr, Laughers did reply,
2s near as I can remember, that he found {ome
of them did not live up to the Rules of the So-
ciety.

L. C. #. Pray tell us more particularly, what
vou told him. And tell us as near as you can,
as you told it him then, the Bufinefs of the Plot
upon the King,

Oates. 1told him the Refolve of the Society,
and of that Confult, and what was that which
was refolved, that Pickering and Gieve fhould go
on to attempt to aflaflinare the King’s Perfon,
and what was to be thewr Reward, the one was
to have, that is Grove, 1500/, and the other,
that 1s Pickering, was to have 30,0c0 Mafies:
He lift up his Hands and Eyes when [ told him

this (and I told him more particularly than I can
now remember) and he lift up his Hands and

Eyes, and prayed God thae it might have good
succefs,

L.C.¥. Did you tell him they had Signed
to this Agreement ?

Oates. Yes, my Lord, I told him, that they
had all Signed i,
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Langhorn. When was this ?
Oates. It wasthe latter end of April, or begin-
ning of May. |
Langhorn, How long after they had Signed the

Confult?
Oates. A Day or two after.

Langhorn. Dr. Oates, Do you know the Day
of the Month ? You have afferted the Day of the
Month formerly, pray do it now.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. Let him go on; you fhall
ask him what Queftions you will, by and by.

Oates. My Lord, I faw there 2 Commiffion for
my Lord Arundel of Wardour, and another to my
Lord Pswis; the one was to be Lord High Chan-
cellor, and the other to be Lord High Treafurer;
there was a Commiffion for my Lord Bellafts, to
be General, another for my Lord Petre, to be
Lieutenant-General, and there were other Come
miffions, of which I cannot remember the parti-
cular Names, but there was a Commiffion for
Coleman to be Secretary of State, and there was a
Commiffion for the Prifoner at the Bar to be Ad-
vocate of the Army.

L. C. ¥. By what Authority were thofe Com-
miffions ?

Oates. They were by Authority derived from
the See of Rome, by Virtue of a Breve from the
Pope, direted to the General of the Society, and
they were Signed IHS, and with the Mark of the

g
Crofs thro’ the 1HS, and they were Signed fo-
hannes Paulus de Oliva,

L. C. ¥. North. That is the Jefnits Mark ?

Oates. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. F. North. Where did you fee thofe Com-
miffions ?

Oares. In Mr, Langhorn's Study of his Cham-
ber, in the Temple.

L.C ¥. Where? Did they lie open, that any
one might fee them ¢

4

Quates. They lay upon a Corner of his Desk,
folded up.

L. C. ¥. How came you to {ee them ?

Oates. My Lord, if your Lordfhip pleafe, I
will tell your Lordthip how I came to fee them.
We had Notice they were come, by a Letter
from one Father Anderton, and he called thefe
Commiflions Patents, and, 1f 1t pleafe your Lord-
thip, I did ask Mr. Laughorn, whether he had
received them? He told me, Yes: Then I asked
him, whether he would do me the Favour to let
me fee them ? and becaufe I had been privy to the
Confults, and came to wait upon him by Order
of the Provincial, he did let me fee them.

L. C. 7. And you faw them in his Study, up-
on his Desk ?

Qates. Yes, my Lord, I did. And particu-
larly one more I can tell of, which his Son was
to deliver to a Son of my Lord Arundel of #War-
dotir.

L. €. 7. How many Commiffions were there?

Oates, 1 cannot fay, about Scven or Eight, 1
think, I did fee, and looked over.

My, Fuft. dtkins, And you knew what they
were ¢

Ouates. Yes, for thofe that I faw, that I can
remember.

L. C. 7. What was my Lord Powss to be?

Oates. Lord High Treafurer,

L. C.¥. And what my Lord Aruudel 2

Oates. Lord High Chancellor of England,

L. C. 7. And what my Lord Stafford ?

5 U 2 Qates,
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Oates, Asto my Leord Stafford, 1 cannot give
{fo good an Account ; but as I remember, he was
to be a Pay-mafter in the Army, or fome fuch
Office relating to the Army. ~

L. C. F. North. What was the Prifoner at the

Bar to be?
Qates. A Judge in the Army, or an Advocate-

General, fo they called him.

L. C.¥. You faw moft of thefe?

Oates. I {aw feveral of them, moft of them In
his Cuttedy, | cannot fay all: There was more
than for thefe Lords, for other infertor Officers.

L.C. ¥. How many might there be ol them,
as near as you can guefs ¢

Oales. 1 think he told methey were about Fifty.

L. C. 7. What Number did you fee?

. Oatzs. 1 faw abour Halt a dozen or Eighe,

L. . F. Well, Sir, go on.

Gates. My Lord, Iam now to fpeak to your
Lordfhip concerning fome Letters that he wrote
to Rome, and there was -

L. ¢. 7. Had you any Difcourfe with him con-
cerning the Martters of any of the Commiflions of
my Lord Belafis and my Lord Powis ¢

Oates. No, my Lord; I had but h:tle Skill
in Military Affairs, and therefore I faid but lietle,
and [ cannot give vou an Account, Word for
Word, what the Difcourfe was, for it was out
of my Way. My Lord, there were feveral Letters
which Mr. Laurlern writ to Father Le Chaife,
the Anfwers to which I faw n Apri/ and ilay;
whereupon the Fatbers did defire  they mighe
have the Originals of thofe Copies: He gave
me the Orizinals to carry to the Fathers, [
think it was that very Day I bad been with him
in the Afiernoon; . for I was with him in the
Morning ; the Fathers did read the Letters.

L. C. . From whom came they?

Qales. I'rom Father Lz Chaife, and from Fa-
ther Auderton.  And Le Chaife, in his Letter, did
affure him of his Sredfaftnefs and Conlftancy, to
aflift the Society for the carrying on the Caufe
And that they ithould not need doubt, but the
French King would ftand by them, or to that
Purpofe. 1 cannot remember exactly the Words,
but it was to that Effeét.

L. C. 7. But they were directed to Mr., Laug-

born 2 '
Oates. 1 cannot fwear that aweltly, but he

gave them me.
L. C.¥. Who were Le Chaife and Anderion ¢

Ouatzs. The one was Conteflor to the French
King, and the other ReCtor of the College at
Rome,

Mr. Fuft. Ackins. But you faw thole 1n the

Prifoner’s Cuftody, you fay ?
Quates. Yes, my Lord, 1 did.
L. C. ¥. He gave them you to deliver o the
Fathers, to IF/hitehread and the reft of them?
Ouates, Yes, my Lord, but I cannot fay who

they were directed to.
L. C. ¥. But pray repeat what was the Sub-

{tance of that Letter?

Qates. My Lord, as to the Words of them,
I dare not charge my Memory, buot 1t was to
this Purpofe, that Le Chaife would ftand by the
Englifh Society, and aflift them, and that they
fhould not need to doubt the French King, or to
that Effect. .

Mr. Belwood. Do you remember any Letters
that were writ by Mr. Coleman o Le Chaife ¢

Qates. Yes, my Lord, [ remember {everal Let-
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ters that Coleman writ, but Mr. Langhorn was not
affe€ted in them,. |

Mr., Belwood. Did he know of them!?

Qates. He gave an Account, in his Letter to
the Society, That Celeman had writ Letters to
Le Chaife, and was very large, and therefore he
fhould not trouble his Reverence with any long
Epiftles.

o7 Cr. Levinz, What do you know of any
Money that was to be railed by the Bewediéine
Monks?

Ouates. I had forgot that.

L.C. 7. You fay, that he faid, they fhould
not need to doubt the Freich, but he would fand
by them with Men and Money; For what Pur-
pole, pray ?

Oates. Pl tell you for what Purpofe it was,
the Words of the Letter did alledge it to be for
carrving on of the Cauf,

Mr. fuft. Pemberton. You mean the Catholick
Caule?

Oates. So it was generally underftood.

L. C. . But for the other Money, what fay
you ?

Oates. Mr. Langhorn was employed as Solici-
tor for the Jefuits, and did accompany fome of
the Society, [Dather Harcenit; Father Fenwick,
Father Kaises, and Iather Langzeorth, and they
went and did communicate the Secret to the Be-
neaidine Monks, defiring them to ftand by them
with a Sum of Money for the carrying on the
Delign: Now, upon Mr. Langhorn’s foliciting
them, and appearing for them, as I have heard,
€cco /. was promifed and paid.

L.C. 7. By whom promifed and paid ?

Oates. By the Beuediiine onks.

L.C. F. To whom?

Oates. To the Society.

L.C.}. To what Perfon?

Oates. That I cannot fay; but it was faid,
Mr. Langhoin was to receive it.

L. C. 7. Did you {ee the Money paid?

Oates. No, I did not.

L. C. F. Did you hear Mr. Langhorn confefs
it was paid?

Oates. Mir. Langhorn did fay in the Month of
Fuly or duguft, T cannot be pofitwve which, but
thereabouts, when he was fpoke to abour it, that
he would ftir 1n1t, and do to the utmoft of his
Power for the procuring of it.  And another
Thing, I am fure Mr, Laenghors was very much
difguited, that Sir George 2V akeman was not con-
tented with the 10,000/,

Sir Cr. Levinz. What was the 6000 /. for 2

Oates. It was for the general Caufe.

Sir G, Levinz. For the Murder of the King ?

Qates. Yes, and the Alteration of Religion.

L. C. J. Noitb. How did it appear that Mr.
Langlorn was dilgufted, that Sir George I akemann
would not take the 10,000/2 And, What was it
for ¢

Oates. 1t was to potfon the King. And he faid,
He was a covetous Man ; that was in a publick
Concern 3 and that, being it was to carry on the
Caufe, it was no matter if he did it for nothing :
But he faid he was a Narrow-Spirited, and a
Narrow-Soul’d Phyfician,

L C.¥. When was it that he faid he would
ttir for the Money ?

Qates. bt was in Fuly, or in Augaft.

Larghern. My Lord, may I ask him any Que-
fticus ¢

Mr,
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Mr. Fuft. Pembestsi, Yes, yes, Mr. Laizhori,
you may.

[.. C. . North. Pray, Mir. Oates, you faw fuch
and fuch Comumniffions from the Superior of the
Jeluts, that were fioned Fobanues Paulns de
Oliva 5 pray will you look upon this, and fee
whether you kaow it ? (4nd a I7iting under the
Fefvits Scal was fhewed biin. )

Oates. This is the Hand, the very Hand, that
was to the others, and they had put {uch a Seal 3
and that 1s for Mr. Stapleton, to be Recior of St
Oinci's.

Sir Cr. Levinz. Now, my Lord, if you pleale,
this wus not one of thofe Commiffions that Mr.
Lawghorn did difiribute to the Perlons that were
to have them, no, he would let us have none of
thofe, but it 1s a Commifhion of another nature,
tis neither for an Office Civil ror Military, but
Fcclefiaftical, and yet it is under the fame Hand
and Seal,

Langhsin. You fay, you came to me, the firft
Tine, in November ; and you went to St. Oineis,
when, Sire -

Oates. "The latter end of Nevember,

Laishara, When arrived you at St Omers £

Qutes. | think it was the 1oth of December,
New Stile, I will not be politive.

1.C. . All their Defence lies in Catchies up-
on a Pomt of Time, in which no Man living
is able to be politive.

Uates. My Lord, if the 26th of November fell
upon a AMouday, then it was on the 26th Day that
I fur out for Dsver in the Coach, as ncar as | can
remember, and I gotto St Omers a Friday Morn-
ing {ollowing,

Langborn. A Iriday afier, you fay, you got
to St. Umeis,

Oates. About that Time.

Laughern, How long did vou ftay there?

Oates.  Till April following 1 ftard.

Lanzborn. Without any moving trom thence ?

Cutes. Only went to Paris, and after that, a
Night or two at atten, and then came away
in April. My Lord, I defire, 1t your Lordfhip
pleafe, that Mr. Laughorn may ask the Court,
and the Court ask me; for 1 know the Court
will be fo kind, as to task me fuch Queftions as
are reafonable, and proper for me to anfwer.

Mr. Fuft, Atkins, That 1ndeed 1s the regular
Way, for Prifoners thould not ask the Queftion,
but the Court.

Langborn, Very well, T fhall obferve the Me-
thod, if your Lordfhip pleafe. I defire to know
what Time in Aprif he came back for Lngland,

Oates. 1 came about the iniddie of April,
or latter end, I will not oe fo poheive in that,and
I was in England under twenty Days.

Langhara, Can you tell what Day youcame in-
to Lngland?

Qates, No, I cannot exactly, but I came In
Anitly the middle or the latter Lund.

Laughorn, 1 defire to know who came with
him?

Oates. My Lord, there came a matter of Nine

or Ten of usin all.

L. C. %¥. Name then.
Oates. There was Father 77illiams, and Father

Maych, the Rector of Lieze, and Sir Fobn W arser.
Langhors, What 1s the Rector of Liege’s
Name?
Oates, Warren, I think ; I cannot tell Names
fo exatly,
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Langhorn. Go on, Sir, pray.

Oates. 1 cannot name any more;

Langhors. You have named them all in the
Records of the Lords Houfe.

Oates. *Tis like T have. T refer you to that.

Laughorn. Ihd Sir Thomas Preflor come over
with you?

Ouates. Yes, he did.

Langhorn, Did Poels come over with you?

Oates. Yes.

L. C. 7. Look you, Mr. Laughsrn, we had
all this Matter fpoken of Yelterday, and there
were WV itnefles that prove that Sir Fobu Warner,
and Sir Thomas Preflon, were there,

Langborn. 1 humbly conceive, that was upon
an Iffue tried in another County, by another Ju-
ry, and therefore [ hope I donot amifs in urging
what I can fay for my feif to this Jury.

L. C.¥. You are not debarred, I only told
youof it. Was Sir Rebert Biett there? _

Oates, Ys, 1 think he was, I am not confi-
dent of that. My Lord, I own what Mr. Lang-
Aoin can bring to the Court upon Record.

Laiighorn. | only ask ir, becaufe he fays foin
the Houfe of Lords,

Oates. It you can fhew the Record of what
{a1d there, do.

Langhsrn. I do not defire him to name them
now, but to know whether he does now affirm
the truch of what he fwore in the Houfe of
Lords?

L. C. 7. If you can produce, as you may, if
you have been diligent, a Copy of the Record in
the Houle of Lords, and have it {fworn to be a
true Copy of the Records, it will be Evidence for
you, and fhall be read ; but to put him to remem-
ber a Record without Book, muft not be, it would
be hard for him to undertake that.

Langhorn: 1 defire to know how he came from
Dozwery whether in a Coach, or on Horfeback,
to London 2

Oates, Indeed the Queftion is fo fudden, that I
cannot be pofitive, but as near as I remember, I
came by Coach.

Langhorn. 1 will give my Reafon why I ask
this; -becaufe he hath formerly, upon a Trial in
the King’s-Bench, affirmed he came by Coach, in
the company of Mr. Hilfley.

Qates., No, 1 did never fay fo; but I came
over in the Pacquet-Boat, in the company of Mr.
Hilfley 5 but when we were come over, Mr. /-

fley went out of the Way from us.

Langhorn. I defire to know where he lodged,
when he came to Town ¢

L. C. 7. Where did youlodge the firft Nighe?

Oates. | did lie at Mr. Grove’s Houfe, when
1 came to London \n Apsil,

L. C. 7. But the firlt Night when you came
from Dover, when you came into Lowdon in Apyil ?

Oates. My Lord, 1 cannot fay, I lay there the
firft Night 3 but my Lodging was provided for
me there. ‘

L.C. ¥ You aretoanfwer as well as you can g
if you cannot remember it, fay fo. Do you fay

the firtt ablolutely, or not?
Ouates. My Lord, I cannot remember the

firt Night, but [ lay feveral Nights at Mr.

Grove’s. |
Langhorn. Then Task whether he did gene-

rally lie there, during his Stay ¢ -
Oates. I did lie there fome Nights:

L. C.}.
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L, C. 7. How many times did you liz there?

Oates. I believe three or four Nights. 1 won't
be pofitive as to the Number.

Langborn, What Day was the Confult ?

Oates. It was the 24th of April.

Langhorn. What Day did you acquaint me
with it ¢

Oates. A Day or two after.

Langhorn. When did he return back to St.
Omers ¢

L. C.'}. When did you go back ? about what
time ?

Qates. My Lord, 1 think it wasa Week in
May, I cannot be pofitive, but I think that was
the outlide.

L. C. ¥. They faid, Yefterday you affirmed
you ftard but fix Days.

Oates. 1 do not fayfo, butl fay under 20.°

Mr. Fufi. Dolben. Come, have you any thing
elle to ask him?

Langhorn, Thofe Letters that he fpeaks of, I
defire to know whether he faw me write them ?

L. C. 7. Thofe Letters you fpeak of, did you
fee him write them ?

QOates. 1did not fee him write them, but Tam
fure they were his Letters, becaufe I know his
Hand.

L.C. 7. How did you come to know his
Hand, fince you did not fee him write them 2

Qates. 1 faw the Letter whereby he ordered
Money to be paid, 5 /. to his Son. And [ faw
the Money paid to his Son, by that Order.

Langhorn, Do you know that /e Chaife, and
Aadertonn, writto me?

Qates. 1 do not fay that they writ to him, but
he had Letters {ubferibed by their Names, and
they were faid by him ro come from them, and
they were to be communicated to the Friefts and
Jefuits ; and he delivered them to me to that
end.

Langhorn. When you returned to St, Omers,
how long did ycu ftay there ?

Oates. T1ll 23d Frme, New Stiley which is the
13th Old Stile.

Langhorn. 1 remember he profefied himfelf a
Roman Catholick, I {ee he is a Minifter : I de-
fire to know of him when he left the Proteftant
Religion, and became a Converr, as he called
him{elf; call it what you will, when he left being
a Proteftant, and became a Papift, that is it I

mean ?
Oates. He does it for nothing but to quarrel.

L.C. % . When did you leave the Church of

England ?

Qates. My Lord, if it be the Pleafure of the
Bench to ask me this Queftion - ——

L.C.J. You ought to anfwer it, though it be
nothing to the purpofe.

Qates. Then 1 anfwer it was either in Febrrary
or March, 1675.

Langhorn., My Lord, 1 defire to know whe-
ther he had any Benefice?

Qates. Yes, 1 was fometime Vicar of Bobbiug
——in Kent : Bue 1 fuppofe this is to make me
accufe my felf of fomething, whereby I might
forfeic my Living: for, my Lord, I have a Right

in a point of Equity {till to that Living, butonly

for going beyond Sea without leave of my Ordi-

pary, 1 am not now Vicar of—— ,
Langhorn, When did you come to your Vica.
rage ?
Qates. In 1672,
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Langhorn, You became a Papift i 1677, [
ask this Queftion, Whether he did leave his Liv-

ing before ke turned Papift 2

Oates. My Lord, 1 am not willing to anfwer
that Queftion,

I.C. ¥, When did you leave your Living ?
Did you leave it before you went away ¢

Oates: It was not very loag before 3 but the
Reafon why 1 am not willing to tell, 15, When
1 left the Parith, I left it in the Charge of My,
Thomas Turier, Vicar ot Ailton, and [ did go
near about Chichefler, and {erved a Sequeftration
there,  The Air was not a good Air i that pare
of Kent, and I had not my Health 5 and chat was
one Realon, and for other Reafons beft known 1o
my {clf.

Langhors, After he became a Papift, I defire
to know whether he became a Jeluit? Were you
in any Order there ? ‘

L.C.F. Mr. Langhorn, it 1s not a proper
Queftion, we ought not to ask it hum : You are
2 Man of the Law, and therefore you know it
is not fair to ask any Perfon a Queftion zbout a
criminal Matter that may bring himitll in danger,

Langhora. 1take him to be out of danger, Le
hath his Pardon.

L. C. 7. T don’t know what his Pardon 1s, nor
how far it reaches, nor whether this be contained
in it; but if Mr. Qates pleales to anfwer that
Queftion, he may.

M. Fuft. Dolbzn. Tho’ he hath his Pardon, he
may be in danger of Ecclefiaftical Cenfure:

L. C. 7. He fays, he will nor.

Langhorn, Il give you another Reafon why [
ask it, becaufe in one of his N.arratives he feems
to call himfelf {o 3 he fays, Toere came ever Nine
of us, all Jifuils, 1 fuppole him to be one of that
Order 5 this [ ook to bea Ground why I migit
properly call him fo.

L. C. #. Narratives are no Eviderce atall.

Langhorn, Bur that gave wme an Occalion to
ask the Queftion.

Cales. I cannot anfwer it, becaufe 1t tends ra-
ther to raife a Debate in the Court, than conduces
to the Queftion, to acquit or condemn the Prifo-
ner,
Mr. Fuft. Pemberton, You are not beund to
anfwer it.

" L. C. 7. Hetells you, he is not bound by Law
to anfwer, and he refules to anfwer,

Langhorn, 1 defire to know, whether he ever
faw me, or converfed with me, {from the time he
acquainted me with the Confult, and faw the
Commuflions in my Chamber ?

L. C. 7. How often did you converfe with
Mr., Langhorin ?

Oates. After I returned again in Fuly and Au-
g4}, once or twice,

L. C. 7. How often n 4pri/ and May ¢

Oa:es. Twice, Ithink, about the time of the
Confu'r,

L. C. 7. And when youcame over again, how
often ?

Oates., T'wice more, 1 think s twice or thrice.

L. C. F. So then, he hath been four or five
times in your Company.

Oates. He would not let me come to his
Houfe, for he ufed to fay, his Wife was but
Avms-ace tarned from a Pevil 3 and therefore he
would not have me come thither,

Langhori, 1 hope he will not go out of the
Court,
L C 7.
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L. C. % No, he will ftay here, but you have
done with him at prefent, have you not?
Langhorn. Yes, my Lord, 1 have.
Sir Ci. Levinz, Swear Mr. Ledlso,

cas doie. ]

L. C. ‘. Mr, Bedlow, 1 ask you but one fhort
Queftion, becanfe I would not interrupt you af-
recwards, T hat Paper that you faw Signed by the
Superior of the Jefuits, woere had you it

Pedlsw. 1 had it at Mr. Damel Aribui’s.

Langhoran, \What 1s that ?

L.C. #. Itis an Inftrument Signed and Sealed,
jult as the things were, which Mr. Qales fays he
faw in yowr Chamber.

L. C. ¥ Nerth. And befides you muft take
notice, that this was found a long tme after
Mr, Qates had given his Tettimony publickly, for
his Clofer was not fearched wll a great while

after.
L.C. 7. It is to thew you what Seals they uled

to have to their Commiffions. Mr. Oares deferibes
feveral Commifiions that he faw i your Study,
fo Sealed and Subfcribed ; and after the fearching
Mr. Arthur’s Study, being a Papitt, that Com-
miffion is found there. Now tho’ it be a thing
of a private Concern, a Church mateer, not re-
lating to the Mateers in Queltion, yet this very
Commiflien is o fubfcribed, and {o figned and
fealed, as Mr. Oates had defcribed thofe to be be-
fore in your Chamber.

Bedlow. Becaule it was exatly the FHand and
Seal that I faw to the Commiflions in Paiisy I
did take particular notice of the Paper, and
brought it to the Council.

L. G.¥. Well 5ir, now go on with your Evi-
dence.

Bedlow. Firft, my Lord, I'll only ask this
Queltion of the Court, whether a known Roman
Cathelick may take Notes of the Evidence in {uch
a Cavfz?

L. C.%. Truly no, T think not.

Bedlsto. There is an Fonourable Lady in that
Gallery, the Lady Marchionefs of Winclgfier, (hut
hath toolkk Notes all this Trial.

L. C. ¥. She will do herfelf, nor no body elfe
any great hurt, by wiat the wries.

Bedlowy. T only 1peak it for the Information of
the Court. +

L.C. 7. A Woman’s Notes will not figniy
much truly, no mote than her Tongue.

Bedlsw. My Lord, abour three Years fince, I
was fent by Mr. Faicourt, and Mr. Coleman, to
Le Chaife, with fome Leters for the carrying on
of this Defign: With thefe Letters, Mr. Cole-
man asked me, if I could go with him as far as
the 7emple. 1 have no particular Acquaintance
with Mr. Langhorz, 1 was but twice at his
Chamber, once with Mr. Harconrt, and once
with Mr. Coleman, 1 watted upon Mr. Colemai
to Mr. Langheri’s Chamber in the Temple : There
did he Regifter fuch Letters as Mr. Coleman
brought to him, and afterwards Mr. Coleman
{ealed them up, and gave them me to carry 1o Le
Chaife.

L.C. ¥. How do you fay ? when you went
with Mr. Coleman to Mr, Laughors’s Chamber,
were the Lerters there ¢

Bedlowy. The Letters were writ firft at Cole-
man's Houfe, and brought open by Coleman to
Mr., Langhory, and he read them and Regiftred

them, and then Coleman fealed them up, and
pave them me to carry away.

| Fhich
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Laighorn, What Letters were thefe?
L.C. 7. Do you know what the Effe of

" thofe Letrers were ?

Bedlow. The Letters were read fome of them
ar the Kiag’s-Beich Bar, at Colemai’s Trial : Theie
was one of them writ by Mr, Farconst, another
by Mr. Colemai, to Le Chaife.

Mr. Juft. Pemberton., What was the E§e& of
them ?

Bedloty. Only to let Le Chaifz know, that the
waited only now for his Anfwer, how far he hod
proceeded with the French King, for the fendirg
of Money; for they only.wanted Money, all
other things were in readinefs.  That the Cathe-
licks of Lugland were in fafery, had made all
Piaces, and all Offices, to be difpofed of to Ca-
tholicks, or fuch as they thought would be to;
that all Garrtlons were ¢jther in their own Haonds,
or reacy to be put into them ; that they bad fo
fair an Opportunity, {as I remember that was or.s

!

of the luxpreffions in the Letter to Father $74:/e-

Jon) that they bad fo fair an Opportunity, havi %
a King {o cafy to believe what 1s di€ated to him
by our Party, that if we flip this Onportunicy,
we muft defpair of ever introducing Popery into
England 5 for baving a King of Eugland fo cafy,
and the Freich King fo powerful, they mult not
mifs fuch an Opporiunity.
L. C. 7. For what?

Bedlow. To fend over Money. for the carrying
on of the Caufe, for they only wanted that, all
clfe was in readinefs : And the other Letters were
to the fame Efieét, the’ in other Words, That
Letter was in Englifh, bue the Letters to Le Chaie,
and the Nuncio, were both in Freuch.

L. C. 7. But you underftand French, don’c
you ?

Bedleze. Yes, my Lord, I do. .

L. C. 7. Did he Copy them out, while you
were there by ¢

Bedlezo. He Regifired them before me.

L. C. 7. Did he write them Into a Book? and
were you there all that ume ?

Bedlewe. Yes, my Lord, | and Cileman walked
in the Chamber, whillt he went in and wric,
as he did other ihings; for he Reoifired all their
Accompts : There was not a Peiny of Maoney
either received or laid our, nor any thing done
almoft in relation to this Concern, but he did
keep a Regifter of it: | cannot fay, that ever he
did talk any thing before me of the King’s Death
particelarly, but ralked of the whole Defign. A-
bout a Year and a half fince, Mr. Harconrt lenc
another Pacquet of Letters by me to Mr, Langhcrs
to be Regiftred ; he looked ftrangely upon me,
and received the Letter, and fent an Anfwer to
Mr. Harconit, thae Mr. F2uidiams (for 1 went then
under the IName of Caprain //#lizms) had dehi-
vered him fuch Letters, and that he fhould have
them again to-morrow, after he had Copied
Mr. Harconrt read
the Letter of Anfwer to me, and in the fct-
ter it was Mr. /illiams. Sud 1 to Nir, far-
cour?y I thought I might have been Regiltred by
my right Name, becaule when any thing fhouid
rake effeét and occafion ferve, | refolved to beat
my own Name. Alas, fays he, this does not
fignify any thing at all, for as for this Regifter,
it i1s not {o confiderable: there fhall be a New
Regilter made, of things of weight and mo-
ment, this 18 only a blind Regifrer amongft our
felves. The two Letters that I brought from

Hare
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Hareourt, there was one of them from Siv /771
liam Godolpbin, thet I had brought briore from
Spaii,

L €. F. Who was that directed to ?

Bedlezs., To my Lord Bellafis ; and anout three
Weeks after it was that I was fent to Mr. Lang-
leiiz to have it Regtitred; the other was from
the Irifb Colleee of Jefuits in Salamanca. The
Letter from the Reétor did fpecity, that they
would have my Lord Bellafis, and the reft of the
Lords that were concerned, and the relt of the
Party in England, to be in Readinefs, and to have
this commusicated with ail Expedition ; for now
they had provided in- Spaiz, under the Notion of
Pilerims for St. Fago, fome Irifb cafhier'd Sol-
diers, that had lett their Country, fome for Rehi-
gion, and fome for their Crimes, and a great
many Lay-Brothers, whom they procured and
gathered together under the Notion of Pilgrims,
to be ready to take Shipping at the Groie, to
Jand at Milford- Haven, there to meet my Lord
Peois, and an Army that he was to raife in Fales
to furcher this Defign.  And thefe Leters faid
they had almofl brought 1t toa Period, that they
did only expeét a Return from Exgland, to (hew
in what Readinefs they were here, tnat accordingly
they might proceed.

L. C. 5. Did Mr. Langhorn {ee thefe Letters ?

DBedlsw. He ook thefe Letters from me, and
told me Mr., Harccurt fhould have them again,
when he had traoferibed them s and writ a Letcer
to Mr. Harcourt, that Mr, Williams had broughe

him fuch Letters.
L. C. ¥. And he did tranfcribe them ?

Bedlow. 1 fuppofe fo, for he afterwards fent
them back to Mr. Farconrt.

Mr. Jufl. dtkins. Was it a good- large Book
that he regiltred them 1n ?

Bedlsw. 1 know not what Book he regiftred
them in, not thole Letters.

Langhern. It is a proper Queftion, becaufe he
faid | regiltred thofe Letters before him.

Bedlowy. 1 fav, 1 faw him in his Study tran-
feribe Colemairs Letter, whilft Coleman and 1 walk-
ed in his Chamber.

L. C. 7. Into what kind of Beok did he Re-
pifter that? Had he more Books than one,
pray ?

Bedlowe. My Lord, T cannot tell that, I judge
it might be the fame Book. I faw the Book then,
it was a large Parchment Book ; but | did not fee
it when Harcourt's Letters were Regiftred. When
Coicman and I came thither, he went into his
Study, and left us in the Chamber, 1 faw him
tranfcribing the Papers that lay before him: but
when I brought thofe Letters from Mr. Harconrt,
I only delivered them fealed up, and his An-
(wer to Father Hascourt was, that Mr. Williams
had brought him fo many Letters, and he {heuld
have them again as foon as he had tranicribed
them.

L. C.%. Mr. Langhorn, you would do well to
thew us the Book, and that would make the
Matter plain.

L. C. . North. Could you fee how far he had
sone in the Book, and what Room there was lelt
to write other Letters ?

Bedlszw. Tt was a Book at leaft three Inches
thick, and as near as I could guefs, he had gotten
through two Thirds of the Book.

L C.¥. But you fhould fhew us your Book,
Mr. Langborn.
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Larzhern, 1 fay, my Lord, if I had fuch a Beok,
it mufl needs be found in my Study ;5 if 1 had ir,
it mult be there, for 1 never removed Iz.

L. €. . That was not a Book fit to be left
tiere,

Bedivo. My Lord, Pritchard did tell me, that
the Commiffions were come, and that Mr. Lasng-
born had them, and things, fays he, are now in
a Readinefs, Then faid [, When fhall I have
my Commiflion? Said he, thofe that Mr. Laig-
horn hath are only for the General Officers ;
you muft have yours, faid he, from my Lord Be/-
lafis.

Sir Cr. Levinz. Do you know any thing of any
Money that was to be raifed by the BenedicZine
Monkss 6200 /. or whar other Sum?

Bedlews. My Lord, in May 1676, among the
Ietters 1 carried to Le Chaife, one of them was
dirc&ed to Stapleton a Benedifiine Mork, to raife
the Money for England.

L. C. . The Money, what Money ?

Bedlezy. The Money they had promifed to re-
mit into England.

L.C. ¥. But did they name no Sum ?

Redlswe. No, my Lord, for they had no par-
ticular Promife, but only that they did make it
their Bufinefs to raife what they could.

L.C. 7. And what was it? Do you know
of any Sum of Money that was railed, and by

whom ?
Bedloze. Le Chaife told me himfelf, that they

had no Reafon to fufpett him or his Intereft with
the French King, for he had laid that fure enough,
And that when he found a fit Opportunity, the
Money was ready to be remitted into England,
and that he had remitted fome of it already to
Mr. Coleman and Ireland.

L. C. 7. You know not but by what Le Chaifz
told you?

Bedlow, No.

L. C. ¥. He fpeaks what Le Chasfe told him,
that he would raife Money, and that he had fent
fome to Mr. Coleman and Ireland.

Bedigwo. Yes, and that the reft fhould follow
when he found there was abfolute Occafion; but
he would not part with his Money till they had
Affurance of their being in readinefs here, and
likely to further and carry on the Defign.

Mr. Fuft, Atkins, Mr. Bedlow, had you any
Difcourfe with the Prifoner about any Comif-
fions?

Bedlow. No, my Lord, "us at leaft 2 Year and
a half fince I faw him.

L.C. ¥. Did he ever own any Commiffions
he had ¢

Bediosy. No, Pritchard told me he had fome.

L. C.¥. You have feen the Commuffions, have

you not !
Bedlow, No, 1 never faw any in Mr. Lang-

horn’s Hand.

L. C.‘¥. Where did you fee them then?

Bedlaw. Siv Henry Tichbourne did thew me three
Commiffions in Paris, Signed by the General of
the Order, and Sealed with the Jefuits Seal,
which made me take up this Paper, which hath
been fhewn, tho' it were a thing indiflerent, yet
becaufe it was written with the fame Hand, and
Sealed with the fame Seal that the Commiffions

were that I faw at Parts,
My, Belwwood, Did Mr, Langhorn know any

thing of the Treafon to murder the King, by
Pickeiing and Grove ¢
Bedlszy,



1679. O. B.

Bedlow. That T do know only by Report; but
when Grove, Pickering, and Conyers were going to
New-Market, 1 was at Harconrt’s Chamber, and
I had a Defign to go to #indfor, to obferve what
they did 3 and 1 did ask Father Harconrt to olve
me leave to gofee a Friend of mine take Shipping
at Plymouts, to {end {fome Commendations by him
to my Friends in ltaly; then fays Father Harcourt,
you €annot be fpared, you muft not go now, for
we don’t know what Return thele Gentlemen will
make of their Journey, and what Occafion there
may be for you, if there fhould be any good Ef-
tect of it: Then, faid I, [ will go and write, and
fend it by a Friend dowa to be fent wnto italy : But,
fid he, you muft fay a while till I come back a-
gain sy I am going to Mr. Langhorn’s Chamber in
the Temple, to take the Minutes of what they have
done this Morming. That was the Contrivance of
fending down thofe Pcople to New-Market to
Aflaflinate the King,

Mr. Fuft. Athins. That is no Evidence againit
the Prifoner, becaufe it is by Hear-fay.

L. C. ¥. Itis right, and the Jury ought to take
notice, That what another Man f{aid 15 no Ewvi-
dence againft the Prifoner, for nothing will be
Evidence againft him, but what is of his own
Knowledge. But 1 defire, Mr. Bedlow, as well
as you can, you would repeat the Effect of one
of the moft material Leiters Mr. Langhorn did
tranicribe.

Bedloww. Tho’ I was not fo exalt a Frenchman,
in the Nicety of the Tongue, yet I underftood e-
nough to learn the Senfe of thofe Letters. The
Englifh Letter from Stapleton, which he tranferi-
bed, was to this Effeét; That Coleman and Har-
court, naming themfelves We, (that 1s, We and
the Jefuits, and it was to the Rector of the Eugli/h
Monks in particular, but 1 mifled of the Reétor,
and Mr, Stapleton receivid 1t5) 1 fay, the Effeét
of that Letter was, they would have a certain
An{wer from them

Langhorny When was 1t?

Bedlswo. It was in 76.

L.C.¥. What was the Effet, fay you?

Bedlszo. The Effiedt was, that they would have
a final Anfwer from thole Religious at Dstoay and
Paiis, to know how far they bad proceeded with
the Fuglifb Religious, and all their Friends be-
yond Sea, in making Collettions, and remitting
of Money, for there was only Money wanting;
for the Arms of the Catholicks were all ready,
and they had all a good Mind to the Bufinefs,
their Arms and Hearts were ready, and the Ea-
finefs of the King of Eugland, and the Strength
of the Power of Frauce, made it an Opportunity
not to be neglefted : That the Garrifons ware
ready to be puc into fuch Hands as they could
truft,

L. C. f. Was there fuch an Expreflion in the
Letter, upon your Qath, that they had fuch Arms,
and that the Garrifons were ready to be put into
their Hands, and whofe Hands they were ready to
be put into ? A

Bedlpzy, Yes, my Lord, there were fuch Ex-
preflions, and they would have the Garrifons on-
ly in fuch Hands as they could truft,

L. . ¥. And did he wranfcribe thofe Letters ?

Bedlowo. He did tranferibe thofe three while we
were 1n his Chamber,

My Fuff, Pemberton. 'Was there any mention
of exciting the French King, by Power, to In-
vade this Kingdom
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Bedlow. There was in the Fremch Letter to
Monfieur Le Chaife, which he tranfcribed too.

Langhorn. 'That was in French, he fays.

L.C. 5. I fuppole you underftand French too,
or elfe you could not do what you did.

Langhorn. 1 underftand Law French,

L. C. J. Mr. Bedlow, did you never hear him
difcourfe in French ¢

Bedlow. No, my Lord.

Qates. 1 cannot write nor read French, but |
can tranflate 1t.

Mr. Recorder. If you have any Queftions to.
ask him, you may ask him.

Langhorn. How many were the Letters chat
then I tranfcribed ?

Bedlow. There were three, my Lord, one was
to the Englifb Monks at Parts, another was to
Monfieur Le Coaife, another to the Pope’s Nun-
cio,

Langhorn. Were they long or fhort ones? I
ask for cthis Reafon, becaufe 1 obferve that in the
Narrative, Coleman’s Letters are very long; of
what Length might they be?

Bedlow. They were the beflt part of Half a
Sheet of Paper, tor Mr. Coleman writ a curious
fine fmall Hand, and would put a great deal of
Bulinefs into a little Paper 5 the Pope’s Nuncio’s
Letter was very fhort.

L.C. 7. Did he tranfcribe them all before you
went away 2

Bedlowy. Whilft we walked in his Chamber, he
Regiftred them : We took a great many Turns
about in the Chamber, and I faw the Papers be-
fore him, and his Book.

Langhorn. Did thofe Letters exprefs what the
Money was to be raifed for, or did they leave it
to be underftood? My Meaning, my Lord, of
my Queftion, 1s this, whether Mr. Coleman writ
to him to haften the Money, and faid it was for
fuch a particular Ufe, or only in general.

L. C. ¥. He hath an{ivered it already, but he
will do it again.

Bedlpw. My Lord, tho’ it was not exprefled
in the Letter, but only we want nothing elfe
from beyond Sea, but your Afliltance ; tho’ ic
was not exprefled in the Letter to deftroy the
King and the Proteftant Religion, yet the full
of the Difcourfe betwixt Mr. Coleiman and Mr.
Langhorn, was to this Effelt: We only ftay for
Money, when we have got that, we will put our
{clves into a Pofture.

L. C. F. If youobferved it, he faid fo before,
when we asked him what the Effect of thofe Let-
ters was, thatall Things were ready, it is a good
Opportunity now for the effecting of our Delign,
having fo eafy a King to deal with, and your
King having fo powerful a Treafury ; do you
but get the Money of him, and we fhall do well
enough.

Bedlow. Tho’ 1t was not fpecified in the Let-
ters, what the Money was for, yet in the Dil-
courfe between Mr. Coleman and Mr. Langhorn,
it was Worded fo, that it was plain 1t was
to deftroy the Government, and introduce Po-

ery.
P Emgbam My lL.ord, ask whether this be all
that he charges upon me ?

Bedlowo. 1 cannot fay that, my Lord, that chis
is all I have to fay again{t him; Things may
occur to my Memory hereafter, which do not

NOW,
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L. C. 7. But at this Time you remember no
more, do you?

Bedlow. No.

Mr. Fuft. Atkins, But, to my Apprehenfion,
what you faid laft was moft material, that is, the
Difcourfe between him and Mr. Coleman, for
that rivets the whole. When he faid, that if we
had but a Return of this Money, then we have
made ourfelves fafe, or Words to that Effect ; but
it was to the full meaning of this, that the Pro-
teftant Religion could not ftand any longer here,
having Affiftance from France.

L.C. . So they confulted together after the
Letters were tranfcribed, did they ?

Bedlpw. Yes, my Lord.

Oates., My Lord, I omicted one Thing that
was very material in my LEvidence, which comes
in my Mind fince.  The Congregation at Koe
did contribute Soooz0 Crowns, to bz fent into
Eigland, and Mr. Langhor did enquire concern-
ing that Money, and had Knowledge of the Re-
ceipt of it in Fraice, as Mr, Langbori did fay,
in the Month of Fuly, or Auguft.

L. C. . Did he fay 1t to you?

Outes. Fle did to Father Hurcourt, Father Kawmes,
and Father Fensoick, that were there, S00000
Crowns come to Fiance,

L. C. . Whar faid he then concerning the

Socono Crowns ?

Oates. He cave an Account of the Money’s
being lodg'd at Paris.

L. C. . You hear what he fays, that you
gave an Account of 8so0o00 Crowns thar were
raifed abroad, that it was lodg’d and recewv’d ac
Paris,

Bedlow. 1 recolle€t fomething more now, tho’
1 was not in Mr. Langhorn’s Chamber. I met with
Father Kaincs, one Day, and faid he, I mult go
and fpeak with one Mr, Laughora, prefently ; and
when he came out again, he brought a Letter
in his Hand, and afterwards we went to a To-
bacco-Shop 1. 7/ild-Street, and there Father
Kaines told me the Effett of the Letter, He
rold me, it was a Chiding Letter from the Se-
cretary e propagaida fidey Cardinal Barbaiino,
who had {znt a Chiding Letter to Mr. Lang-
fors, and the reft of the Confpirators, for going
on no fafter, when they had fo fatr an Opportu-
nity.

L.C. ¥. Did you fve the Letter direted to
Mr, Langhern ?

Bedlowo. Father Kaines told me the Efieéts of it,

and he had the Letter from ©r, Langhor i,
. L. C.7F. Herold vou fo; well, but this Evi-
dence is as to the Plot i general, but not to
My, Langhein in pardcolar,  But that which he
charges you particularly with, is this, Your
Tranicribing the Letters, wherein there was an
Fxpreflion made, of your being all in Readinefs,
as for Arms and the Garrifons ; and your Dif-
courie alterwards with Mr. Coleman, 1n what a
Polture all Things were for the Deftruction of
the Government, and the bringing in Popery,
and there wanted nothing but Money, for
the cflecting the whole Defign.  This is that he
fays.

Larghorn. My Lord, I fuppofe he won’t go
out of the Court neither?

L.C.¥. No, no, he will ftay here.

Sir Cr. Levinz, My Lord, there is one Wit-
nefs that he had not ready here, when we began
o aive fome Account of the General Plot, 1

+
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pray he may be Examined ; his Name 15 Bufs,
[ #he was Sworn.]

L. C.7. What can you fay of any Delign up-
on the King’s Life? What is your Name:

Bufs. My Name is Thomas Bufs.

L. C. ¥. What Profeffion are you of ?

Bufs. 1 ferve the Duke of Adonmorn!.

L. C. 7. In what Capacity do you ferve him?:

Bufs. 1 am his Cook.,

L. C. ¥. How long have you ferved hun?

Bufs. Thirteen Years I have lived with him.

L. C.}. Well, what is it you have to fay ?

Bufs. Bewng at 7Viudfer, my Lord, with a;
old Acquaintance of mine, onc [landtinen tha
was then newly come from [laly ——

L.C. ¥. When was this?

Bufs. In September Inft, within a Week after
the Duke came from HManders, and we were drink-
ing together, for I had not feen him for man
Years before, and there was one Aithony was in
the Company, and faid he, 1 am newly come
from ftaly, and Lam going again, and I am come
to take my Leave of my I'riends.  When do you
oo away, fad 17 1 behieve 1 2o to-morrow, fzid
he ; buc pray, faid he to Authony, have a pecial
Care of thofe four worthy Gentlemen. Whar
Gentlemen, faid 1?7 Four worthy Gentlemen,
fnid he, that 1 bronght over with me. Whar,
faid 1, from fraly ¢ No, faid he, they are four
worthy Jrifh Gentlemen : They are very worthy
Perfons, faid he, have a fpecial Care of them,
for they will do our Bufinels.

L. C. #. What faid you to that?

Bufs. Nothing; for I knew nothing of it, till
[ faw Celeman’s 'U'nial, where it fpeaks of the four
Irifb Men that were to kil the King ac 277udfer,
then I bethought me of 1,

L. C. F. Would you not ask him what tha
Bufinefs was, or {o°

Bufi. No, I did not know at that T'ime.

L. C. ¥. But no Man 1n Eugland but would
have asked fuch a Queftion,

Bufs. No, he faid they were four Strangers
But f2id I, did you bring them out of ta/; ? No,
faith he, they are four Irifd Gentlemen, thar I
brought over with me, worthy Perfons.

L. C. F. North. And what Religion was he of
that faid fo?

Bufi. He was a Catholick, one that bough:
all into a College, that did fo here before he
went.

Prauice. He belonged to the BenedicFine Monks,
my Lord, in the Savoy.

L. C.¥. And what was he that he {poke to?

Bufs. He was a Catholick too, he was Servant
to one that belongs to the Queen’s Chapel.

L. C. ¥. North. Did you underltand what the
Bufinefs was they fud they were to do ?

Bus. Not tll I read Mr. Coleman’s Trial, and
then I did guefs thele were the Perfons that werc
to have killed the King at #/1ud/for.

L. C. F. Youfaw them not, did you ?

Bufs. Nos they were in charge of this Ai-
thony, that is now in fome Place in the Queen’s
Chapel,

Mr, Fuft. Atkins, Did he fpeak to Aithonyto
have a Care of them, or to you?

Bufs. To Anthony, he was the Perfon that was
to take care of them.

L. C. . Is Anthony a Papilt ?

Bufs, Yes, a very ftrong Papift, and we ufed
to be often together; but now he 1s jealous, and

Wil
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will not come near me, to talk with me, as we
ufed to do.

L. C. % Now I underftand the Reafon of i,
why he did not ask the Queftion ; it was not like-
Jy he fhould, for it was not fpoken to him, but
he ftood by, all the while the Difcourfe was to
Anthony, another Man, and it was to him that
he {poke, to have a careof the four Irifp Men,
for they would do their Bufinefs, What did 4»-
thoiy fay ?

Bufs. He promifed he would have as much
care of them, as of his own Life.

L. C. ¥. Whereis this Antbony to be found?

Bedlow. My Lord, Aithonyis a Portuguefe, and
the Queen’s Confeffor’s Man,

L. C.¥. When did you fee him?

Bedlyzo. He was feen this Morning, they call
him Signior Aitenio,

L.C. ¥. North. You fhould have an Qrder
to take this fame Authony into Cuftody, bur in
order to the finding of him, let him go to my
Lord Offory. ,

L. C.#. Mr Tiffer, we give youan Order for
the taking of this Signior Aut.nio, you will find
him at Scwmerfet-Houfe; for the doing of this, we
do advife you to wait upon my Lord Offory, ard
tell him, that you have fich an Order, but tpat
out of Reverence to the Queen, we have alfo or-
dered you ro wait upon him, to defire him to
fend him.

L.C. 7. North, What is become of this Zan-
hinfon €

Bufi. Heisabroad, beyond the Seas, my Lord,
for he faid he was come thicher to teke icave of his
Friends, and was to go the next Morning 1into
Surrey, and fo away.

L.C. F. Well, what have you now to fay,
Mr. Lanahorn ¢

Langhara. 1 conceive this laft Witnels fays no-
thing to me.

L. C. ¥. Nerth. He fpeaks anly to the Plot 1n
general, asthe firft Witnefles did 3 but that which
s upon you, is as to Mr. Qates, who fpeaks to
every Article of the .ndi¢tmene exprefly ; and
Mr. Bedlow fays, he did not only fee you Tran-
feribe and Copy out that Treafonable Letter, but
he carried other Letters to you, which you pro-
mifed to Tranferibe ; and thefe are Overt-als, that
make you a Party to the Treafon.

L. C. 7. Befides your Difcourfe with Coleman,
after the Letters were Tranfcribed.

Langhorn. Thefe two Gentlemen were Parties
in this fuppofed Crime 5 the two Witnefles which
do concern me, are Mr. Qates and Mr. Bedlow,
and they both of them clearly appear to have been
in the fame Treafon that 1 fuppofe they charge me
withy I defire to know whether they have had
their Pardon, or no?

L.C. ¥. I believe they have. Mr. Qates, and
Mr. Bedlsw, have you your Pardons?

Bedlsw, Yes, my Lord, 1 have three.

Oates. 1 have two Pardons under the Broad-
Seal, but1 don’t know what 1s in them.

L. C.¥. North. Butmake your Objection how
you will 3 whether they had, or whether they had
not, they arc Witnefles,

Bedloww. 1 never gave any Evidence, till I had
my Pardon,

Langhorn. 1 ask for this Reafon; I look upon
your Lordfhip and the Court as my Counfel, to
advife me in Mateers of Law, whether thefe be
good Witnefles, or not?

Vou ll.
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- L. C. f. Wedo tell you, That if we had not
judged them to be Witneffes, we would not have
heard them.

Langhorn. 'They come under the fame Reafon
of Law with an Appraver, having had their Par-
don; I don’t fay they are direltly Approvers,
but I concetve they come under the fame Rea-
fon of Law with them; and then if the Appro-
ver be pardoned, by the Law the Appellee ought
to be difcharged ; and methinks by the fame Rea-
fon, thefe Men having been participes Criminis,
and having got their Pardons, ought not to be
fuch fubftantial Witnefles againft the Prifoner at
the Bar. But, my Lord, I have one Thing yet
further to ask, I defire to know whether they
have not recetved any Rewards or Gratifications,
for the Difcovery they have made, and the Ser-
vice they have done? And whether they do not
expelt further Rewards

L.‘; C. 7. Isthere any Allowance to be made to
you !

Oates. I have received a Reward, by disbur-
fing 6 or 700! out of my Pocket, and I don’t
know when I thall fee it again.

Mr. Juit. Pemberton. Mr. Langhorn does {up-
polt that the Witnefles are corrupted and bribed ;
Do you think, Mr. Langhorn, that the King wili
Bribe his Witneffes?

[ anghorn, My Lord, I only propofe it as 2

Queition.

“I; C. /. Would you anfiver that Queftion your
elf «

L.C.¥. Novth. If you can fuppole there was
any Subornation or Cortuption, call your Wit
nefles, and prove it; but for their receiving
Suftenance and Maintenance from the King, that
is but reafonable, and can be no Objcétion. And
you your felf know, that an Approver, while he
is in that Service, hath a Penny a Day, which
in ancient Times was a grear Matter for Live-
lihcod and Suftenance; fo that any Reward
that they have, if you cannot prove it by Con-
tract or Suborpation, you cannot make an Ob-
jetion.

Langhor. My Lord, I am informed by a
Prifoner in the Goal, that Mr, Bedlow hath re-
ceived 500/,

L. C. 7. If you can prove any thing do, prove
what you can.

M. Recorder. 'That 500 1. was about 2 parti-
cular Fact.

L. C. 7. But pray, what is his Name?

Langhorn, His Name is Mr, Reading.

L. C. ¥. North. He is an infamous Perfon, he
hath ftood in the Pillory, we can’t take him for
a Witnefs; but now Il tell you, for the 500l
fris a Thing we all know of. It was a Reward
for a particular Bufinefs, not relating rothe Plot,
but it was for the Difcovery of the Murderers 6f
Sir Edmundbury Godfrey.

Mr. Jult. Aikins. 1 think Mr. Praunce 15 here,
that will give an Account of that, for Bedlsw dif-
covered him,

Bedlow. I am fo far from having any Benc-
fit by this Difcovery, that I am 700/ out of
Pocket.

Mr. Juft. Zllys. You fhall have the Liberty to
make what good Defence you can for your felf,
and prove what you can; you muft not go this
way to work.

L. G. 7. *Tis pretty reafonable for us to give
a publick Satisfaction to all the World, thar we

5 X 2 do
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do nothing under-hand, but that we do in this
Cafe, asin all other Cafes; any thing that 1s fit
to be anfwered, they fhall anfwer, and perchance
in this Cule fomething more than can be firictly
required of us, ’Tis notorious enough, that
Mr. Oates and Mr. Bedlsw have been fed at the
King’s Charge, and it cannot be objected againt
them, and need not be winked at, for they were
Parties in the Plot, And when they come to
make the Difcovery, without which we fhould
never have known the Plot, for you Kknow ’uis
hard to difcover any Crime, Iorgery, or the
like, but by onc that hath been privy to it, and
a guilty Perfon ; yet thefe Men always have been,
and are in Law, Witnefles, and ‘s jult they
fhould have a Competency to maintain them,
fince they came for the Publick Good to make {uch
Diicoveries,

L.C.*}. North, And that particular Sum of
Money was paid to Mr. Bedlow, in purfuance of
the King’s Proclamation, which we all know,
which was all publickly done.

Langborn. 'The Reafon why I prefs this, was,
becaufe of the Proclamation, which was to in-
vite Perfons to come, touching the Difcovery of
this Plots and to cncourage them to 1t by aPro-
mife of Reward. I think it may be reafonable
enough, where any Perfon that is charged with
a Crime doth abfent, to propofe a Reward for
the bringing him in. But I think it is hard, that
when a Prifoner is in Cuftody, Witnefles fhould
be brought in againft him by fuch Means,

L. C. . North. Youdo artificiaily go off from
the Point: Anfwer the Evidence that hath been
aiven againft you, and you fhall be heard; but
you labour very much, and trouble your felf to
make Anfwer to another Matter that 1s not perti-

nent.
L. C. ¥. Does your Defence confift wholly of

this Sort of Matter, objecting the Incompetency
of the Witnefles? Can you make no Anfwer to

the Fact?

Langhorn. Tmaft tell your Lordfhip, my whole
Defence muft run to dilable the Witnefies s for,
my Lord, I was committed to Newzate the 17th
of Ofeber, and 1 have been kept there a clofe
Prifoner till this Day was Sennight, or Friday the
Iaft Week; I never converfed with any Friend,
or any Relation, nor knew any thing of News,
but only with fome few Perfons, {ent by Authori-
ty of the Houfe of Commons, or the Council.
And T was never examined by any fince [ was
committed. I never heard what was charged
againft me, and I could not forefee what thefe
Men could teftify, becaufe [ was not conhdent
whereupon they would procecd 5 therefore 1 can
have no Defence, unlefs it be by leflening their
Credit ; ’tis impofiible I fhould.

L.C. 7. Do, leflen i, if you can. If you
have any Witnefles to take off their Credit, or
contradict them, call them.

Mr, Juft. Atkins. Bue I would {ay one Thing
to you. Mr. Langhorn; You feem to put a very
i1l Conftruction upon the King’s Proclamation,
as if it were to invite and encourage Perfons to
come and fwear about a Plot, where there was
none; it was to invite People to make a fur-
ther Difcovery of a Plot that lay clofe, and
we could not fully difcover, for the Prelerva-
tion of the King and Kingdom, without {uch a

Means.
Langhsrn, Te did propoft a Reward,
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Mr. Jult. Atkins. Ay, 1n order to a further
Difcovery of that Ploc which we had Evidence
of before.

Mr. Jult. Pemberton, And fo you would he
clofe in all your Accounts, and none fhould be
rewarded that could make us any Difcovery of
them, but prefently their Teftimony muft be
gone. “Iis very fine! but the Court over-rules
it.

L. C. 7. Mr. Langhorn, whatfoever you objet
of this Kind, does fly i the Face, and refle&
upon the Integrity and Wifdom, of King, Lords,
and Commons.

L. C. §. North, For it was done by the Advice
of all Three,

L. C.7. 1 yow'il go on, and prove any thing,
but pray don’t {pend our Time to no purpofe,

Langhorn, Call Parrey, and Towiley, and Ded-
dington, and the reft. '

Qates. My Lord, here are Papifts come into
the Court with their Swords on,

L. C.7. They will not draw them here.

Lord Mayor, > T'is well enough, 'tis well enoucls,
Dr, Oates, you are fafe enough here. 7

L. C. 7. Who will you have firft?

Laighorn, 1 would have Hilfley fet up. [IPhich
was dore. ]

L.C. 7. What would you ask him?

Langhorn. Your Lordfhip hath heard Dr. Qates
affirm he came over, fuch a Time, in the Pacquet-
boat with Mr. Hilfley s I defire to know whether
that be true, orno?

L. C.7F. Ican help youin that, for we had him
and his Companions here yefterday ; but howeyer
we will hear them again, if you will have them.
Do you know Mr. Oates ?

Hilfley. I do, my Lord, very well.

L.C. f. When did you come over from
St, Omers ¢
‘ .{{fzﬂqy. I came over the 24th of April, New

tiie.

L. C. 7. Did Mr. Oates come with you ?

Hilfley. No, he did not.

Qates. No, my Lord, he did leave me there,
but 1 overtook him at Calais.

L. C.7¥. Look you there now, you did Jeave
him there, but he overtook you at Calais. Did
you leave him there?

Hilfley. T did leave him there,

L.C. F. Ay, but he overtook you then, did
he not?

Hiifley. No, hedid not.

L.C.7. He anfwers ashe did yefterday, that
he did not come over with him. "You loft your
Money, did you not?

Hilfley. Yes, 1 did,

L.C.7. How did youlofe it? Did you Jofe it
at Play?

flfley. *Tisno Matter how I Ioft it ; Idid not
lofe it ac Play.

Oates, T'll tell the Court, if your Lordfhip
P]_&llea how he loft it; he lent a great deal
of Moaney to a Gentleman, who went away
with his Money, and left him to pay the Rec-
koning.

L.C. 7. What fay you to that?

Hilfley. That is very true, and I confefsit; bu:
what is all this? nothing to the Matter. He
was told this by fome Bodyelfe. I never faw

him, nor ever any Man in the Ship faw him come
over with me.

L.C. 7. Plltell you what then; firft, here is
fomething
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fomething now that you would not confefs yefter-
day, nor indeed would you confefs it now. I
asked you how you loft your Money; you fee
Mr. Oates can tell you how 1t was, tho’ you won’t
cell us; fo that, tho® this be a Secret, he knows
it; and how could he know this Secret, unlefs he
were there!?

Hilfley. There is one that I met by the Way,
hat did tell him this Story.

Thein one Gifford flood up.

L. C. 7. Did you fee Mr. Oates?

Gifford. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. What Difcourfe had you with him
concerning Hilfley ? _

Gifford. Why he told us of his Departure.

L.C. ¥ When?

Gifford, After he was gone away.,

L.C. . How long after?

Gifford. Three or four Days.

L.C.F. What faid he to you?

Gifford. He only told us he was gone.

L.C. ¥. What elfe {ard you of him?

Gifford. He only faid he departed out of the
College then.

L. C.¥. What did you fay to Mr. Oates about
it?

Gifford, T don’t remember what I faid in par-
ticular,

L.C. ¥. Hilfley, Call up the other Perfon that
you fay told Mr. Oufes.

Hitfley. He is vot here, my Lord, but here is
one that was in the Zompany when le told i,

L. 2. F. Who was by?

Gifford. Mr. Burnaby, who came thither the 1ft
of ﬂjﬂ_}’.

L. C. ¥. Hearken to me; When you talked
with Mr. Oates, concerning Mr. Hiffley’s being
oone from the College, was there any body by?

Gifford. | cannot tell.

L.C.%. Was Mr. Buruchy by, when Mr. Qates
and you talked about Mr. Hilfley ¢

Then another Witnefs fiarled up.

Third Witnefs. Yes, my Lord, there was Mr.
Oates with me, and Mr. Burnady put limlelf into
our Company in the Garden, and he acquainted
me with this Story.

L.C.¥. What {aid he?

Third Witnefs, He faid he met this Gentleman,
and that this Gentleman was cheated of his
Money.

L. C. . How did he tell you he was cheated ?

Thivd Witnefs. 1 don’t know the Occafion, but
he faid a Fellow cheated him of the Money.

L.C.¥. Was that all he faid ?

Third Witnefs. Yes, my Lord, but I do not
remember upon what Oceafion; he faid he was
cheated by a fhirking Fellow.

L. C. 7. Did he name the Place he met him
at e

Third Witnefs. 1 don’t know, my Lord, whe-
ther he mentio.ed it or no.

L.C. F. So that Mr. Oates names the Place,
which he was never told 3 and unlefs he was there,
how could he then tell 1e

Third Witnefs. Bur this does not prove that 1
fpeak againtt my Confcience, that does not argue,

L. C. ¥. l.ook you, the Anfwer Is this, Mr.
Langhyrn, You would charge Mr. Oafes with

or Hioh-Treafon.
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Falfity in faying he came over in the Pacquet-
boat with Hilffley, and you call up him, and he
{ays, he did not come, but he left him at St. Qmers;
Mr. Oafes comes and fays, *tis true, he left me
there, but I overtook him at Calais, by this very
Token, faid he, you were cheated of your Mo-
ney, by a Perfon that you lent it to, viho went
away, and left you to pay the Reckoning, When
I asked Mr. Hilfley, how he could tell if it were
true that he was not with him, he anfwered, he
was told it by another; but when I come tq
know what that other Perfon faid; it was no
more than this, he faid, in Mr. Qates’s Hearinge,
Mr. Hilffey was Cozen’d of his Money, but did
not fay how, nor by whom, nor where.

Langhorn. Now, to prove that what Mr, Hilfley
fard 1s true, and that therefore Mr. Oustes hio
Knowledge muft come by ancther Hand, I dec-
fire that the Witnefles may be asked, how long
Mr. Oares was at St. Omers 2

L.C. 7. How long was Mr, Qales at St
Omers ¢

Third Witnefs. From December till Fuse, he was
there, except one particular Day that he went to
Watton,

L.C. 7 And you faw him almoft every Day?

Third Witnefs. Yes, 1 did.

L.C F. You have ffteen or fixteen Witneflo
fes that will fay all this; bue yet, if you will, we
wiil call them. ’

h L?: C.7. When went he away, do you know
that:

Third Witnefs. He went in Fuwe, I can’t cers
tatnly fay the Day ”

L. C.¥. Well, call another.

Third Witnefs, Pray, my Lord, let me fpeals
if your Lordfhip pleafe to let me give you my
Reafon, why I might fee him; I faw him in
the RefeCtory; he had a little Table by himfelf,
diftinct from the reft, and dining together in a
publick Place, 1t was impoffible but we fhould
fee his Place empty, if he were gone; and 1|
know the Number of my own School, and can
tell whether any one be abfent.

L. C. #. Whar, becaufe he fat at a Table by
himfelf, therefore you think he was there all the
while?

Third Witnefs. Certamnly, if I may believe mine
own Eyes, I faw him there every Day.

L. C. Baron. Were you there every Day your
felf ?

Third Wituefs. Yes, my Lord, I was, I did not
mifs one Day, I had no Infirmity.

Launghorn. My Lord, Mr. Oazes hath affirmed
that there was with him, when he came over in
April, Sir Robert Brets.

L. C.F. He fays only he believes fo; he fays
politively, he came over in the Company of Sir
fobn B arnery Siv Thomas Preffon, and he thinks
alfo Sir Rebert Brett, but is not pofitive.

Laughorn. This he affirmed both in his Nar-
rative, and upon Oath in the Lords Houf.

L.C. 7. Shew any thing that he was {worn
to here.

Mr. Jult. Artkins. But what fays this Lad more?
let him fpeak, for he 1s very full of it.

Third Witnefs. The xft Day of May I faw him
in the Garden, with a Lay-Brother, at Kittle-pins,
in the View of all the College.

Langhorns. Let us examine him as to Perfons,
and then refer it to the Lords Regifter.

1.C Y.
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L. C. % Why, if you will prove fomething
Mr. Qates hath {worn there, that you can contra-
dié, firft prove what he {vore, and then contra-
dict 1t. |

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. Pray take notice, you
muft not go to oppofe him in any thing of that
Oath, unlefs he hath fworn it here; whatfoever
there be there, except he hath fworn the fame
here, ’tis in vain to objeét it, for he cannot be
intended to have Witnefs to make good what he

{fwore there,
Sir Cr. Levinz., Let us hear what he does offer.

Langhorn. Under Favour, Mr. Oates hath ac-
knowledged what he fwore there was true.

L.C.¥. You are miltaken, Mr. _megbar;{;
indeed when youasked him that Queftion, he faid
a5 far as what concerned what he fwore here, was
true, and he is bound at this Time to aniwer no
more.

Langhorn, Then as to Sir Fobn Warner, 1 de-
{ire my Witnefles may be examined.

L.C.¥. I fuppole they may be here, and fay
the fame they did Yefterday ; that he did not {tir
from his Houfe at /¥atton, all pril and May.

Fourth Witnefs. Yes, my Lord, helived there
21l that while.

L.C. 7 What Year?

Fourth Witnefs. In Year 1678.

L. C. 7. That is the Time that Mr. Oales
fays he came over with him. You faw him al-
moft every Day, did not your

Fourth IVitnefs, Yes, 1 did, only four Days
that I was abfent, being {ent by him to St. Omers,
at a great Fealt.

L.C.%. And when you cameback, you found
him there?

Fourth Hitnefs. Yes, I did.

L. C.#. You are his Gard’ner, are you not?

Fonrth Witnefs. Yes, I am.

L. C. 7. Did you flay all thofe four Days at
St. Omeis ¢

Fourth IVitrefs. 1 was fent to the high Kirk,
and carried fome Inftruments tor the Mufick,
and there I ftaid four Days, and the lalt Day
of Aprily and the firft, and fecond, and third of
May. And 1 faw Mr, Oates there in the Houfe,
and I faw him going into the Refeétory to Din-
ner.

L.C. 7. He fays, that Sir Fobn [Farner was
at home all 4pii! and May, that he himfelf was
abfent but four Days, that he left him there, and
when he came back found him there; and rhat in
the four Days he wasat St. Omers, he faw Mr.Cates,
which was the laft of #pr#/; the firft, fecond and
third of Afey. You don’t know when Mr, Oates
went away !

Fourth IWinefs. No, my Lord, not L.

Mr, Jult., Pemberton, Was Sir Fobu [Varuer
there all Fuie?

Fourth Witnefs. My Lord, I can’t tell that, I
only fpeak to #pril and May.

L. C. . Thofe are the two Months that fit
him.

Mr. Juft, Pemberton. Why how come you not

to remember that, as well as the other two, for
that 1s fince?

Fourth Wituefs. Becaufe I took not fo much
Notice of him 1n thofe Times.

L.C. 7. How came you to take more fpécial
Notice of them two Months, than of the
other ?

Fourth IWitiefs, Becaufe our Retor did then
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come into England, and he took the Charge of
the Houfe upon Him in the Rector’s Abfence,

L.C. . When did he come?

Fourth Witnefs. He came the 24th of April.

Mr. Jult, Dolben. Pray who is your Rector?
What 1s his Name ?

Fourth Witnefs, Siv Francis Williams.

L. C.¥. Where was Sir Fobn Warner in Fune
and Fely ¢

Fourth Witnefs. 1 cannot tell.

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. And where was he in A
guft and September ?

Fourth Witnefs. He went out of Town, but
where I am not certain.

L. C. }. You were Gard’ner there then?
Fourth Witnefs, Yes, 1 was,
L.C. 7. Why can’t you as well tell me then,

where he was in Fune and Fuly, as in April and
May? Anfwer me plainly.

Fourth Witnefs. 1 think he was there all thae
Time, but I can’t be certain,

L.C.F. Why not fo certain, for thofe two

Months, as you are for the other.

Fourth I unefs, Becaufe I did not take fo much
Notice.

L. C. 7. How came you to take more Notice
of the one, than the other? that he was there in
April and May, rather than that he was there in
Fuly ?

Fourth IVitnefs. Becaufe the Queftion, my
Lord, that I came for, did not fall upon thac
Time,

L.C. f. Now he hath anfwered plinly;
when I asked the Queftion, Why he did not take
fo much Notice of thofe Months, as he did of
April and Afay? he anfwered me, Becaufe the
Queftion did not fall upon thofe Months; and
that, without all Queftion, is a plain and an
honeft Anfwer,

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Indeed he hath forgot his
Leflon; you fhould have given him better In-
ftruétions.

L. C. j. Look you, Mr, Langhorn, if he be
to be believed, and that he doth not fpeak falfly,
or more than he knows, it is impoffible that
Oates’s Teftimony and his can ftand together
for he direltly affirms, he faw Mr. Qates the laft
of April, the 1ft, 2d, and 3d of May. Now
Mr., Qates {ays he was here then; fo that thefe
*wo cannot ftand together. The Queftion then is,
Whether he be to be believed ? and, Whether he
does not come wilfully, or prepared? The Jury
have heard what a kind of Teftimony he gives,
when the Queftion was asked him, How he
came to take notice of the Months of i/ and
May, more than of Faune and Fuly? and why he
was more {ure Sir Fobn Warner was there at the
one T'ime, than at the other? Why, faid he, be-
caufe the Queftion falls upon thofe former Months,
and not upon thofe of Fune or Fuly. Now that
does fhake all that was faid before, and looks as
if he came on purpofe, and prepared for thofe
Months; and now this, I am afraid will go
thro’ all your St. Omers Men.

L.C. }. North. Indeed I doubt it will go a
great way, to fhake all their Teftimony.

§ir Cr. Levinz. You, Gard’ner, what do you
fay was your Re€or’s Name?

Fourth Hanefs. Sir Erancis Williams.

Sir Cr. Levinz, And he came over in 4o#il or

May, did he?

- Fourth
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Tourth Witnefs, He came over the 24th of 4-
Pﬂ.:'!. _

Sir Cr. Levinz, Why, that 1s the Time that
Mr. Oales came over, and he was one of the Per-
fons that he faid came over with him.,

Fourth I¥itnefs. No, he came alone, only with

2 certain Officer of the College.

Langhorir. Pray let Gifford be asked the fame
Queftion about Sir Fohn Wariicr  for if he did
come, as he faich, from /#7atton to St. Omers, at
that Time, he muit fee him ar St, Omers, for he
was at St. Omers then,  The Queftion is about
Sir Fobiz Waruer, 1f he were at Jatton, or St.
Omveis, then he could not come over with Mr.
£)ates.

L. C. . When did you {ee Sir Fobu W asner ?

Gifford. 1 faw him about 7 uue, or thereabouts.

L. C. ¥. Where did you fee him ?

Gifford. 1 faw him there in St. Omers Houle.

L.C. 7. When?

Gifferd. In Juwe or July, when he nvited me
over to /i alfon.

L. C.'}. This Man does not ferve the Turn,
he dogs not know the Month upon which the

Queftion runs.

Fifth [linefs. The firlt Day of Mareh there
vas a great Feaft, St. Fortunatus and Gordianus,
and then I faw Mr, Qates four Days, and he was
there all the Month of Aay.

L. C.7J. Where was Sir Fobn I¥arucr then ?

Lafen, Hitnefs, T cannot tell 5 but at St. Omers
T taw D Posle, and Sir Robert Breft at that
Time,

L. C. 7. Did Mr. Peslz come over with you ?

Oates. Yes, my Lord, he did.

L. C. F. Witnefs, when did Mr. Pesle come
over from St. Omers ¢

ifth TPitiefs. He came firft to St. Omers with
Mo, [FEitediead, he was my Mafter of Mulick,
and he taught me, and 1t was impoflible he thould
bz miffing without my Knowledge.

L. C.¥. But he was gone to Lugland long be-
fore that 5 and he could not beat England and at
St. Omers at the fame tume,

Fifth IVitae/s. You lny right, he could not.

L. €. F. When came he from St. Omers ?

bifeh IFitiefs. In the Month of Fuie, or May.

L. C.%. Or Apid.

Lifth I7itacfs. No, it was the Month of Fuue.

L. C. 7. Thele are but Coilateral Matters,
Mr. Lasighern, tor you to fland wpon this, it
ipends Time to no purpole; but the grear Que-
ftion 1s, Friend, Whether you don’t miftake the
Month ¢

Fifth Wtuefs. Yes, yes, (at sehich the Peaple
langh’d) no, no, I don’t miftalie the Month, 1
only fpeak the Truth according to my Know-
ledee.

L. C. 7. How can you fo vrecifely remember,
the Month of Aday he was there; for when [
asked you when he went away, you could hardly
tell the Month.

Figth TViteefs. Yes, my Lord, Nr. Oates fays,
in the Month of Nay he was i Eugland, bue I fay
I faw Nir. Pesle then at St. Oumeis,

L.C. 7. But the great Queflion 15, Whether
vou are to be believed 7 We know you anfwer
the Queftion pofitively, but my Reafon why I
fear you are not to be believed, 15, becaule you
are {o precife that Mr. Poeole taught you all Aday ;
but 1 ask you once more, YWasit 1 Fuie, or was
it in May ?
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Fifth Wituels. It was about Fuse.

L.C. }. May is about Fune. Why then you
cannot tell. Was it in Yuie 2

Fifth Witnefs. Yes, my Lord, it was; it was
about Fuie.  And this is nothing bur what I

know, for I actually faw Mr. Oafes there at that
Time.

L. G. j. Pl eell youwhat, Mr. Langhorn, ufe
your Difcretion, call whom you will, and we
will hear them as long as you will 5 but we had
Sixteen of them Yefterday, that did all fpeak to
the fame purpofe; but in Anfwer to thefe fixteen
Witnefles, Mr. Qates did produce, and he wiil
produce again, fix or feven Witnefles, and one of
them a Papift, if not a Prieft, who do fivear,
that Mr. Oates was here in dpriland May ; Tl
tell you beforehand, do as you will.

Then one Baille fleod up, and being & Foreizicr,
an Tmerpreler was called;

. L. C. /. Where did you fee Siv Yol I¥aricr
in Apiil and May ?

luterpretey. He fays he faw him actually at St.
Omers.

L.C. 7. What, all the Month of Afuy ?

Linterpreter, Yes, he fays heconverfed with him
all the Month of AZay.

L. C. 7. And was he there all Zpril, and con-
verfed with him then ?

Lnterpretei. Yes, he fays every Day, of both
Months. He fays he faw him from the firft
Suiday in April to the 14th of May, and con-
verfed with him.

L. C. 7. Where did Sir Fobu I urner o0 the
1.4th of Aday?

Iuterpreter. My Lord, he fays he went for one
Day only to St, Omers, and came back again.

L. C. 7. Ask him how he knows this?

[nterpreter. He fays he was cooploy’d about a
Building by Sir Yol I ariei,

heir Carpenteir floed ap.
L. C. ¥, When did you fce Mr. Outes, and

where?
Carpenteir. 1 fpeak as to Sir Thomas Preflon.

L. C. 7. What fay youas o Sir Thomas Pyee

Jtan 8

Carpentcii, 1 faw him at Liege.

L.C. 7. When?

Carpeatear. All the Months of A7), April,
May, and Fune, he was Ll there.

L. C. F. When went he away ?

Garpentier. In the Time of the Vacancies.
L.G. 7. When is that ?
Carpenteir. That is from the beginnine of 4
¥ b D ’
guft, tll the end of September.

L. C. 7. When came he again?

Caipenteir. When they came to School again,
and that was on the fecond or third of O&ober,

Mr. Jult, Dolben. Were you with him all thae
(e ?

Carpenteir, Yes, I was: He hath not been in
England thefe three Years,

L. C. }. How long have you been there ?

Carpeatcir, ) have been there four Years, and
I never knew that he was abfent, but in the time
of the Vacancies.

Mr. Juft, Pemberion. Call another Witnefs.

Then flood up anctber IFitnefs, whs being a
Dutchman, aiid not [peaking Englifh, ax
Interpreter was called for him alto,

L.CY.

[
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L. C. 7. Well, what comes he for ?

Interpreter. He fays he comes to teftify, That
Sir Fobin Warner was at Watton in April 5 and he
fays he faw him there from the 14th of April to
the 2zth of April ¢

L. C. 7. And then to what time ?

Interpreter. He fays he was there tll the 16th
of ﬂfa}'. _

Mr. Jult. Pemberton. Ask him where he was
the beginning of April ¢ ' |

Tuterpreter. He fays he was Superior there in
the Houfe, and did govern.

L. ¢. ¥. Ask him where he was the latter end
of May? o

Interpreter. He fays he was likewife in the
Houfe, fave only one Day, when he went to S,

Omeis. _ o
L.C. 7. Then he might have faid, in fhort, he

was there all dpril and May,
Mr, Juft, Pemberton. Call another Witnefs,

Langhorn, Call Fobu Fofeph. 17ho flood up.

Mr, Jult, Pemberton, What do you ask him,
Mr. Langhorn ¢

Fofepb. That which T fay is this, That Sir
Thomas Preflon was at Liege in March, April, May,
and June, inthe Year 1678,

L. C. 7. Did you {ce him every Day in thofe
Months ?

Fofeph, ThatI cannot well tell.

L, ¢. 7. Did you fce him every other Day ?

Fojeph. Yes, my Lord, Ibelieve I did once in
two or three Days.

L. C. F. Where was he in July ?

Jofeph. He was at Licge too : He was obliged
to be fo ; butin the time of the Vacancies in u-
guft, he was ablenr,

L.C.¥. Then you {ay he wasall thofe Months,
March, Apiil, May, Fune and Fuly there,

Fofeph. Yes, my Lord, chofe four Months I
am {ure of 1t,

L. C.J. What became of him in Auguf?, when
he went, during the Vacancies abroad? Do you
kknow whither he went ?

Sir Cr. Leviiz. Do you know whether he went
into England ?

Fofepd. 1 never heard that he was in England ?

L. C. 7. Whendid he return again !

Fofeph. When they began School, and that is
in the beginning of Oober.

Then another Witnefs flood up.

L. C. 7. Well, what fay you ?

Tenth Wituefs, 1 can fay that Mr. Oates never
ftirred out of the College at that time when he fays
he came to England, thatis, he fays he came up-
on Mouday the 2 5th of April, but he did not, for
that Day he went nto the Infirmary, and he ftay-
ed at St. Omeis all April and May.

L. C. 7. And how much longer ?

Tenth Mitnefs. A great part of Fune,

L. C. 5. Was he there the 20th of Fune?

Teuth IFatuefs. T am {ure he was, but how much
longer | cannot tell,

L.C.7 Where was he in February and March 2
Teuth Witnefs. He was there too 3 tn Fanuary
he lay out one Night, and that was at #atton,
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Then another IWitnefs food up.

L.C. 7. Well, what do you fay?

Eleverth Witnefs. Mr., Poole was fick, and I
Can remember when his Nephew went to him
into the Infirmary, before he went away from the
College, and he gave him good Counfel, as he
faid, and I remember that Mr. Brett was fick at
Waiton, and did come home again on Horfe-
back, and I believe he did not ftir out 5 and Mr.
Poole was at St. Omers, 1 am fureI faw him once
In two or three Days all 4pri/ and May. He wen
by the Name of Killingbeck.

L.C. 7. But he does not pofitively fay he faw
Sir Rebert Biett every Day there, he fays he be-
lieves he did.

Eleventh IVitnefs. He came into the School and
gave the Boys Queftions to difpute of.

Mr. Recorder. Call the reft of your Witneffes,
Then another itnefs was called and flood up.

L.C. ¥, Nepth, When did you fee Mr. Qates
ar St, Omers 2

Teoelfth Hitnefs. 1 faw him almoft every other
Day from the Time he came till he went away.

L.C. 7. When wasthe firft time you faw him ?

Tawelfth Witnefs. The beginning of December.

L. C. ¥. Did you fee him in April there?

Teeelfth Hituefs, Yes, | faw him in Ap#il there
at an Action.

L.C. 7. Anddid you fee him in Afay there ?

Twelfth Hitnefs. Yes, 1 can teftify I faw him
the firft Day of May in the Garden.

L.C. 7. How long ftay’d he there?

Treelfth Titnefs. Till Fune,

L.C. 7. How came you to take fuch precife
Notice?

Twelfth Witnefs. By his very Place T could not
but take notice if he were miffing.

L. C. 7. How can you fay you faw him in
the Garden the firlt of May?

Taelfth Witnefs. 1’1l tell your Lordthip why,
becaufe there was a great Feall, and he plaid at
Nine-pins 1n the Garden,and I can tell what they
play’d for.

L. C. J. What fay you asto Mr. Nevi/, ard Sir
Robert Bretf's being at St. Omers ?

Tevelfth IWitnefs. 1 did not take fo much no-
tice of Sir Robert Bretty as for Nevil, 1 think [
faw him once 1n three Days.

Mr. Jult. Pemberton. And there is nothing faid
of him here,

Then another Wituefs flood up.

L. C.¥. When did you fee Mr. Oates firlk at
St, Omers ?

Thivteenth Witiefs, 1 firft faw him in the Month
of December.

L. C.J. Did you fee him in #pril and May?

Thirtzenth Wituefs. Yes, my Lord, I did.

L.C. ¥. Was he there all thofe Months 2

Thirteenth Witnefs. Yes, my Lord, he was.

L.C.7. North. Was he there all the Month
of Fune ?

Thirteenth Witnefs. He went away towards the
fatter end of Yuue.

L. C. f. North, Yefterday you faid the latter

but I am fure he did not come over the 24th of end of Fufy. Call another Witnefs.

Aprily New Stile, as he fays. ;
Mr. Recorder. Now he fays, it is New Stile,
not Old Stile, as he faid Yefterday.

Then anotber IVituefs food up,

L. C. F. Nort/, Come, you hear the Queftion,
Did
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Did you fee Mr. Oatesat St. Omers, in the Month

Fourteenth Witinefs. Yes, my Lord, he was
here all the Month of April,

L. C. ¥. Washe there all the Month of May ?

Fourteenth IWitnefs. Y esy my Lord, he was.

. f}fnﬂ . Pemberton. And a good PArE of Fune,

Jpnricenth Wauefs. Yes, my Lord,

Langhorin. W hat do you fay as to Mr. Posle 2

Fourtcenth Fritiefs. T faw Mr, Pogle 1n the In-
frmary the third Day ol Aday.

L. C. . North. How came you to take notice
of it, fo well as to remember it, that it was the
third of Jay ?

Fuitecinth W itiefs. It was a Feftival Day. And
the Feaft we kept was the Invention of the Holy
Crofs. We had the Aétion the Day before, and
fome that were In
ol over asaia to them, and we did fo. My
1.0rd, within oune or two Days alter, Mr. fil-
foywent avzay, difeourfed with Mr. Ogtes about
half an Flour; he came out within a Dy or two
afrer ouz of the Infirmary, and I liw him walk-
ing in the Gallery.  And again, the 2d of Aday
§ faw him walking with one M. Biiiaby, who
arrived the Day before, the firflt of 4ay, and then
i faw him the 3d, ath, and 5th, m this Burizaby’s
Company 5 1 Law him again the 26th of Jay,
with 4 Band about his Head mn order to Confir-

mation, for they always have a Linen Cloth
bound about their Head at fuch a time.

L. C. . Call another. Who flosd up, his

Name coas ™3

L. C. 7. What can you fay ?

=evt All that I ean fay is this, that between
tee faid Monthof Decemnber 1657, and Fauue 1678,
which is the time in Queftion, r. Oafes was
rever out of the College above one Night, when
e went to fPaten 1 Fanyary 5 and tis 1s cer-
raln, that trom the time that 1 faw him arly, till
tae time he went away for altogether, there were
not two Days that paffed away, wheren 1 did
ot fee nim, except In the Month of Adzrchd, and
when he was in the Inlirmary the 24ch of il
but then T beard chae he was there—

L. 2. F. Whodid tell youfo ?

“% % The Man thar keeps that pait of the
{ foule 5 and coming tnto my Office after my Re-
covery out of a Fit of Sicknefs a Week before
Clilitnas or thereabouts, 1 faw Mr. Oafes by this
Circum{tance, The Servitors of the Houfe faid
they were glad to fee me, and Mr. Oales being in
the Place ac the Refectory that was afligned to
him, [ asked who he was, and they told me {uch
a one: but I had heard of his Adomiflion a few
Days before. Likewife Mr, Oates was there when
Mr. Hilflzy came tor Englend, which was about
the 2.uth of April, by this Circnftance, that he
was prefent in the Refedory with fome of the
Scholars.  Mr., Richard Burnaby came to the
College about a Weck after Mr. Hilfley went a-
way, and Mr. Qates was actually there then, and
we did very much wonder chat he became acquain-
ted with him fo quickly after his Arrival. 1 fay
Mr. Oates was atually there when Mr. Killenbock
and Mr. Congueft came for Eigland about the 3d
of May, by this Circumftance, that 1 had fome
Difcourfe with Mr. Oafes, and fome others of the
Scholars, that Mr. Congueft would by no means
gei out of his Bed betimes that Day he wasto go

“oL. I,

- for High-Treafon.

1e Infirmary would have 1t ac-
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away, being unwilling to leave the College. He
was there the 26th of May by this Circumftance,
that the Bithop dined there that Day, and Mr.
Oales was there confirmed that Day.  Mr. Oates
was there alfo in Fuie, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Yes, he was there in Fawe, he does
not deny it.

My Jaft, Pemberton. And was he thereall Aay?

*17¥ Yes, my Lord, he was, and all Aprif, ex-
cept the time he was in the Infirmary, which was
three or four Days.

Langhorn, What do youfay asto Paole and Ne-
il 2 -

“*+% They were there all the whole time in
queftion, and they were never abfent any compe-
teit time to come to England, as he fays. ,

L. C. ¥. North. We muft not allow that, you
muit tell us what time they were there, that we
may know it. -

**4 They were there in March, April, May,
Fune and fuly.

L. C. ¥. But did you fec him every Day from
the beginning of Chriffmas, to the time he went
away in Fuie ¢ |

*HEF Yes, except the ume he was at Fation,
and when he was inthe Infirmary.

Mr. Recorder. But was not Mr. Oates twice in
the Infirmary ?

*#%# e was I remember there on St. Thorias
of Canterbury's Day, and I remember he wasthere
in April.

Sir Cr. Levinz. 1did hear you fay fomething of
fomebody that was ablent five or fix Days, was it
you ?

#32% [ was fick in the Month of March, and
T was in the Infirmary till about the twelfth or
fourteenth Day. |

Sir Cr. Levinz, Anddid you fee him there all
that time?

xexe 1 excepted that time, but I heard his
Voice once in that time, in the next Room to
the Infirmary, where I was, by this Circumfiance,
he ufed to come to a Table by himfclf, and 1t was

near the Door, and Nevi/ and Poule were there,
as I faid before.

My, Recorder. He fpeaks much more to the
Purpofe to-day, Mr. Laszhors, than he did yel-
teraay.

L. C. F. Nerth, And much Jouder.

Langhorn, 1 hope your Lordfhip will take no-
tice that he fpeaks likewife of the Refidence of
Mr. Pesle, Sir Rebest Brett, and Mr, Newil,

L. C. 7. Yes, I do. Callanother Witnefs.

I7ho fleod up, and being a Foreigner, bis Evi
dence was likewife interpreled.

L. C. 7. Ask him what he fays.

Futerpreter. He fays he faw Mr. Oates, he was
there, and he remembers it till about the 2 5th of
Fuie.

L. C. 7. Where did he fee him?

Tuterpieter. He fays 1t was either in the Houfe,
or in the Garden.

L. C. F. North. When was that, that he was
in the Infirmary

Interpreter. He fays, he was in the Infirmary
towards the latter end of Decembei, or the begin-
ning of Fanuary. |

L. C. 7. Ask him what he fays about Nevi/
and Paole.

Interpreter. He fays they were there all Fuwe,
and that Mr, Poolé went away in the Month of
5Y Fulys



